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Glossary

Volume 
(m unit cases)

2,058
2015: 2,055

Net sales revenue 
(€m)

6,219
2015: 6,346

EBIT 
(€m)

506
2015: 418

Comparable EBIT1 
(€m)

518
2015: 473

Comparable earnings 
per share1 (€)

0.972
2015: 0.864

Comparable 
net profit1 (€m)

352
2015: 314

Net profit 
(€m)

344
2015: 280

FX‑neutral net 
sales revenue per 
unit case1 (€)

3.02
2015: 2.94

Comparable 
EBIT margin1 
(%)

8.3
2015: 7.5

Key highlights for the year
We	announced	our	financial	results	for	the	year	ended	31	December	2016	
on 16	February	2017.	In	addition	to	the	reported	and	comparable	metrics	we	highlight	
below from	these	financial	results,	we	report	on	our	progress	towards	our	2020	target	
KPIs on	pages	14‑15.

1. For details on APMs refer to “Alternative Performance Measures” section

Basic earnings 
per share (€)

0.949
2015: 0.771

About our report
The 2016 Integrated Annual Report 
(“Annual Report”) consolidates 
Coca‑Cola HBC AG’s UK and 
Swiss disclosure requirements 
while meeting the disclosure 
requirements for its secondary listing 
on the Athens Exchange and the 
sustainability reporting standards. 
For more information about our 
Annual Report, see page 212.
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We are a 
stronger 
business

 

We have partnered with The Coca-Cola Company 

 

3 years88%

 Sparkling beverages : 90%  
 Water : 6%   
 Other : 4%   

 Sparkling beverages : 62%   
 Water : 18%   

 Low- and no-calorie 
sparkling beverages : 8%  

 Juice : 7%   
 RTD tea : 4%   
 Energy and other : 1%  
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Population: 76 million

GDP per capita: US$13,861

Population: 91 million

GDP per capita: US$36,349

Population: 428 million

GDP per capita: US$5,020

 
 

 

43%

  
lines
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We are driving 
growth to 
new levels

0%

2009-2015 actual 2016-2020 forecast

Established Developing Emerging CCHBC

-5

5

2016-17 2018-20

0%

4%

-4%

CCHBC Established markets Developing markets Emerging markets

+0.1% +2.2%

2016-17 2018-20

0%

4%

-4%

+0.3% +0.9%

2016-17 2018-20

0%

4%

-4%

+1.4%
+2.3%

2016-17 2018-20

0%

4%

-4%

-1.0%

+3.3%
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Vision

Enablers

Targets

Objectives
    

i

i

 

Take 40% of the 
total energy we use 
from renewable and 

clean energy 
sources

Recover for 
recycling an average 

of 40% of total 
packaging we 

introduce to our 
markets 

Source 20% of the 
total PET we use 

from recycled PET 
and/or PET from 

renewable material 

Reduce packaging 
by 25% per litre of 

beverage produced 

Certify over 95% of 
our key agricultural 
ingredients against 

the Coca-Cola 
System’s Sustainable 
Agricultural Guiding 

Principles 

Invest 2% of our 
annual pre-tax 

communities

Double the  
number of 

employees taking 
part in volunteering 

initiatives during 
work time to 10% 

of our people 

Reduce 
water use 

internally by 
30% 

Reduce direct 
carbon emissions 
intensity by 50% 

Reduce carbon 
emissions 

intensity in the 
value chain by 

25% 

Certify all of our 
plants in European 
Water Stewardship 

or Alliance for Water 
Stewardship 

standard. 
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year of improvement in operational and year
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 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

and that they meet the independence 

Anastassis G. David
Chairman

i

Strategic R
epo

rt
C

o
rpo

rate G
o

vernance
Financial Statem

ents
Sw

iss Statuto
ry R

epo
rting

Supplem
entary Info

rm
atio

n
Coca-Cola HBC 

2016 Integrated Annual Report

COC016_.indb   7 3/16/17   2:31 PM



In-market execution
Growth in category 
volume

Investment in production 
optimisation

Use of cash
Working capital  
management

Marketing
Brand investment – 
The Coca-Cola Company

i

i

i

i

i

i
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Share gains
Price and mix 
improvements

Operating 
expense reduction

Disciplined CapEx 
investment

In-store activation – 
Coca-Cola HBC

Leverage 
top-line 
growth

Enhanced 
EBITDA growth

Grow the 
top-line

Invest 
in the 

business

Expand 
margins

Create 
demand
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We help our communities thrive, impacting their lives positively by 
making economic, social and environmental contributions

 

  

 

 

 

innovation 

Strategic 
pillars

Objectives

Scorecard

Initiatives

 

 

We work hard to remain relevant for 
our consumers and be the preferred 

supplier to our customers

 

We aspire to be a cost leader and make 
the necessary investments to sustain 

this leadership

   

Our most important enablers to growth are our people: unparalleled talent  
and a high-performance mindset are what we strive for. 

Our people make our Company what it is and create value by growing our business responsibly 
and sustainably. Strengthening the capabilities of our people as well as engaging them 

Enablers 
and values
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Volume Net sales revenue (NSR) 

Net sales revenue generated per case sold

How we measure our 
performance

engagement 

key people in key positions women in our Company

What happened 
in the year

 

Objectives

How we track 
our progress

What happened 

Our plans 
for 2017

Link to remuneration 
See page 88

Objectives

KPIs  

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

2,003 2,055 2,058

2014 2015 2016
0

1

2

3
2 . 5

0 . 3

2 . 9

201620152014
0
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2

3

-0.3

2.9 3.0

20162015
2014

KPIs
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80

100
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OpEx (Operating expenses) as a percentage of net sales revenue 

Comparable EBIT margin 

Working capital

Capital expenditure (CapEx) 

 

greenhouse gas emissions

 

0

10

20

30 29.2 29.2 28.2
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0
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201620152014
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Taking proactive 
measures to 

create and 

Our material issues and principal risks have the greatest potential to 
impact our ability to create and sustain value over time, and they help 

We examine the opportunities and threats facing our business through two complementary lenses. One is a business resilience 

focuses on material issues including market, environmental and economic factors that have the potential to alter our business 
landscape in the medium and longer term. These two lenses enable us to understand our principal risks and material issues 
which, due to their importance, are considered in our business planning processes and monitored by our Operating Committee 

Managing risk and materiality

Coca-Cola HBC 
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determines strategy and establishes 
priorities. Across our 28 countries, we 
integrate the way we manage risk into 
the operating framework and culture of 

business resilience and risk management 
was disclosed in our 2015 Annual Report 

 
http://coca-colahellenic.com/en/about-us/
business-resilience-and-risk-management/
business-resilience/.

The Company’s business resilience function, 

(CRO), exists as a specialised independent 
risk management function that is 
responsible for day-to-day management 
of the programme and working with other 

reports directly and independently to both 
the Operating Committee (the Company’s 
most senior management committee) and 
the Audit and Risk Committee.

Risk management and 
our principal risks

A structured approach 

The Board is ultimately responsible for the 
Group’s risk management and internal 
control systems, and for reviewing their 

Group’s risk appetite and, on a quarterly 
basis, monitors the Company’s risk 
exposure to ensure that the material 
matters and principal risks facing the 
Company are managed in alignment 
with our strategic goals and objectives. 

ongoing processes rests with the Audit and 
Risk Committee (as described later in this 
report), the Board as a whole is informed of 

In 2016, our detailed enterprise risk 

review and escalation of risk included the 
following actions:

 – In support of governance requirements, 
quarterly risk reviews were undertaken by 

sessions facilitated by the CRO with 

 –
associated management actions were 
evaluated and assessed quarterly. 
Additionally, in May and November, 
facilitated sessions were held to review 
risks on a regional level. These sessions 
included the Region Directors, their 

and the CRO. Outcomes from these 
sessions were shared with operational 

management feedback.

 – These operational and regional risks were 
also reviewed by the Group Risk Forum, 
which acts as an internal think tank on 
strategic risk and is headed by the CRO. 
The Group Risk Forum evaluated the risk 
trends and the strategic risk environment 
as part of the preparation of our Strategic 
Risk Register and Principal Risks.

 – Drawing on all available risk data, the 
Operating Committee reviewed critical 
risk exposures in May and November 
with the CRO subsequently reporting the 
Company’s risk management attitude, 
material changes, and mitigating actions 
to the Audit and Risk Committee.

 – On a quarterly basis, the CRO briefed the 
Audit and Risk Committee on the risk 
management programme, material risks, 
and alignment and compliance with the 
UK Corporate Governance Code.

We ensure that visibility and alignment 
are maintained for both our material 
issues and our principal risks through 
strong functional collaboration. Because 
collaboration is central to the success of 
the risk management programme, we have 
established strong partnerships between 
risk management and the sustainability, 

and communications departments.

Key features of our enterprise-wide risk 
management system are:

 – a formalised risk management policy;

 – Group statements on strategic direction, 
ethics and values;

 – clear business objectives and 
business principles;

 –
to our strategic priorities: Community 
trust, Consumer relevance, Customer 
preference and Cost leadership;

British Insurance 
Awards 2016:

At the 2016 British Insurance Awards, 
the Company received the Risk 

Management Award for In House & 
Insurable Risk Managers, an award for 
innovative solutions recognising our 
ongoing work in this important area 

of governance.
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Increasing

Stable

Decreasing

Risk and materiality continued

 – a continuous process for the 
 

 
of business objectives;

 – risk management integration into 

management of material issues;

 – risk management integration into 

 – implementation of management 

 – implementation of a cultural 
change programme that embeds 
risk management into the fabric of 
the business;

 – focus on enhancing risk management 
capabilities of all future leaders across all 
operations and functions;

 – continual monitoring of our internal and 
external environment for factors that may 

 – annual evaluation of the type and amount 
of external insurance purchased and the 
role of our captive insurance entity, with 
reference to the availability of cover and 
cost, measured against the likelihood  

10

2

6

9
8

1

5

7
34

12

11

Risk map

Key

1 Consumer health

4 Channel mix

2 Foreign exchange

5 Declining consumer demand

3 Climate, carbon and water

6 Discriminatory taxes

7 Quality

10 Cyber

8 Regulatory challenges

11 Change management

9 People and talent

12 Stakeholder relations

Low

High

Im
pa

ct

HighLikelihood

The Company’s internal audit department 
conducts annual audits of the risk 
management programme, measuring the 
processes against International Accounting 
Standards and best practice. The Corporate 
Audit Director makes recommendations 
to improve the overall risk management 
programme with the audit report submitted 
to the Audit and Risk Committee.

Our principal risks
Our strategic priorities provide the context 
for guiding us in the management of both 
the material matters and the principal 
risks faced by our business. The overview 
of our most important risks, involving an 
assessment of the likelihood of occurrence 
and potential consequences, does not 
include all the risks that may ultimately 

known to us, or currently believed to be 
immaterial, could ultimately have an impact 

 i

We remain constantly vigilant to changes 
to our economic and regulatory operating 
environments, to ensure we proactively 
identify and evaluate new risks and 
understand threats to our business viability.

For the current reporting period, we 
validated the continued importance 

was done through our ongoing ability to 
aggregate and analyse risk, our functional 
collaboration, and the think tank approach 
of the Company’s Group Risk Forum.
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Principal risks Risk Potential impact Key mitigations Link to material 
issues Status

1. Consumer 
health

Failure to adapt to 
changing consumer 
health trends and 
address 
misconceptions 
about the health 
impact of soft 
drinks.

 – Failure to 
achieve our 
growth plans

 – Damage to  
our brand and 
corporate 
reputation

 – Loss of 
consumer 
base

 – Focus on product innovation
 – Expand our range of low- 

and zero-calorie beverages
 – Introduce smaller entry packs
 – Reduce the calorie content  

of products in the portfolio
 – Clearer labelling on packaging
 – Promote active lifestyles 

through consumer 
engagement programmes 
focused on health and wellness

Health and 
nutrition

Responsible 
marketing

2. Foreign 
exchange

Foreign exchange 
exposure arises 
from changes in 
exchange rates, as 
well as currency 
devaluation in 
combination with 
capital controls, 
which restricts 
movement of funds 
and increases the 
risk of asset 
impairment.

 – Financial loss
 – Asset 

impairment
 – Limitations  

on cash 
repatriation

 – Treasury Policy requires the 
hedging of 25% to 80% of 
rolling 12-month forecast 
transactional exposure 

 – Hedging beyond 12 months 
may occur if forecast 
transactions are highly probable

 –
are used, where available, to 
reduce net exposure to 

Not applicable

3. Climate, 
carbon and 
water

Failure to meet our 
stakeholders’ 
expectations in 
making a positive 
contribution to the 
sustainability 
agenda, particularly 
relating to climate 
change, packaging 

usage. 

 – Long-term 
damage to our 
corporate 
reputation

 –
in shaping the 
citizenship and 
sustainability 
agenda

 – Reduced 

 – Water stewardship 
programmes that reduce  
our water consumption and  
our footprint and assure 
sustainable end-to-end 

 – Carbon and energy 
management programmes

 – Packaging waste management 
programmes

 – Partnering with NGOs and 
International NGOs on 
common issues such as  
nature conservation

 – Partnering with local 
communities to minimise 
environmental impact

 – Focus on sustainable 
procurement 

Carbon and 
energy

Packaging, 
recycling and 
waste 
management

Sustainable 
sourcing

Water 
stewardship

4. Channel mix A continued 
increase in the 
concentration of 
retailers and 
independent 
wholesalers on 
whom we depend 
to distribute our 
products. The 
immediate 
consumption 
channel remains 
under pressure as 
consumers alter 
consumption 
habits.

 – Reduced  – Continued to increase our 
presence in the discounter 
channel during 2016

 – Working closely with our 
customers to identify 
opportunities for joint  
value creation

 – Right Execution Daily (RED) 
strategy continues to support 
our commitment to operational 
excellence, enabling us to 
respond to changing customer 
needs across all channels

Not applicable
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Principal risks Risk Potential impact Key mitigations Link to material 
issues Status

5. Declining 
consumer 
demand

Challenging and 
volatile 
macroeconomic, 
security and 
political 
conditions can 

demand and 
create security 
risks across our 
diverse mix of 
markets.

 – Eroded 
consumer 

spending
 –

pressures
 – Social unrest
 – Safety of people 

and security of 
assets

 –  
at the right price, in the right 
package through the right 
channel

 – Robust security practices and 
procedures to protect people 
and assets

 – Crisis response and business 
continuity strategies

Direct and 
indirect 
economic 
impacts

6. Discriminatory 
taxes

Regulations on 
consumer health 
and the risk of the 
targeting of our 
products for 
discriminatory tax 
and packaging 
waste recovery.

 – Reduction in  – Proactively working with 
governments and regulatory 
authorities to ensure that the 
facts are clearly understood and 
that our products are not 
singled out unfairly

 – Shaping the sustainability 
agenda as it relates to 
packaging and waste recovery

 – Engaging with stakeholders 
including NGOs and the 
communities in which we 
operate on strategies to  
protect the environment

Not applicable

7. Quality The occurrence 
of quality issues, 
or the 
contamination of 
our products.

 – Reduction in 
volume and net 
sales revenue

 – Damage to brand 
and corporate 
reputation

 – Loss of 
consumer trust

 – Stringent quality processes  
in place to minimise the 
occurrence of quality issues

 – Early warning systems 
(Consumer Information 
Centres and social media 
monitoring) that enable  

 – Robust response processes 
and systems that enable us  

with quality issues, ensuring 
customers and consumers 

products

Product 
quality and 
integrity

8. Regulatory 
challenges

Inadvertent 
non-compliance, 
by the Company 
or related third 
parties, with  
local laws and 
regulations, that 
exist across our 
diverse mix of 
markets.

 – Damage to our 
corporate 
reputation

 –

 – Management 
time diverted to 
resolving legal 
issues

 – Annual ‘Tone from the Top’ 
messaging

 –
training and awareness

 – Anti-Bribery Policy and 
commercial compliance training

 – Internal control assurance 
programme with local 
management accountability

 – Risk-based internal control 
framework

 – ‘Speak Up’ hotline
 – Legal function in constant 

dialogue with regulators

Corporate 
governance, 
business 
ethics and 
anti-
corruption

Human rights 
and diversity

Risk and materiality continued
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Principal risks Risk Potential impact Key mitigations Link to material 
issues Status

9. People and 
talent

Inability to attract and 

and experienced 
employees in 
competitive talent 
markets and an inability 
to ensure their ongoing 
engagement and 
commitment.

 – Failure to achieve our 
growth plans

 – Focus on developing  
leadership talent

 – Right people in the right 
positions across the business

 – Focus on employee 
engagement ensuring  
support for our values

 – Promote operational excellence
 – Create shared value with the 

communities in which we work 
to ensure we are seen as an 
attractive employer

Employee 
well-being 
and 
engagement

10. System 
availability 
and cyber 
attacks

Business stoppage due 
to applications or 
systems unavailability, 
or a loss of personal 
data, arising from data 
centre failure or other 
internal or external 
cyber threats and 
vulnerabilities.

 – Financial loss
 – Operational 

disruption
 – Damage to corporate 

reputation
 – Non-compliance with 

statutory data 
protection legislation

 – Monitoring, identifying and 
addressing cyber threats and 
suspicious internal computer 
activity

 – Training on information 
management and the 
protection of information

 – Disaster recovery testing and 
building resilience into our  
cyber risk programme

Not 
applicable

11. Change 
management execute major 

business 
transformations, or 
performance issues 
with third-party 
providers that we 
deploy as part of our 
business 
transformation.

 – Under-delivery of 
expected 
transformation 
results

 – Disengaged 
employees

 – Reduction in 

 –
our ability to deliver 
on strategy is 
weakened

 – Damage to corporate 
reputation

 – Project plans and change 
management strategies  
in place

 – Board and Operating 
Committee conduct regular 
tracking of the actual 
performance compared  
to business case

Not 
applicable

12. Strategic 
stakeholder 
relationships

We rely on our strategic 
relationships and 
agreements with The 
Coca-Cola Company, 
Monster Energy and 
our Premium Spirits 
partners.

 – Termination of 
agreements or 
unfavourable renewal 
terms could adversely 

 – Management focus on 

with our strategic partners
 –

partners for growth
 – Engagement in joint projects 

and business planning with  
a focus on strategic issues

 – Participation in ‘Top to Top’ 
senior management forums

Not 
applicable ––
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Our approach 
to materiality
Our strategic priorities provide the context for guiding us in 

risks faced by our business.

Determining and 
prioritising material issues

 

Stakeholder involvement

Material issues matrix
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Here we describe the importance of our material issues in the business context and how we address them, including setting and 
disclosing targets and metrics to measure progress. We have a set of commitments disclosed in this report as well as on our website 
with clear targets that the business commits to achieve by 2020, and executive compensation linked to these targets.

Economic dimension

Corporate governance, business 
ethics and anti-corruption

 
 

Direct and indirect economic 
impacts

 

Material issues matrix 
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Potential economic, social and environmental impacts on our business
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Health and nutrition

Product quality and integrity

Responsible marketing

Environmental dimension

Carbon and energy

Packaging, recycling and waste 
management

Coca-Cola HBC 
2016 Integrated Annual Report

COC016_.indb   24 3/16/17   2:31 PM

http://coca-colahellenic.com/en/investors/financial-results-and-presentations/
http://www.coca-colacompany.com/press-center/press-releases/coca-cola-announces-global-commitments-to-help-fight-obesity
http://coca-colahellenic.com/en/brands/our-commitments/about-our-commitments/
http://coca-colahellenic.com/en/operations/supply-chain/supply-chain-overview/
http://www.coca-colacompany.com/content/dam/journey/us/en/private/fileassets/pdf/our-company/responsible-marketing-policy.pdf
http://www.unesda.eu/
http://coca-colahellenic.com/en/brands/our-commitments/about-our-commitments/
http://coca-colahellenic.com/en/sustainability/environment/environment-overview/
http://coca-colahellenic.com/en/sustainability/environment/sustainable-packaging/


Sustainable sourcing

 

Water stewardship

 

 

Social dimension

Community investment 

 

 

 

 

Employee well-being 

Human rights and diversity
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Positive macroeconomic and 
industry trends
After six years of operating against 
a very challenging macroeconomic 
backdrop, we now see signs of 
improvement, with moderate GDP 

despite unemployment rates being 
high in some of our markets. The 
non-alcoholic ready-to-drink category 
is expected to return to growth in our 
territory, with acceleration post 2017. 
With such a vast geographic footprint, 
trading conditions vary from market to 
market. However, the average forecast 
industry volume growth for 2016-2020 
is 1.5% p.a.

+1.5% p.a. 
2016-2020 NARTD volume growth

Market review

Staying on top by successfully 
addressing evolving trends 
and preferences

Health concerns and regulatory environment
Consumer concerns over calorie intake, 

continue to escalate, shifting demand 
towards low-calorie, organic or more 

traditional 
products. Childhood obesity and diet-
related health conditions are the focus of 
campaigns urging governments to take 
action. Regulatory bodies are responding 
with a range of measures from clear 
nutritional labelling to taxing products 
with sugar.

Focus on sustainable practices
Today’s consumers have an inherent 
expectation that the companies behind 
the brands they choose are ethical and 
follow responsible business practices. 

Synergies between suppliers and 
retailers, along with stricter regulations, 
help elevate product sustainability in all 
aspects of the supply chain. 

66%
Global respondents willing to  

pay more for sustainable products

Sustainability (March 2015 – online survey to  
60 countries worldwide)

Changing consumer habits 
We notice a growing reliance on 
digital communications among our 
consumers, changing the way they 
perceive and connect with brands. 
Eating habits are changing as well; 
there is a shift towards eating quick, 
solitary, yet healthy meals anytime 

times and eating with others. Limited 
disposable income increases focus 
on purchases that represent value 
for money and maintains the trend of 
shopping locally with small baskets.

Dynamic retail environment 
Channel dynamics are shifting 
towards organised trade with gradual 
consolidation of retailers, the growth 
of discounters and weakening 
performance of big-box grocery stores. 
Retailers invest in customer loyalty with 
sophisticated promotion plans. Online 

opportunity for growth for the consumer 
goods industry. 

15% – 25% 
 

size in Europe by 2025

Source: Bain & Company, April 2016

55%
Individuals in the European 
Union aged 16-74 who have 
purchased online in the past 

12 months

Source: Eurostat, 2016

59% 
Europeans who never or seldom  

play sport or exercise

Source: Eurobarometer, March 2014
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We remain agile by keeping on top of macroeconomic trends and changes 

 – Promoting innovative new sparkling beverage 
recipes with lower calories or no sugar. 

 –

occasion, including packs for small baskets. 

 – Providing and shaping choice, with a balanced 
portfolio in which still beverages such as water 
and juice account for 30% of our volume.

Ensuring sustainable 
volume growth

 – Expanding route-to-market, 
with optimal service to each 
customer based on their 
potential. 

 – Executing in-store with 
excellence in order to fully 
capitalise on each customer’s 
potential. 

 – Creating joint value with 
customers by understanding 
and prioritising various 
occasions of consumption 

and working together to grow 
overall sales volume.

 – Investing in water, which has 
excellent growth prospects 
for the years to come, with a 
continuous focus on value. 

Forming a lean organisation that allows for 
operating leverage

 – Continuing production 
optimisation, by 
consolidating our 
production plants 
without losing capacity.

 – Achieving logistics 
optimisation, by 
reducing the number 
of warehouses and 
distribution centres and 
by outsourcing.

 – Leveraging the SAP 
platform across the 

 – Increasing productivity 
by harmonising formulas 
and packages.

Focusing on value growth
 – Capitalising on meals 

and socialising occasions 
with Meals and Coke. 
Value is driven by 
creating associations 
with food and activating 
single-serve packs.

 – Improving our package 
mix by growing 
single-serve package 
contribution to our 
total volume through 
numerous initiatives 
including investment 
in coolers.

 – Capturing the growth 
opportunity in hotels, 
restaurants and cafes 
(HoReCa), where we 
achieve higher revenue 
per case.

 – Implementing 
sophisticated pricing 
strategies, supported 
by the gradual recovery 

disposable income.

Integrating sustainability into the way we do business
 – Promoting clear facts about our 

products, including transparent 
nutritional labelling.

 – Ensuring superior quality and 
taste in our products, as a result 
of rigorous controls.

 – Marketing responsibly, including 
no advertising to children under 
12 anywhere in our markets.

 – Investing in community 
programmes that create shared 
value for our business and our 
stakeholders. 

 – Minimising our environmental 
impact by consistently reducing 
our water and energy use and 
carbon emissions.

-260 bps
Reduction in comparable 

operating expense as 
 % of NSR since 2008

30%
Reduction in calories in 

Fanta, Sprite and Nestea  
since 2010

+5.5pp 
RED score in 2016

+2.9% 
revenue per case

€7.3m
Given to socially  

responsible  
programmes in 2016
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Established markets

Focusing on value 
and execution 

Highlights for the year
2016 2015 % change

Volume (million unit cases) 606.6 621.1 -2.3%
(€ million) 2,407.8 2,485.6 -3.1%

236.8 171.3
(€ million) 242.3 198.8 21.9%

Total taxes (€ million) 120.7 105.7 14.1%
Population (million) 91.3 90.8 0.6%

(US$) 36,349 35,843 1.4%
(number) 13 14 -7.1%

(number) 6,744 6,642 1.5%
(billion litres) 5.4 5.3 1.9%

(tonnes) 114,329 125,859 -9.2%
(lost time accidents 

>1 day per 100 employees) 0.94 1.14 -17.5%

1. Total taxes includes corporate income tax, withholding tax and deferred tax, as well as social security costs and 

ISTAT (Italian National Institute of Statistics).

Percentage changes are calculated on precise numbers.

Established markets 
volume breakdown

Italy: 42%
Greece: 17%
Austria: 14%
Switzerland: 12%
Ireland: 12%
Cyprus: 3%

In our Established markets segment, 
volume declines and negative currency 

infrastructure and contain costs.

Volume decline of 2.3% was primarily 
driven by the water category, following the 
delisting of our low-value water brands in 
Italy and cooler summer weather compared 
to the very hot summer in 2015 that had 
fuelled water category growth, as well as 
lower volume in the sparkling category. The 
launches of Monster, Coke Life and a new 

Life in Austria, supported consumer choice 

Schweppes sales also performed well.

of lower volume, negative currency 
impact, price mix deterioration in an 

negative channel mix, we succeeded in 
improving both category and package mix. 
Increased sales of high-value, single-serve 
packs, driven by our initiatives in the 
immediate consumption channel, were 
particularly notable.

initiatives, lower operating expenses and 

the negative impact of lower volume and 
pricing pressure. Comparable operating 

leading to a 210 basis-point expansion in the 
Established markets’ comparable operating 

Comparable EBIT margin 
vs. 2015

+210 bps

FX-neutral NSR per u.c. 
improvement

+0.3%

Volume vs. 2015

-2.3%
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volume. Can you explain some of the 
initiatives that helped achieve this?
This performance is indicative of what we expect to happen in the 
Established markets. Our practice during the last few years is to focus 
on what we can control, so we have taken many initiatives to take cost 
out. Most of our infrastructure and logistics optimisation in Europe has 
been completed, giving us very powerful operating leverage. In addition 

by successful procurement decisions like locking sugar prices in at the 
right moment, commercial initiatives like delisting lower-value water 
brands in Italy, and our operating expense control.

How can this segment with mature Western 
European markets support top-line growth in 
the future? Do you see any risk in your sales 
volume growth assumptions?

volume growth in the years to come, driven 
by improving GDP per capita and abating 

growing health awareness and stricter 

our performance. As a response, 

management strategy, we focus 

consumers with more choices. 
Top-line growth in the Established 
markets is expected to come 
mostly from category and price 
mix and, to a lesser extent, from 

Sotiris Yannopoulos
Region Director

Supporting cycling culture in Ireland 
In Ireland, more than 15 million journeys have been 

initiative launched in 2009. Our support extends 

and Limerick and is part of our commitment to 

initiatives, about 13,000 cycle journeys are taken on 

Optimising water portfolio in Italy
Early in the year, we determined that low-value water 
brands should be removed from the Italian market. 
The decision was driven by the need to optimise 
our water portfolio in the country in line with our 

we have seen healthy growth in volume for the 
Lilia and Sveva brands which we continue to sell in 

from improvement in single-serve pack sales 
th in the years to come, driven 
GDP per capita and abating 

alth awareness and stricter 

mance. As a response, 

ment strategy, we focus 

ers with more choices. 
e growth in the Established 
s is expected to come
from category and price 

d, to a lesser extent, from 

otiris Yannopoulos
egion Director
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Developing markets

Highlights for the year
2016 2015 % change

Volume (million unit cases) 383.5 378.7 1.3%
(€ million) 1,094.2 1,092.0 0.2%

 (€ million) 92.9 87.4 6.3%
(€ million) 97.1 98.6 -1.5%

Total taxes (€ million) 54.0 56.0 -3.4%
Population (million) 76.0 76.0 –
GDP per capita (US$) 13,861 13,756 0.8%

(number) 8 9 -11.1%
(number) 4,980 5,315 -6.3%

(billion litres) 2.2 2.3 -4.3%
(tonnes) 89,323 108,404 -17.6%

(lost time accidents 
>1 day per 100 employees) 0.66 0.54 22.2%

1. Total taxes includes corporate income tax, withholding tax and deferred tax, as well as social security costs and 

Percentage changes are calculated on precise numbers. 

Developing markets 
volume breakdown

Poland: 44%
Hungary: 22%
Czech Republic: 13%
Baltics: 7%
Croatia: 7%
Slovakia: 5%
Slovenia: 2%

While volume and net sales revenue 
improved in our Developing markets 
segment for 2016, channel and  
price mix, particularly in Poland, 

Positive developments in package and 
category mix, particularly in Hungary, helped 

more sales through the organised trade.

We experienced growth in nearly all 
markets, driven by the sparkling and energy 
categories. Unit case volumes for the 
segment increased by 1.3% compared with 
the prior year. To support sparkling category 

with new formula and new packaging, and 
Sprite Zero in Hungary, both of which did 
very well.

Net sales revenue increased by 0.2% driven 
by volume growth and favourable category 

unfavourable currency impact, arising mainly 
from the Polish Zloty, as well as unfavourable 

basis, net sales revenue per unit case rose 
by 0.6% in 2016 compared to the prior year.

Improved volume with favourable brand 

adverse currency impact, as well as the 
negative impact from price and channel 

the segment decreased by 20 basis points 

increased by 6.3% to €92.9 million.

Continuing volume growth

Volume vs. 2015

+1.3%

Comparable EBIT 
margin vs. 2015

+20bps

FX-neutral NSR per 
u.c. improvement

+0.6%
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Revenue per case has been weak in this 
segment. What can you do to improve 

It is normal to have lower revenue per case in this segment in 
comparison to the Established markets as these markets have lower 
disposable income levels. Having said that, we are optimistic that we will 
see value growth in this segment supported by the favourable GDP per 

by our selective pricing strategy, the trend towards single-serve 
packages and fast-growing categories such as Energy.

What are the retail trends in the 

demand for greater convenience, accelerating growth in sales for the 

an opportunity for us to increase our product availability and capture 

it is from a small base. However, we are actively working with our 
customers to capture this growth, and we are very pleased to have won 
the National Sales Award for e-commerce in Poland. Sales at larger 
stores will continue to grow, although we believe this will 

on partnering with our customers to improve 

of trends, including growing urbanisation, 
more people living alone and increases 
in disposable income mean that out-of-
home consumption will become more and 
more important. We seek to capture this 
potential by ensuring a 24/7 activation of 
the eating out and drinking out occasions, 
leveraging our rich beverage portfolio 
and building further relevancy for our 
leading brands.

Keith Sanders
Region Director

Package initiative in Hungary
In Hungary, we updated our pack and price architecture to 
address declines in purchase frequency and market share 
for the at-home occasion. By modifying the PET plastic 
packages of our sparkling drinks from 1.0 to 1.25 litres, from 
2.0 to 1.75 litres and from 2.5 to 2.25 litres, and by carefully 
selecting price points, we increased household penetration 
by more than 5% and gained 1% in market share. We also 
succeeded in increasing transactions faster than volume.
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Emerging markets

Growing despite the 
decline in Russia

Highlights for the year
2016 2015 % change

Volume (million unit cases) 1,067.8 1,055.2 1.2%
(€ million) 2,717.0 2,768.5 -1.9%

 (€ million) 176.6 159.5 10.7%
(€ million) 178.1 175.8 1.3%

Total taxes1(€ million) 106.4 108.9 -2.3%
Population (million) 428.0 426.0 0.5%
GDP per capita(US$) 5,020 5,393 -6.9%

(number) 35 36 -2.8%
(number) 19,359 21,354 -9.3%

(billion litres) 10.5 10.8 -2.8%
(tonnes) 383,604 400,647 -4.3%

(lost time accidents 
>1 day per 100 employees) 0.24 0.19 26.3%

1. Total taxes includes corporate income tax, withholding tax and deferred tax, as well as social security costs and 

Percentage changes are calculated on precise numbers.

Emerging markets 
volume breakdown

Russian Federation: 32%
Nigeria: 24%
Romania: 16%
Serbia and
Montenegro: 9%
Ukraine: 8%
Bulgaria: 5%
Belarus: 3%
Bosnia and
Herzegovina: 2%
Armenia: 1%
Moldova: 1%

Our focus on customer service 
and pricing strategies to maintain 

headwinds, led by devaluations of both 
the Russian rouble and the Nigerian naira.

Overall unit case volume increased in our 
Emerging markets segment by 1.2% in 
2016 compared with the prior year. This 
was largely due to strong growth in Nigeria, 
Romania and Serbia. In Nigeria, where 
currency issues have led to substantial 

to ensure pricing is sustainable and our 
products remain relevant for consumers. In 
Romania, rebalancing our route-to-market 
model and enhancing service has helped 
lift sales volume. Meanwhile, our volumes 
in Russia continued to be weak, despite 
excellent growth of the Energy category 
following the launch of Monster.

Net sales revenue declined by 1.9% in 
2016 compared with the prior year. This 

environment, increased volume and positive 

net sales revenue per case grew by 7.1%, 

improved pricing in markets where we face 
currency headwinds.

The Emerging markets segment delivered 
a 1.3% increase in comparable operating 

improvement in the comparable operating 
margin, which was 6.6%. Improved price and 

impact as well as higher input costs. On a 

this segment was €176.6 million in 2016, 
an increase of 10.7% compared to the 
prior year.

Volume vs. 2015

+1.2%

Comparable EBIT 
margin vs. 2015

+20bps

FX-neutral NSR per 
u.c. improvement

+7.1%
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What is the latest on potential sugar tax 
implementation in Russia? How would the tax 

The Russian government has halted the implementation of sugar 
tax on certain soft drinks in 2017 and has postponed the discussion 

year. However, experience from other markets where similar taxes 
have been implemented, like Mexico, shows that volumes recover in 
year two. Our expectation, therefore, is that this will not have any long-
term impact on our sales volume and we see no reason to change our 
2020 targets.

your expectations for the short to medium 
term in Nigeria?
The macroeconomic conditions in Nigeria remain 

reach 17% in 2017 and the likelihood of a 
further devaluation of the naira. In line 
with our strategy, we implemented price 

focused approach with ‘magic price  
points’ and changes in package  

impact sales volume growth adversely. 
We expect to see volume growth from 
2018 onwards, supported by a return 
to GDP growth in the country. We 
will also continue with infrastructure 
optimisation initiatives to take cost out 

Zoran Bogdanovic
Region Director

Expanding and deepening route-to-market  
in Romania
Changes in the retail landscape in Romania gave us an 
opportunity to rebalance our route-to-market model in the 
country. Through the new route-to-market solution, we 
upgraded service to existing and new customers with the 
highest potential (platinum and gold), selling an additional 
1.6 million cases through better execution. We also 
expanded distribution to an additional 10,000 outlets by 
better leveraging our wholesale partners, increasing sales by 
an additional 600,000 unit cases. We achieved all this while 
improving our ability to execute in-store with excellence in 
Romania, increasing execution performance as measured 
by our internal Right Execution Daily (RED) system.
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Unlocking our 
talent potential

Our people are fundamental to our growth and our ability to create value. 
Their skills and expertise are critical to creating and executing strategies, 

deliver results, build relationships and secure our Company’s reputation. 

advantage of opportunities to learn, grow and take charge of their careers.

Direct employment

31,083
2015: 33,311

Values index

90%
2015: 88%

Key people in key positions

87%
2015: 79%

People
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By hiring the right people and supporting 
them to grow, deliver on our strategy and 
go the extra mile, we are able to connect 
with communities, provide excellent 
customer service and bring smiles to the 
faces of consumers. Our leadership plays 
an essential role in this, with every leader 
accountable for attracting, developing, 
retaining and engaging the right talent and 
then enabling them to execute our strategy. 

To ensure that we achieve our Company 
objectives, our people strategy emphasises 
workforce engagement and Company 

capabilities, leadership and talent that are 
necessary to pursue our strategic priorities. 
Our people strategy has three key areas 
of focus:

 – maintaining high employee engagement 
and fostering a high-performance 
Company culture: We believe our 
Company will thrive if we all strive for 
best-in-class performance. To achieve 
this, we focus on winning together 
through understanding and delivering on 
our strategy, enjoying ownership of our 
work, removing organisational barriers 
to success and living our Company 
values, acting with integrity and doing 
what is right, not just what is easy;

 – strengthening capabilities: We are 
focused more than ever on skills and 
capabilities that will make our workforce 
capable of winning in the marketplace 

means building capabilities in the crucial 
areas of revenue growth management, 
route-to-market, front-line execution 
and inspirational leadership; and

 – developing talents: We believe that our 
ability to develop leaders internally is 
an important competitive advantage. 
We therefore seek to build a strong 
bench of inspirational leaders across all 
leadership levels to ensure continuity and 
long-term growth for our business. We 
will continue creating opportunities for 
faster development, building the correct 
knowledge, skills and experience, whilst 
embedding our values.

Maintaining high employee 
engagement

important to our Company performance. 
Because we know how valuable our 
employees’ contributions are, we invest 
in and closely monitor engagement levels. 
We conduct an employee engagement 
survey annually, and we partner with 
Willis Towers Watson to benchmark our 
performance against other companies 
in the Coca-Cola System and other high-
performing companies.

Key highlights
 – Our employee engagement score 

increased to 88%, which, as the 

other high-performing companies, 

people to our business and our 
Company culture

 – We have improved individual 
and team performance by 
simplifying and strengthening 

 –
in building our revenue growth 
management capabilities

 – We improved the talent pool working 
in our key positions, aided by the 

Three key areas 
supporting growth

 – Maintain high employee engagement 
by fostering a high-performance 
mindset and strong Company culture

 – Strengthen capabilities with 
special focus on revenue 
growth management

 – Develop future leaders faster and 
build a learning organisation to 
maximise performance

grow and win together

Employee engagement: 
outperforming peer companies (%)

companies represents those companies participating 
in Willis Towers Watson benchmarking. This does not 
include all FTSE 100 companies.
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Our Sustainable Engagement Index score 
increased to 88% in 2016 from 87% in the 
prior year, with the participation of 96% of 
our people.

Our engagement results for 2016 were 
higher than those of other companies in the 
Willis Towers Watson benchmarking pool of 
high-performing companies. They are also 
7% higher than the average results for FTSE 
100 companies participating in this pool and 
higher than the results of other companies 
in the Coca-Cola System.
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People continued

Fostering a high-
performance culture
Everything in our Company starts with our 
six core values: authenticity, excellence, 
learning, caring for our people, performing 
as one and winning with customers. 

As is the case with employee engagement, 
we closely monitor our progress in 
embedding and living our values. To further 
embed our values, which are an integral part 

important behaviours that our people are 
expected to demonstrate daily as they go 
about their work, such as treating others 

the essential building blocks of our 
Company culture and high-performance 

behaviours we aim to eliminate. Our 

awareness of and commitment to our 
values. We measure this using our Values 
index which was at 90% for 2016,  
a 2% increase from 2015. 

performance framework and integrated 
all components with the aim of increasing 
individual, team and Company performance, 
while strengthening Company culture. The 
revised framework links team performance 
and individual results, actions and skills, and 
aligns to our six core values.

Our team performance management 
system allows us to bridge strategy and 
its execution by aligning priorities across 

iterative ‘plan, act and review’ cycle to 
improve output continuously. In 2016, 
we standardised our approach across 
our territory.

To ensure that our people balance short- 
and long-term objectives at individual 
level, in addition to assessing performance 

objectives and measure achievement 
for innovation, fostering of partnerships, 
people leadership, managing resources, and 
compliance with policies and procedures like 
our Code of Business Conduct. The  

performance standards for each leadership 
level within the organisation creates a line of 
sight between our values and our results.

Strengthening capabilities 
and building a learning 
organisation

organisational capabilities that are 
important across our Company and 
required to execute our strategy and drive 
growth in each of our markets. We are 
building prioritised capabilities such as 
revenue growth management and route-
to-market by improving our processes, 
structures and measurement system  
as well as the skills of our people.

during 2016 in acquiring and building 
revenue growth management capabilities.

Driven by the needs of our business 

learning needs to happen to be the 
most impactful and what we need to 
develop, focusing on prioritised skills 

can accelerate the performance of all 
our people. Our new learning support 
application will enable us to make knowledge 
even more available to all our people, 
democratising leaming, accelerating 

their potential.

Developing talents
Our leaders are becoming better talent 
champions, increasing their commitment 

performance standards introduced in 
2016 and reallocation of resources within 

further professionalised our approach by 
establishing new centres of expertise for 
talent acquisition and development, and 
leadership development and capabilities. 
These centres are responsible for 
recruitment and development across the 
business, going beyond policy creation. 
This design ensures that we support our 
leaders in developing future leaders in 

Not all positions have the same impact 
on the Company’s performance. We have 

the key positions across all levels that 
have a disproportionately high impact 
on the Company’s performance. Career 
progression in our Company depends on 
performance against standards, potential 
and alignment with core values.

We regularly assess the performance 
and potential of leaders and people in key 
positions. As of the end of 2016, 87% of our 
key positions are occupied by key people, 
compared with 79% at the end of 2015.

Talent pipeline improved
2016 2015

Key people in key positions (KPo) 87% 79%
KPo succession rate 0.67 0.70
KPo bench strength 50% 45%
Turnover of key people 5% 4%
Total turnover rate 12% 12%
Retention of all new hires after 12 months 82% 69%
Management trainees 231 254
Participants in Fast Forward programmes 902 770
Promotion rate for Fast Forward programme participants 71% 55%
Total number of employees in leadership acceleration centres 3,525 2,084
% of workforce covered during annual people review 46% 46%
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Leadership acceleration centres have been 
established to help our people understand 
their strengths and the areas of opportunity 
for their development in their current and 
future roles. Participation in these has been 
scaled up in the past few years, reaching 
3,525 employees in 2016.

To accelerate the development of our future 

help build new skills required for their next 
role through our Fast Forward Programmes, 
which reached 902 employees during 
the year.

Championing inclusion, 

We believe that fostering a workforce 

is essential to remaining the strategic 
partner of choice for all of our customers. 

diverse range of people who work for us, 
serving a broad geographic footprint and 
a wide spectrum of communities. This is 
why we actively seek to attract and retain 
employees from a range of backgrounds, 

We know that to maximise everyone’s 
contribution, we need to ensure that every 
employee feels respected and heard. This 
is why respect for individuals is at the core 
of our values, and why we foster behaviours 
that create an inclusive culture. These 
behaviours are enshrined in our formal 
Inclusion and Diversity Policy, our Code of 
Business Conduct and our Human Rights 
Policy. To increase understanding and 
engagement, we encourage cross-cultural 
and cross-country exchanges within our 
talent pool.

At the end of 2016, 33% of leadership roles 
in our Company were held by women, which 
was consistent with 2015. We continue to 
support the diversity of our talent pipeline 
with a policy that ensures the recruitment 
of a balanced number of male and female 
management trainees. In keeping with this 
approach, 54% of the 231 management 
trainees we hired in 2016 were women.

success of women in management, our 
business unit covering Northern Ireland 
and the Republic of Ireland supports high-
potential women to develop their business 

The programme, called Elevating Women in 
Leadership, provides personal development 
planning and coaching support to aspiring 

female leaders, and has been well received 
by participants. We aim to introduce similar 
programmes in 2017 across our territory.

Respect for human rights is fundamental 
to our Company’s sustainability and to 
the communities in which we operate. 
Our Human Rights Policy is guided by 
international human rights principles and 
covers critical issues including diversity, 

In 2016, we made our Human Rights Policy 
available in the 23 languages used in our 
28 countries and distributed it to promote 
awareness and understanding of our 
commitment to ensure people are treated 
with dignity and respect.

Well-being and safety
We believe that having healthy, happy, 
engaged people supports our business. 

range of initiatives to help support our 
employees’ physical, emotional, social and 

lives, for example, we subsidise gym 

encourage participation in Company and 
community sporting events and healthy 
living programmes.

While we are focused on improving the 
overall well-being of our people, we know 
this begins with providing a safe workplace.

During 2016, we achieved a 3% reduction 
in employee accidents, resulting in 

consecutive year. 

While we continue to improve our focus on 
health and safety and workplace conditions, 
we regret that one employee (in the Czech 
Republic) and three contractors lost their 

accidents in 2016. 

After analysing the causes of these 
accidents, we concluded that more could be 
done to foster health and safety across our 
Company. In 2016, in co-operation with The 
Coca-Cola Company, we launched a new 
behaviour-based safety (BBS) programme 
to create a truly proactive safety culture.

This new programme will be piloted in 
locations in Italy, Hungary and Northern 
Ireland during 2017, and will subsequently 
be introduced across the Company by the 
end of 2018.

We continue to strengthen our vehicle 
safety programmes to further improve 

15,000 employees who drive on Company 
business received training through an 
e-learning platform. We have also continued 
installing collision avoidance technology 

equipped with collision driver warning 
technology to avoid collisions.

of accidents per million kilometres 
travelled fell 15% in 2016 compared to 
2015. This was our fourth consecutive 
year of improvement, resulting in an 
accumulated reduction of 53%. 

53% improvement  

Number of lost time accidents 
(LTA>1 days)

138
3% reduction vs. 2015

Absenteeism days per 

1.71
57% reduction vs. 2015

Fleet accidents per million 
kilometres travelled

4.22
15% reduction vs. 2015

Accidents per million kilometres travelled.
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Trusted by 
our communities

We build trust by operating a responsible, sustainable business, 

Community trust
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We have a long history of bringing people 
together and working towards a shared 
vision through our support of community 
programmes. Over the years, our 
community initiatives have evolved from 
philanthropic contributions to value-adding, 
long-term programmes linked to the 
business strategy to create shared value 
and measurable, positive impact.

We work to support our communities by 
providing funds for programmes, creating 
lasting partnerships and encouraging 
employee volunteering. Our community 
investment focuses on three key strategic 

existing societal and environmental needs 

1. Community well-being
2. Environmental and water stewardship 
3. Youth development

When the need arises, we are also active 

to provide relief directly or through 
stakeholder partnerships.

In September 2016, we set seven new 

strategic areas described above. 

our communities, equivalent to 1.6% of our 

1.0%, and puts us in a good position to 
achieve the target of 2% of annual pre-tax 

our 2020 sustainability commitments, 
please see page 22 and our website.

While we have a long history of facilitating 
employee volunteering by encouraging 
employees to spend work time contributing 
to community projects and programmes, 

Operating a responsible 

 –
banks and beaches cleaned and 

 – More than 152,000 trees planted 

of land in need of reforestation

 –

Material issues
 – Community investment 

and engagement

 – Corporate governance, business 
ethics and anti-corruption

 – Direct and indirect economic impacts

 – Health and nutrition

 – Responsible marketing

 – Product quality and integrity

 – Carbon and energy

 – Packaging recycling 

 – Sustainable sourcing

 – Water stewardship

 – Employee well-being 
and engagement

 – Human rights and diversity

in the communities where we operate. We 
create value and foster trust by managing 
our business responsibly and sustainably, 
and by helping to solve societal challenges. 
In 2016, we set new long-term sustainability 
targets, committing to do even more. 

creativity, innovation and resources in 

challenges where we have a strategic 
interest or special expertise, we increase 
our chance of successfully creating shared 

strive to partner with our stakeholders and 
communities, leveraging our combined 
expertise, and inspire and engage our 
employees and business partners to 
support our community investment 

community programmes through strategic 
partnerships with civil and governmental 
organisations, and through setting targets 
and regularly assessing output and impacts, 
where possible. During 2016, we partnered 

Cross, the International Commission for the 
Preservation of the Danube River, the World 

we make the most substantial contributions 
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installation of free active zones, walking 
trails and paths, and implementation or 
expansion of bike share programmes, as 

Water is the most important ingredient in 
our products, and we believe everyone has 
a right to clean, safe water and sanitation 
wherever they live. Our 2020 sustainability 
targets therefore include improving our 
water intensity ratio by 30% compared 
to 2010.

stewardship programmes involve detailed 
source vulnerability assessments and 
source water protection plans, which are 
performed for all of our manufacturing sites.

Our target is to certify all of our plants 
in accordance with either the European 
Water Stewardship or the Alliance for 

for all of our mineral water sites in Austria, 

Italy, Poland, Romania, Serbia, Switzerland 

an example and raises the bar for the 
whole industry.

through wetlands, biodiversity and 
ecological processes at the watersheds, 
to waste water treatment and sanitation 
after our water use, all activities are done 
engaging local water users, authorities and 
other key stakeholders in the community. 
Our water stewardship strategy drives our 
partnerships with environmental ministries 
as well as intergovernmental and civil 
organisations to preserve and protect 
important ecosystems, such as watersheds 
and wetlands in key regions and river basins, 
such as the Danube, the Volga, and the Sava 
among others.

Danube initiative increases awareness of the 
wetland habitat, including the preservation 

and the environment. In 2016, awareness-
raising events to encourage citizens to 
protect the Danube river were held in 

held in partnership with the International 
Commission for the Protection of the 

celebration of Danube Day, in collaboration 
with citizens, governments, civil 
organisations and businesses. 

System to replenish 100% of the water 

number of water initiatives in our markets. 

operations, and other projects conducted 

Mediterranean, we replenished 182% of the 

Community trust continued

Restoring Europe’s largest bog

caused by too much drainage were 
impacting migrating bird populations, 

absorb CO
2

volunteers who helped build dams and 
close drainage. More than 50 dams have 
been built, enabling water levels to rise by 
a metre and 23,000 tonnes of CO

2
 to be 

absorbed annually.

Charitable contribution: 11%
Community investment: 81%
Commercial initiative: 8%

Contributions

Cash contributions: 82%
In-kind contributions: 16%
Time contributions: 2%

in 2016 we introduced a new 2020 target 
to double the number of employees who 
volunteer, aiming to reach 10% of all of 

employees participated in Coca-Cola 

On top of contributing to locally relevant 
community programmes, we believe that 
employee volunteering can also provide 
experiential learning and development 
opportunities for our employees as well 

engagement and well-being. 

We continue to support initiatives across 
our 28 countries to improve community 
well-being. We work with our communities 
in every country to safeguard and enhance 
their well-being and quality of life, supporting 
events and social gatherings. 

Some of the initiatives we have undertaken 
to encourage physical activity and support 
the desire for more sustainable and liveable 
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While we see water as a material issue 
for both our Company and society, we 
also engage in other environmental 
protection initiatives of various kinds in our 
communities. With the dedicated support 

shores and cleaned more than 1,164 

2016. During the same time period, we 
 

planting over 152,000 trees in more than 

We passionately believe in the potential of 
young people and we know that they are the 
future leaders and change-makers of the 
communities that we live in.

communities face is unemployment. Across 
the countries where we operate, about a 
quarter of young people are unemployed. 

range from about 3% in Switzerland in 2016 

In 15 out of the 28 countries we do business 
in, youth unemployment is 15% or more.

we serve are young people between 18 
and 30 years old. We also employ many 
young people, and a challenge we face as 
a business is to ensure our ability to attract 
talent to support business growth over time. 

We are a substantial employer, with more 
than 31,000 direct employees, and are also 
part of a large supply chain with many large 
and small employers, and customers which 
employ young people. 

internships and management trainee 
programmes, and provided skills training 
and access to funding for underprivileged 
individuals in our countries of operation.

strategic initiative to help support 18-to-
30-year-olds achieve their career ambitions 
and live a fuller life.

recent school graduates with useful 

adults better understand their key strengths 
and prepare for future careers. In 2016, 180 
young Italians received training, nearly half of 
whom were women.

Supporting education and 

students to help build entrepreneurial skills, 
establishing 50 new workplaces through 

prepare young people to serve as teachers, 

improve performance. Read more about our 2020 sustainability commitments on page 5

are not in education, employment or 
training and seeks to address persistent 
underemployment issues in some of our 

needs in their transition from school to 
meaningful employment by helping them 
build fundamental life and business skills and 
long-lasting professional and peer networks.

combination of online engagement, 
e-learning and in-class sessions in a number 
of our countries, which will be implemented 

tuning based on initial learnings.

Recover for 
recycling an 

average of 40% of 
total packaging 
we introduce to 

our markets 

Invest 2% of our 
annual pre-tax 

communities

Double the 
number of 
employees 

taking part in 
volunteering 

initiatives during 
work time to 
10% of our 

people 

Reduce direct 
carbon emissions 
intensity by 50% 

Reduce carbon 
emissions 

intensity in the 
value chain by 

25% 

Certify all of our 
plants in European 
Water Stewardship 

or Alliance for Water 
Stewardship 

standard

 
 

2020 sustainability 
commitments

i
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Consumer relevance

Remaining 
relevant for 

our consumers

product portfolio and we have an exciting pipeline of new products 

distribution, we also help to ensure that consumers are delighted 

 
growth 

21%
Single-serve mix  

improvement

+140bps
Reduction in complaints  

8%
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To excite and satisfy our consumers, we 

 
 

Meeting consumer needs  
for all occasions

Focus on building 
consumption occasions

 –

 –

 –

Material issues
 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –
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to connect to consumers and increase 

Water contribution  
to our portfolio

18%

Coolers placed in  

81,000

New Fanta bottle  

22%

 

0

5

10

15

20

2015 2016

Other energy brands

Existing Monster territory

New Monster launches

Energy growth 

+21%

Organic Monster 

growth +29%
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Complaints per Share of single-serve 

Sparkling

Total

38.9

41.5
39.2

42.3
39.9

43.1
40.3

44.7
41.7

41.3

+3.4pp
+2.8pp

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

0

5

10

15

20

25

30 28.96

22.24 21.74
19.48

17.90

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Strategic R
epo

rt
C

o
rpo

rate G
o

vernance
Financial Statem

ents
Coca-Cola HBC

2016 Integrated Annual Report

Sw
iss Statuto

ry R
epo

rting
Supplem

entary Info
rm

atio
n

COC016_.indb   45 3/16/17   2:34 PM



Preferred 
supplier for 

our customers

DIFOTAI

Deliver in full, on time and Met or exceeded customer 
expectations commercial team

88%
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Customer preference

relationships

customer partnership

Exceeding customer 
expectations

 –

 –

Material issues
 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

An approach to execute in-store 
with excellence

0
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Countries with >35% numerical coverage 

CCH countries with RED framework
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Customer partnership

Improving return on investment
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Remaining 
focused on 

Reduction in number of  
plants since 2008

-30%
Improvement in water  

use ratio
Plants that have eliminated  

4

Cost leadership

Strategic R
epo

rt
C

o
rpo

rate G
o

vernance
Financial Statem

ents
Coca-Cola HBC

2016 Integrated Annual Report

Sw
iss Statuto

ry R
epo

rting
Supplem

entary Info
rm

atio
n

Strategic repo
rt

Coca-Cola HBC
2016 Integrated Annual Report

COC016_.indb   49 3/16/17   2:34 PM



Producing economic value 
with less resource

Infrastructure optimisation

 –

 –
and Russia

 –

 –  
commitments

Material issues
 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

Infrastructure optimisation in Europe
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to our customers and consumers, and 

administration and customer master data 

Take 40% of the 
total energy we 

use from 
renewable and 

clean energy 
sources

Recover for 
recycling an 

average of 40% of 
total packaging we 

introduce to our 
markets 

Source 20% of the 
total PET we use 

from recycled PET 
and/or PET from 

renewable material 

Reduce packaging by 
25% per litre of 

beverage produced 

Certify over 
95% of our key 

agricultural ingredients 
against the Coca-Cola 
System’s Sustainable 
Agricultural Guiding 

Principles 

Reduce water use 
internally by 30% 

How Cost 

commitments

i
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 –

 – increased automatic customer 

 –

 –

Cash generation

Partnering with our 
suppliers

waste management
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Water use ratio in plants 

CO2  
2

CO2  
2

Operational water footprint 

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

2010

2.30

2014 2015 2016 Target
2017

2020
Goal

2.11
2.00 1.93

1.61
1.86

-30%
vs. 2010

0

15

30

45

60

75

90

2010 2014 2015 2016 Target
2017

2020
Goal

78.3

62.6

53.7
50.4

39.1

48.3

-50%
vs. 2010

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

2010 2014 2015 2016 Target
2017

2020
Goal

441

378
353 351 331345

-25%
vs. 2010

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

51.7

18.4 18.4 18.1
12.9

17.8

-75%
vs. 2004

2004 2014 2015 2016 Target
2017

2020
Goal

 

 

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

5.0

0.76 0.76
0.51 0.500.50

-90%
vs. 2004

2004 2014 2015 2016 Target
2017

2020
Goal

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6 0.57

0.47
0.44 0.43

0.30

0.40

-47%
vs. 2010

2010 2014 2015 2016 Target
2017

2020
Goal

Strategic R
epo

rt
C

o
rpo

rate G
o

vernance
Financial Statem

ents
Coca-Cola HBC

2016 Integrated Annual Report

Sw
iss Statuto

ry R
epo

rting
Supplem

entary Info
rm

atio
n

COC016_.indb   53 3/16/17   2:34 PM



Financial review

Michalis Imellos

Another year 

growth in 
margins 

FX-neutral revenue growth

+3.0%

€518m
Comparable EBIT margin 

improvement

+90bps

€431m
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We are pleased to report 
another year of good 
progress in margins, with 
the business developing 
in line with our 2020 

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

2016 2015 
 

2,058
6,219

3.02

3.02
506
518
8.1
8.3

344
352

0.972

2016 
€ million

2015 

Assets
4,504
2,061

Total assets 6,565
Liabilities

1,968
1,727

Total liabilities 3,695
Equity

2,866
5 4

Total equity 2,870
Total equity and liabilities 6,565
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Dividend

2016 
€ million

2015 

763
(348)

36

(20)
431 412
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1

Corporate income tax: 40%
Withholding tax: 1%
Payroll taxes: 50%
VAT (cost): 2%
Environmental taxes: –
Other taxes: 7%

Borrowings

Bonds issued: 1,392
Commercial paper: 108
Finance leases: 84
Other: 40
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1. Business model 

Our business model and strategy, as 
outlined on pages 8, 9, 12 & 13 of this report, 
constitute the factors for underpinning 
the understanding and evaluation of 
our prospects. Our strong sales and 
execution capabilities, attractive geographic 
diversity, market leadership, global brands, 
and diverse beverage portfolio are the 
fundamentals of the Group’s business 
model. Our strategy is being adapted over 
time in order to sustainably create value for 
our shareholders, suppliers, employees, and 
the customers and communities we serve.

The Group’s business model has proven 

the recent challenging market conditions. 
Our Board has historically applied a prudent 
approach to the Group’s decisions relating 
to major projects and investments. From 
2010 to 2016, we generated free cash  

The Board considers that our diverse 
geographic footprint, including exposure 
to emerging markets with low per capita 
consumption, and our proven strategy 
in combination with our leading market 

future growth.

In making this statement the Audit and 
Risk Committee, and the Board as a 
whole, carried out a robust assessment 
of the Group’s risks that could threaten 
our business model, future performance, 
solvency or liquidity.

The Group has a well-established strategic 
business planning process which has 
formed the basis of the Board’s quantitative 
assessment of the Group’s viability. The 

projections included in the plan are based on 
the following key assumptions:

 – key macroeconomic data, that could 
impact our consumers’ disposable 
income and consequently our sales 
volume and revenues;

 – key raw material costs;

 – foreign currency rates;

 – spending for production overheads and 
operating expenses;

 – working capital levels; and

 – capital expenditure.

The Board believes that a viability period 

aligns with the Group’s strategic business 
planning cycle and is also consistent 
with the potential impact of principal 
risks as disclosed on pages 16-21, the 

review process, where goodwill and 

From a qualitative perspective, we 
analysed the output of the Enterprise 
Risk Management, Business Planning and 
Liquidity Management internal processes, to 
ensure that the risks to the Group’s viability 
are understood and managed. The Board 
has concluded that the Group’s processes 
continue to provide a comprehensive 

operational and strategic objectives of 
the Group and provides a robust basis 

Company’s ability to continue in operation 
and meet its obligations as they fall due  

Supporting the qualitative assessment was 
a quantitative analysis performed through 
the strategic business plan, including but  
not limited to, the Group’s ability to 
generate cash.

We have continued to stress test the 
plan against several severe but plausible 
downside scenarios linked to certain 
principal risks including declining consumer 
demand, channel mix and foreign exchange. 
A combination of the following scenarios 
was modelled: lower estimates for sales 
volumes and revenues, more adverse 
foreign currency rates and higher raw 
material costs. Our stress testing showed 
that due to the stable cash generation of 
our business, the Group would be able to 
withstand the impact of these scenarios 

forecasts by making adjustments, if 
required, to its operating plans within the 
normal course of business. Following the 
above the Board has concluded that the 

strategic risks.

Based on our assessment of prospects and 
viability as outlined above, the Directors 

expectation that the Group will be able to 
continue operating and meet its liabilities 

ending 31 December 2021.

Viability Statement
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Board of Directors

Unrivalled experience in 
our leadership team

1 2

3 4 5

6 7

8
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1. Anastassis G. David 
Non-Executive Chairman

2. Robert Ryan Rudolph 
Non-Executive Director

3. William W. (Bill) Douglas III 
Independent non-Executive 
Director

4. Reto Francioni 
Senior Independent non-Executive 
Director

5. John P. Sechi  
Independent non-Executive 
Director

6. Dimitris Lois 

7. Olusola (Sola) David-Borha 
Independent non-Executive 
Director

8. Ahmet C. Bozer 
Non-Executive Director

9. Anastasios I. Leventis  
Non-Executive Director

10. Alexandra Papalexopoulou 
Independent non-Executive 
Director

11. Antonio D’Amato  
Independent non-Executive 
Director

12. José Octavio Reyes 
Non-Executive Director

13. Christo Leventis 
Non-Executive Director

11 12

13

9 10
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Anastassis G. David
Non-Executive Chairman
Appointment: Mr. Anastassis David was appointed Chairman of the Board 
of Directors of Coca-Cola HBC on 27 January 2016. He joined the Board of 
Coca-Cola HBC as a non-Executive Director in 2006 and was appointed Vice 
Chairman in 2014.
Skills and experience: Mr. David brings to his role more than 20 years’ 
experience as an investor and non-executive director in the beverage 

a BA in History from Tufts University.
External appointments:

the Advisory Board of the Fares Center at Fletcher School. He serves as a 

and is a member of the Executive Committee of the Cyprus Union 
of Shipowners.

Dimitris Lois

Appointment:

Skills and experience: 
Magnesite S.A., where he held various managerial positions including that of 
business development manager. He joined Frigoglass S.A.I.C. in 1997 and 
after serving in various international positions he was appointed managing 

He holds an MS in Chemical Engineering from Northeastern University and a 
BS in Chemical Engineering from Illinois Institute of Technology.
External appointments:
American Chamber of Commerce and UNESDA.

Ahmet C. Bozer
Non-Executive Director
Appointment: Mr. Ahmet Bozer was appointed to the Board of Directors of 
Coca-Cola HBC on 21 June 2016. 
Skills and experience: Mr. Bozer retired from the position of Executive Vice 
President of The Coca-Cola Company in March 2016. Mr Bozer started his 

serving in a variety of audit, consultancy and management roles and moved 
to The Coca-Cola Company in 1990 as Financial Controls Manager. Four 
years later, he assumed a leadership role at Coca-Cola Bottlers of Turkey 

to The Coca-Cola Company in 2000 as Division President, Eurasia, and 
quickly progressed to the role of Division President, Eurasia and the Middle 

responsibility for the India and South West Asia Division, and was soon named 

President of Coca-Cola International, he had responsibility for operations 

degree in Management from the Middle East Technical University, Ankara, 

State University.
External appointments:
countries, serves as a Board member for the Coca-Cola Foundation and 

member of The Turkish Educational Volunteers Foundation.

Antonio D’Amato
Independent non-Executive Director
Appointment: Mr. Antonio D’Amato was appointed to the Board of Directors 
of Coca-Cola HBC in 2002.
Skills and experience: Mr. Antonio D’Amato began his business career 
in 1979 with Cartoprint in Milan, part of the Seda International Packaging 

the production of food packaging materials. He was employed in various 

2000, Mr. D’Amato was appointed vice-president of the Union of Industrial 

D’Amato was also a member of the Italian National Council for Economy and 

External appointments: 
University in Rome, a leading private Italian university.

Olusola (Sola) David-Borha
Independent non-Executive Director 
Appointment:

Skills and experience:

subsidiaries in commercial banking, investment banking, pension and non-
pension asset management and stockbroking. Stanbic IBTC Holdings is listed 
on the Nigerian Stock Exchange. Prior to this appointment, Mrs. David-Borha 
served as Chief Executive of Stanbic IBTC Bank from May 2011 to November 

Bank and Head of Investment Banking Coverage Africa (excluding South 

in 2007, acquired a leading investment bank in Nigeria, IBTC Chartered Bank 
plc, where Mrs. David-Borha worked as an Executive Director prior to the 

Manchester Business School. Her executive education experience includes 
the Advanced Management Programme of the Harvard Business School. 
External appointments:

Services Credit Bureau plc and the University of Ibadan Business School, 
amongst others. She is also the Vice Chairman of the board of the Nigerian 

William W. (Bill) Douglas III
Independent non-Executive Director 
Appointment: Mr. Bill Douglas was appointed to the Board of Directors of 

Skills and experience: Mr. Bill Douglas is a former Vice President of 

retirement in June 2016. Mr. Douglas has held various positions within the 

Company. Mr. Douglas moved to Atlanta in 1994 as Executive Assistant 

appointed Controller of Coca-Cola Beverages plc. From 2000 until 2004, 

Coca-Cola Enterprises in 2004 when he was appointed Vice President, 

External appointments:
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Reto Francioni
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
Appointment:
Coca-Cola HBC on 21 June 2016.
Skills and experience:
markets theory at the University of Basel since 2006 and is the author of 

holdings in other exchanges. Between 2000 and 2002, Mr. Francioni was 

and Finance at Zicklin School of Business, part of the City University of New 

External appointments: Mr. Francioni serves as a member of the Board of 

Swiss International Airlines.

Anastasios I. Leventis
Non-Executive Director 
Appointment: 
Coca-Cola HBC in 2014.
Skills and experience: 

of Business.
External appointments:

Council of the University of Cyprus, a member of the Board of Overseers of the 

Christo Leventis 
Non-Executive Director 
Appointment: 

Skills and experience:
Analyst with Credit Suisse Asset Management from 1994 to 1999. In 2001, 
he joined J.P. Morgan Securities as an Equity Research Analyst focusing on 

a member of the Board of Directors of Frigoglass S.A.I.C., a leading global 
manufacturer of commercial refrigeration products for the beverage 

and an MBA from the Kellogg School of Management in Chicago.

investment arm of Alpheus, a private asset management company, and he 
continues to serve as a member of its investment advisory committee.

Alexandra Papalexopoulou
Independent non-Executive Director 
Appointment: Mrs. Papalexopoulou joined the Board of Directors of 

Skills and experience: Mrs. Papalexopoulou worked previously for the OECD 

the board of directors of Emporiki Bank. Mrs. Papalexopoulou holds a Bachelor 

External appointments: Ms. Papalexopoulou is the Strategic Planning 
Director at Titan Cement Company S.A., where she has been employed since 

treasurer and a member of the board of directors of the Paul and Alexandra 

College of Business Administration Association and a member of the board 

José Octavio Reyes
Non-Executive Director
Appointment:

Skills and experience: Mr. José Octavio Reyes is the former Vice Chairman 
of The Coca-Cola Export Corporation, a position in which he served from 
January 2013 until his retirement in March 2014. He was president of the 

December 2012. Following various managerial positions in Mexico, Brazil and 
in The Coca-Cola Company headquarters in Atlanta, Mr. Reyes was named 

from the Universidad Nacional Autónoma de México and an MBA from 

Mr. Reyes has been a member of the board of 

Fundación UNAM. He is also a Director of Coca-Cola FEMSA S.A.B. de C.V. 
since 2016.

Robert Ryan Rudolph
Non-Executive Director
Appointment: Mr. Rudolph was appointed to the Board of Directors of 

Skills and experience: From 1993 until 2006, Mr. Rudolph worked at the 

in Zurich, as marketing assistant and subsequently as manager at Winterthur 

Communications Research in Zurich. Mr. Rudolph obtained a Master’s degree 

External appointments: Mr. Rudolph is an attorney and partner at the 

John P. Sechi
Independent non-Executive Director 
Appointment:

Skills and experience: 

promoted to President of the Central Mediterranean Division of The 
Coca-Cola Company, based in Milan, where he was responsible for operations 

Soup Company, and from 2006 to 2011, a non-executive Board member and 
Chairman of the Audit Committee of Coca-Cola Içecek. Mr. Sechi has a BA in 
Business Management from Ryerson University in Toronto and is a Chartered 

External appointments: Mr. Sechi is a non-executive director and advisor  
to various privately-held companies and serves as executive chairman of  

Board committees
Audit and Risk Committee page 80

Nomination Committee page 84

Social Responsibility Committee page 86 

Remuneration Committee page 88
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Dear Shareholder,

Anastassis G. David
Chairman of the Board
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Independent

Board

Total Total Total Total Total

Anastassis G. David
Dimitris Lois
Ahmet C. Bozer4

George A. David5

Olusola (Sola) David-Borha Yes
William W. (Bill) Douglas III7 Yes
Irial Finan8

Antonio D’Amato Yes 9

Reto Francioni10 Yes
Sir Michael Llewellyn-
Smith11

Yes

Nigel Macdonald12 Yes
Anastasios I. Leventis
Christo Leventis
José Octavio Reyes
Alexandra Papalexopoulou Yes
Robert Ryan Rudolph13

John P. Sechi Yes
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Operating Committee

Responsibility
 

management and legal and 
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not reserved for or delegated to the Board or 

 

 

  

 

 
Committee

Remuneration  
Committee

Nomination  
Committee

Social Responsibility 
Committee
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4 5 10

1

6

8

9

2

7 3

1. Dimitris Lois 

2. Michalis Imellos 

 

4. Alain Brouhard 

5. Keith Sanders 

6. Sotiris Yannopoulos 

7. Zoran Bogdanovic 

8. Marcel Martin 

9. Jan Gustavsson 

10. Sanda Parezanovic 
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1. Dimitris Lois,

2. Michalis Imellos,

3. Naya Kalogeraki,

4. Alain Brouhard,
(54) Business Solutions and Systems Director

5. Keith Sanders,
(56) Region Director: Armenia, Belarus, Estonia, Latvia, 
Lithuania, Poland, Russian Federation, Ukraine and Moldova
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6. Sotiris Yannopoulos,
(49) Region Director: Austria, Czech Republic, Hungary, 
Slovakia, Italy and Switzerland

7. Zoran Bogdanovic,
(45) Region Director: Bosnia and Herzegovina, Bulgaria, 
Croatia, Cyprus, FYROM, Greece, Northern Ireland and 
Republic of Ireland, Nigeria, Romania, Serbia (including 

8. Marcel Martin,
(58) Group Supply Chain Director

9. Jan Gustavsson,
(51) General Counsel, Company Secretary and Director 

10. Sanda Parezanovic,
(52) Group Human Resources Director
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Dear Shareholder

Members

William W. (Bill) Douglas III
Committee Chair
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Dear Shareholder

Members

Mr. Reto Francioni
Committee Chair
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Dear Shareholder

Members

Mr. Anastasios I. Leventis
Committee Chair
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Letter from the Chair of the 
Remuneration Committee
Dear Shareholder
As the new Chair of the Remuneration Committee elected in June 

Report for the year ended 31 December 2016. I would like to take 
this opportunity to thank Sir Michael Llewelyn-Smith on behalf of the 
Board for his work as Chair of the Committee up until June 2016 and 
his valuable assistance during our handover period.

Our primary listing is on the London Stock Exchange, and our 
Company is domiciled in Switzerland. We therefore ensure that 

with Swiss law.

This year, we have reworked the format of the Remuneration Report 

Remuneration as clear, understandable and informative as possible. 
As always, I welcome your feedback if there is anything we can do to 
make the report even clearer.

The Group’s remuneration philosophy and policies are designed 
to attract, motivate and retain the talented people we need to 
meet the Company’s strategic objectives, and to give them due 

to ensure that the remuneration policy of the Group remains 
fair, transparent and competitive in comparison with our peers, 
and that remuneration is linked to business strategy and drives 
sustainable performance.

2016 performance outcomes
We are delighted with our performance and sustained progress 

strategic plan. Volume increased by 0.1%, net sales grew by 3.0% 
on an FX-neutral basis, while comparable EBIT grew by 9.5%. Our 

ratio (operating expense as a % of NSR excluding direct marketing 

The table below illustrates Company performance achieved 
against key performance indicators, and highlights those that are 
used in our Management Incentive Plan (MIP) and Performance 
Share Plan (PSP) variable pay arrangements.

Applying the remuneration policy for 
Directors in 2016
In accordance with our remuneration policy, the base salary of the 

of the year are available. We took into account the positive results of 

the improved engagement results, which were one of the Chief 

Coca-Cola HBC once more was adjudged beverage industry leader 
in the Dow Jones Sustainability Indices for Europe and the world. 

individual performance criteria when recommending the increase.

Our sustained business performance in 2016 has resulted in a 

and net sales revenue results between threshold and target levels 
and comparable EBIT and operating expenses ratio between target 
and maximum levels. We remained beverage industry leaders on 
Dow Jones Sustainability Index for the third year in a row, increased 
engagement results, increased EBIT and grew transactions ahead 
of volume.

reported on page 101 of the Annual Report on Remuneration.

under the PSP, which replaced the Employee Stock Option Plan 
(ESOP) in 2015. The award represented 330% of his base salary 

Included in MIP Included in PSP Other key performance indicators

Volume (m unit cases)
2,058

2015: 2,055

FX-neutral NSR 

3.02

6,219

 

25.8%

518

10.3%
2015: 8.8%

431
2015: 412

0.972
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Changes in 2016
The following are some of the key highlights that the 

 – reviewing and approving the cash Long-Term Incentive Plan 

 – reviewing existing and new pension arrangements in 

 –

 – reviewing and recommending changes to the governance 

The Remuneration Committee re-considered the Group’s 
remuneration policy in 2016, as is the case every year. We 
continue to believe the policy is fair and transparent and 
supports the alignment of management with our business 
strategy and shareholders’ interests.

No changes to the remuneration policy were 
therefore proposed.

We have however decided to make certain changes in the 
Remuneration Committee’s process of making decisions in 

delegation from the Board, the Remuneration Committee will 

these decisions to the Board. This process we believe will 

Board will decide the fees for non-Executive Directors. This 
change will be proposed for approval by our shareholders at the 

how we have applied the remuneration policy this year in the 
Annual Report on Remuneration section on page 99.

Looking ahead

relating to remuneration support the Company’s business 
strategy and are closely linked to shareholders’ interests. We 
value the dialogue with shareholders and welcome views on this 
Remuneration Report. We were pleased with the positive vote 
for the Company’s remuneration policy and the Annual Report 
on Remuneration at the 2016 Annual General Meeting and trust 
we shall have your support again in 2017.

Chair of the Remuneration Committee

The role of the Remuneration Committee
The main tasks of our Remuneration Committee are to establish the 
remuneration strategy for the Group and to approve compensation 
packages for Directors and other select senior management. 

Group’s website at: http://coca-colahellenic.com/en/about-us/
corporate-governance/corporate-governance-overview/.
Members Membership status 

Mrs. Alexandra Papalexopoulou (Chair) Member since 2015
Chair since June 2016

Mr. Antonio D’Amato Member since 2013
Mr. Reto Francioni Appointed June 2016

non-Executive Directors: Mrs. Alexandra Papalexopoulou (Chair), 

elected by the shareholders for a one-year term on 21 June 2016. 

Governance report on page 65 for details on the Remuneration 
Committee meetings.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

How we implement this 

strategy into practice.

Note: Participants in the Performance Share Plan are not eligible to participate in the Long-Term Incentive Plan.

Support the alignment with shareholder interests ensuring sustainable 
performance

 –

 –

Performance share awards span over three years. PSP awards are 
cascaded down to top managers, promoting a focus on long-term 
performance and aligning them to shareholders’ interests.Committee and selected senior management

Cash long-term incentive awards span three years. LTIP awards are 
cascaded down to select middle and senior management to promote 

Selected middle and senior 
management

Management employees may be eligible to receive an award under the 
annual bonus scheme. Performance conditions are bespoke to the role 

All management

The ESPP encourages share ownership and aligns the 
interests of our employees with those of shareholders.

All employees

Remuneration throughout the organisation 
– a snapshot

A competitive 
winning team

Motivating

business and non-

Retaining
Continuing to attract the  

best talent

Recognising
Adopting behaviours 

that produce exceptional 
performance

Attracting
Finding the people we 

want and need

Reward strategy and objective 
The objective of the Group’s remuneration philosophy is to attract, 

contributions are directly linked to the success of the Company. 

Variable pay is an important element of our reward philosophy. 

Operating Committee) is tied to the achievement of our business 

shareholder value. The variable pay element increases or 

those of shareholders.

performance and individual performance and experience where 
relevant. We pay close attention to our shareholders’ views 

Shareholding 
guidelines

Performance  
Share Plan

Management 
Incentive Plan

Employee Stock  
Purchase Plan 
(dependent on 

country practice)

Fixed pay 
 

(base salary, retirement 

country practice)

Long-Term 
Incentive Plan
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Pay element Detail

Base salary

Employer contributions are 18% of annual base salary.

ESPP
(Employee Share Purchase Plan)

or MIP payments in shares. The Company matches employee contributions on a one-to-one basis 
up to 3% of salary and/or MIP payout.
Awards are subject to potential application of malus and clawback provisions. 

MIP
(Management Incentive Plan)

The MIP consists of a maximum annual bonus opportunity of up to 130% of base salary.
Payout is based on business performance targets (up to 120% of base salary) and individual 
performance (up to 10% of base salary).

Payments are subject to potential application of malus and clawback provisions.
PSP
(Performance Share Plan) weighted performance conditions:

(ii) return on invested capital (ROIC) measured over a three-year period.
Awards are subject to potential application of malus and clawback provisions.

Fixed pay

+ =

Variable pay subject 

Base salary
Retirement Other 

ESPP* MIP PSP
Total 

compensation
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Remuneration Policy

Introduction
In 2016 we have endeavoured to provide more clarity around our remuneration policy for Executive and non-Executive Directors. As such, we 
present an improved visual presentation of the remuneration policy which was put forward to shareholders on a voluntary basis and approved 

but we intend to do so voluntarily at least every three years (or when there are changes). We continue to endeavour to make sure that our 

Policy table
Fixed

Base salary
Purpose and link to strategy

the attraction and retention of the talent able to deliver the Group’s 
strategy.
Operation

1 May each year.
The following parameters are considered when reviewing base 
salary level:

 –
 –
 –
 –
 – external comparisons based on factors such as: the industry 

of the business, revenue, market capitalisation, headcount, 
geographical footprint, stock exchange listing (FTSE) and other 
European companies.

Maximum opportunity
One of the relevant factors in determining the salary of the Chief 

performance, material changes to the business, internal 
promotions, accrual of experience, changes to the role, or other 
material factors.
Performance metrics
Individual and business performance are key factors when 
determining any base salary changes.

Purpose and link to strategy

Operation

pension plan under Swiss law. There is no obligation for employee 
contributions.

years. In case of early retirement, which is possible from the age of 58, 

under the plan as a lump sum.
Maximum opportunity
The contributions to the pension plan are calculated as a percentage 
of annual base salary (excluding any incentive payments or other 

Performance metrics
None.

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued
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ESPP (Employee Stock Purchase Plan)
Purpose and link to strategy

Operation

which has the discretion to recommend the introduction of additional 

related to relocation such as: housing allowance, company car/
allowance, a cost of living adjustment, trip allowance, partner 

tax and social security contributions arising from this payment.
Maximum opportunity

Performance metrics
None.

Purpose and link to strategy
The ESPP is an employee share purchase plan, encouraging broader 
share ownership, and is intended to align the interests of employees 

Operation
This is a voluntary share purchase scheme across many of the 

participant has the opportunity to invest from 1% to 15% of his salary 
and/or MIP payout to purchase the Company’s shares by contributing 
to the plan on a monthly basis.

on a one-to-one basis up to 3% of the employee’s salary and /or MIP 
payout. Matching shares vest after one year from the purchase.
Dividends received in respect of shares held under the ESPP are 

operated by the Company on the same basis as other employees. 
Maximum opportunity
Maximum investment is 15% of gross base salary and MIP payout. 
The Company matches contributions up to 3% of gross base salary 
and MIP payout. Matching shares vest after one year.
Performance metrics
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Variable pay

MIP (Management Incentive Plan) PSP (Performance Share Plan)
Purpose and link to strategy

contribution to business performance. The plan aims 
to promote a high-performance culture with stretched 

Operation
Annual cash bonus awarded under the MIP are subject 
to business and individual performance and are 
non-pensionable.

strategy and are set and approved annually by the 

Stretched targets for business performance are set 
annually based on the business plan of the Group as 
approved by the Board of Directors.
Performance against these targets and bonus 
outcomes are assessed by the Remuneration 
Committee, which may recommend an adjustment 

performance of the Company or the individual’s 
contribution warrants a higher or lower outcome. 
Malus and clawback provisions apply. Further 
details may be found in the Additional notes to the 
remuneration policy table section on page 95.
Maximum opportunity

Threshold, target and maximum bonus opportunity 
levels are as follows:

 – Threshold: 5% of base salary
 – Target: 70% of base salary
 – Maximum: 130% of base salary. 

Maximum payout is based on business performance 
targets (up to 120% of salary) and individual 
performance (up to 10% of salary).
Performance metrics
The MIP awards are based on business metrics linked 
to our business strategy. These may include but are not 

Details related to the key performance indicators and 
individual objectives can be found in the Annual Report 
on Remuneration on page 101.
Deferral of MIP
After careful consideration of the Chief Executive 

long-term incentives make up a proportion of 

the interests of the shareholders and therefore would 
not introduce MIP deferral. However this point will be 
kept under consideration.

Purpose and link to strategy

and increase the ability of the Group to attract and reward individuals with 
exceptional skills.
Operation

after three years, subject to the achievement of performance conditions and 
continued service. Grants take place annually, normally every March.

the long-term strategies and objectives of the Group and are aligned with 
shareholders’ interests.
Dividends will be paid on vested shares where the performance conditions are 
achieved at the end of the three-year period.

Additional notes to the remuneration policy table section on page 95.
Maximum opportunity

circumstances only, the Board has the discretion to grant awards up to 450% 

Performance metrics
Vesting of awards is subject to the three-year Group performance conditions 

 –
 –

(ROIC). Capital employed is calculated as the average of net borrowings and 

Following the end of the three-year period, the Remuneration Committee will 
determine the extent to which performance conditions have been met and, in 
turn, the level of vesting. Participants may receive vested awards in the form of 

For both performance measures, achieving threshold performance results in 
vesting of 25% of the award and maximum performance results in vesting of 
100% of the award.
Performance share awards will lapse if the Remuneration Committee determines 
that the performance criteria have not been met. If, at the end of the vesting 

Holding period 

under consideration.
Adjustments

by adjusting the number and kind of shares which have been granted or may 
be granted and/or making provision for payment of cash in respect of any 
outstanding performance share award.
Change in control
In the event of change of control, unvested performance share awards held 
by participants vest immediately on a pro-rated basis if the Remuneration 

unless the Remuneration Committee determines that substitute performance 
share awards may be used in place of the previous awards.
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Additional notes to the remuneration policy table

Minimum

Target

Maximum

Component

Fixed Base salary1 909 909 909
Pension 164 164 164

2 529 549 565
Variable MIP – 636 1,182

PSP – 1,650 3,000
Total 1,602 3,908 5,820

1. Represents the annual base salary after the increase which was applied in 1 May 2016.

2. 

ESOP (Employee Stock Option Plan)

Malus and clawback provision for variable pay plans 

The Remuneration Committee and/or Board also has the discretion to determine that clawback should be applied to awards under the MIP, 

Shareholding guidelines

the date of the appointment. 

Policy on recruitment/appointment

internal comparisons and cost. The Remuneration Committee may recommend an appropriate initial annual base salary below relevant 
market levels. In such situations, the Remuneration Committee may make a recommendation to realign the level of base salary in 

Maximum

Target

Minimum

Base pay Pension MIP PSP

16%

23%

57%

9%

14%

33%

3%

4%

10%

20%

16% 43%

52%
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

include the value of any buyout arrangements.

support, housing, cost of living, schooling, travel and relocation costs.

The Remuneration Committee may consider recommending the buying out of incentive awards that an individual would forfeit by accepting 

PSP. When deciding on a potential incentive award buyout and in particular the level and value thereof, the Remuneration Committee will be 
informed of the time and performance pro-rated level of any forfeited award.

Termination payments

Limitations include the prohibition on certain types of severance compensation.

Our governance framework ensures that the Group uses the right channels to support reward decisions. In the case of early termination, 
the non-Executive Directors would be entitled to their fees accrued as of the date of termination, but are not entitled to any additional 

In case of future terminations, payments will be made in accordance with the termination policy below.

Pay element

Good leaver
(retirement at 58 or later / at 
least 10 years continued service)

Good leaver
(redundancy, injury, disability)

Bad leaver
(resignation, dismissal) Death in service

Base salary and other 

ESPP
termination the ESPP are forfeited transferred to heirs

MIP A pro-rated payout as of 
the date of retirement will 
be applied

A pro-rated payout as of 
the date of leaving will be 
applied

In the event of resignation 
or dismissal, as per Swiss 
Law, Chief Executive 

pro-rated MIP payout.

A pro-rated payout will 
be applied and will be 
paid immediately to heirs 
based on the latest rolling 
estimate

PSP / ESOP
shares and options are 
retained and will continue 
to vest as normal subject 
to performance conditions 
as set out in the award 
agreement.

All unvested options 
and performance shares 
awards immediately vest 
to the extent that the 
Remuneration Committee 
determines that the 

have been met, or are likely 
to be met at the end of the 
three-year performance
period.
Any options which vest 
are exercisable within 12 
months from the date of 
termination.

All unvested options and 
performance share awards 
immediately lapse without 
any compensation.
In the event of resignation, 
all vested options must 
be exercised within six 
months from the date 

options must be exercised 
within 30 days from the 
date of termination.

All unvested options and 
performance share awards 
immediately vest subject 
to time and performance 
pro-ration.
Any options which vest 
are exercisable within 12 
months from the date 
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Corporate events

share award by adjusting the number and kind of shares which have been granted or may be granted and/or making provision for payment of 
cash in respect of any outstanding performance share award.

In the event of change of control, unvested performance share awards held by participants vest immediately on a pro-rated basis if the 

end of the performance period, unless the Remuneration Committee determines that substitute performance share awards may be used in 
place of the previous awards.

Service contracts

with the Swiss Ordinance against excessive compensation in listed companies, there are no sign-on policies/provisions for the appointment 

other Directors.

Name Title
Date originally appointed to Date appointed to the 

Board of the Company
contract or appointment 

Anastassis G. David Chairman and 27 July 2006 21 June 2016 One year

Dimitris Lois 4 July 2011 21 June 2016
on six months’ notice

Ahmet C. Bozer1 Non-Executive Director 21 June 2016 21 June 2016 One year
George A. David2 Non-Executive Director 2 January 1981 – –
Olusola (Sola) 
David-Borha

Non-Executive Director 24 June 2015 21 June 2016 One year

William W. (Bill) Douglas III3 Non-Executive Director 21 June 2016 21 June 2016 One year
Irial Finan4 Non-Executive Director 23 October 1997 – -
Antonio D’Amato Non-Executive Director 21 June 2016 One year
Reto Francioni5 Senior Independent

non-Executive Director
21 June 2016 21 June 2016 One year

Sir Michael Llewellyn-Smith6 Senior Independent 
non-Executive Director

6 September 2000 – –

Nigel Macdonald7 Non-Executive Director 17 June 2005 – –
Anastasios I. Leventis Non-Executive Director 25 June 2014 21 June 2016 One year
Christo Leventis Non-Executive Director 25 June 2014 21 June 2016 One year
José Octavio Reyes Non-Executive Director 25 June 2014 21 June 2016 One year
Alexandra Papalexopoulou Non-Executive Director 24 June 2015 21 June 2016 One year
Robert Ryan Rudolph8 Non-Executive Director 21 June 2016 21 June 2016 One year
John P. Sechi Non-Executive Director 25 June 2014 21 June 2016 One year

1. Mr. Ahmet C. Bozer was appointed to the Board on 21 June 2016. 
2. Mr. George A. David retired from the Board and the Social Responsibility Committee on 21 June 2016. 
3. Mr. William W. (Bill) Douglas III was appointed to the Board and the Audit and Risk Committee on 21 June 2016. 
4. Mr. Irial Finan retired from the Board on 21 June 2016. 
5. Mr. Reto Francioni was appointed to the Board, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee on 21 June 2016.
6. Sir Michael Llewellyn-Smith retired from the Board, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Social Responsibility Committee 

7. Mr. Nigel Macdonald retired from the Board and the Audit and Risk Committee on 21 June 2016. 
8. Mr. Robert Ryan Rudolph was appointed to the Board on 21 June 2016.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Directors with the right talent, values and skills necessary to provide oversight and support to management to grow the business, support 
the Company’s strategic framework and maximise shareholder value. Non-Executive Directors’ pay is set at a level that will not call into 

similar positionings as the Company, other Swiss companies with similar market caps and/or revenues, and other relevant European listed 
companies. 

The Company does not compensate new non-Executive Directors for any forfeited share awards in previous employment. Non-Executive 

payments in the event of termination of their appointment. They are entitled to reimbursement of all reasonable expenses incurred in the 
interests of the Group.

Non-Executive Directors appointed during the remuneration policy period receive the same basic fee and, as appropriate, committee fee or 
fees as existing non-Executive Directors.

Non-Executive Director fees for 2016

Non-Executive Chairman’s fee –
Non-Executive Vice-Chairman’s fee –
Base non-Executive Director’s fee
Senior Independent Director’s fee 

Audit and Risk Remuneration Nomination Social Responsibility

Committee chairman fee (additional)
Committee member fee (additional)

Remuneration arrangements across the Group

shareholders’ interests.

The structure of the reward package for the wider employee population takes into account local market practice and is intended to attract 

Consideration of shareholder views
Shareholder views and the achievement of the Group’s overall business strategies have been taken into account in formulating the 
remuneration policy. Following shareholder feedback before and after the Annual General Meeting, the Remuneration Committee and 
the Board consult with shareholders and meet with the largest institutional investors to gather feedback on the Company’s remuneration 
strategy and corporate governance. The Company would be happy to engage with shareholders in the future to discuss the outcomes of 

In reviewing and determining remuneration, the Remuneration Committee takes into account the following:

 –

 –

 –

 –

 – the need for similar, performance-related principles for the determination of executive remuneration and the remuneration of other 

 –

Committee and the Board discuss matters that pertain to their remuneration. 

This ensures that the same performance-setting principles are applied for executive remuneration and other employees in the organisation.
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Annual Report on Remuneration

Introduction
This section of the Report provides detail on how we have implemented our remuneration policy in 2016, which was approved at our 2016 

2017 Annual General Meeting.

Activities of the Remuneration Committee during 2016
During 2016, the key Remuneration Committee activities were to:

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 – review the governance around the approval of Executive Director pay decisions.

Base fee

Audit  
and Risk 

Committee
Remuneration 

Committee
Nomination 
Committee

Social 
Responsibility 

Committee

Senior 
Independent 

Director

2016 2015

George A. David1 – – – – – – – –
Anastassis G. David 67,500 – – – – – 67,500 67,500
Christo Leventis2 35,000 – – – – – 35,000 –
Anastasios I. Leventis3 35,000 – – – 5,500 – 40,500 –
Irial Finan4 32,500 – – – – – 32,500 65,000
Antonio D’Amato 67,500 – 5,250 5,250 – – 78,000 75,000
Sir Michael Llewellyn-Smith5 32,500 – 5,000 5,000 – 5,000 47,500 95,000
Nigel Macdonald6 32,500 12,500 – – – – 45,000 90,000
José Octavio Reyes7 67,500 – – – 5,250 – 72,750 72,500
John P. Sechi 67,500 13,150 – – – – 80,650 77,500
Alexandra Papalexopoulou8 67,500 – 8,000 5,250 2,750 – 83,500 37,500
Olusola (Sola) David-Borha9 67,500 13,150 – – – – 80,650 38,750
Ahmet C. Bozer10 35,000 – – – – – 35,000 –
William W. (Bill) Douglas III11 35,000 13,750 – – – – 48,750 –
Reto Francioni12 35,000 – 2,750 5,500 – 7,500 50,750 –
Robert Ryan Rudolph13 35,000 – – – – – 35,000 –

1. 
respect of his membership on the Board of Directors and any Board Committee.

2. 

3. 

4. 
5. Sir Michael Llewellyn-Smith retired from the Board, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Social Responsibility Committee on 

on the Social Responsibility Committee.
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6. Mr. Nigel Macdonald retired from the Board and the Audit and Risk Committee Chairmanship on 21 June 2016. The Group has applied a half year period fee 

7. 

8. 

9. 
Swiss legislation.

10. 
11. 

12. Mr. Reto Francioni was appointed to the Board, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee on 21 June 2016. For Mr. Reto Francioni, on top of the 

13. 

Advisers to the Committee

Counsel regularly attend meetings of the Remuneration Committee.

While the Remuneration Committee does not have external advisers, in 2016 it authorised management to work with external consultancy 

Base pay1
Cash and non-cash 

2 Annual bonus3
Long-term 
incentives4

Retirement 

Dimitris Lois 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 

899 830 555 1,044 647 857 665 139 157 143 2,923 3,012

1. 
2. 
3. Annual bonus for 2016 includes the MIP payout, receivable early in 2017 for the 2016 performance year. 
4. 

Fixed pay for 2016

Base salary

salary increases across the organisation, and alignment and competitiveness versus peers in the FTSE. The salary increase rate for the  
Swiss-based employees is 1.7%.

versus prior years, driven by the increased 2015 MIP payout award received in March 2016.

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued
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Variable pay for 2016

MIP performance outcomes – 2016

Threshold
0%

Target
15%

Maximum
30%

Payout
(% of base salary)

measures payout

Threshold

Target

Maximum

Actual

61.8%

Volume
(m unit cases)

25%

13.8%
1,868

2,058

2,075 2,179

NSR

25%

11.4%
5,733

6,219

6,370 6,688

Comparable 
EBIT

25%

17.0%
461

518

512 553

OpEx % 
of NSR

25%

19.6%
28.6

25.8

26.0 25.3

Total Working 
Capital Days

performance measure

Achieved
7.79 7.08 5.66

-1.14

Above-target performance for comparable EBIT and operating expense ratio and just-below-target performance for volume and NSR 

performance measures.

objectives were based on improving EBIT margin versus prior year, growing volume in established, developing and emerging countries, 
growing transactions ahead of volume, sustaining employee engagement levels and maintaining beverage industry leadership in relation to 
Corporate Social Responsibility.

beverage industry leadership on the Dow Jones Sustainability Indices. On the basis of this individual performance, the Committee decided 

individual performance element. 
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Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) outcomes – 2016

2016, respectively, being the number of options multiplied by (market price at vest – exercise price at grant). 

Performance share plan (PSP) awards – 2016
Since the discontinuation of the ESOP in late 2015, the PSP is now the primary long-term incentive vehicle. In March 2016 the Chief Executive 

anticipated in March 2019.

Type of award made 159,876 performance shares have been awarded under the PSP. 

of performance conditions. The above award includes one grant in 2016.
Share price
Date of grant 16 March 2016
Performance period 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018
Face value of the award
(The maximum number of shares that would vest if all 
performance measures and targets are met, multiplied 

Face value of the award as a % of annual base salary 330% 
Percentage that would be distributed if threshold performance 
was achieved in both PSP key performance indicators

25% of maximum award

Percentage that would be distributed if threshold performance 
was achieved only in one PSP key performance indicator

12.5% of maximum award

The key business indicators are strategically relevant to business performance and provide line of sight to participants.

Similar to the award made in December 2015, the 2016 award is subject to comparable earnings per share (EPS) and return on invested capital 
(ROIC), as outlined below.

Measure Description Weighting

Threshold Maximum

Target
Vesting

(% of max) Target
Vesting

(% of max)

Comparable EPS 50% 1.08 25% 1.31 100%

Return on invested 
capital (ROIC)

ROIC is the percentage return that a company makes over 

capital employed. Capital employed is calculated as the average 

50% 10.1% 25% 12.1% 100%

The vesting schedule for PSP performance conditions is not a straight line between the threshold and maximum performance levels. 

Dilution Limit

Remuneration (10% for all share plans and 5% for all executive share plans).

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued
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Implementation of policy in 2017
For 2017, we will continue to apply our approved remuneration policy outlined on pages 92 to 98 as described above.

Base salary and fees

to other employees.

Fee levels for the Chairman and other non-Executive Directors were reviewed in 2016 and changes were made as outlined on page 98. 

Management Incentive Plan (MIP)
The target annual bonus awards for 2017 will be in line with awards in 2016. The Remuneration Committee has set the 2017 performance 

Performance measure
Weighting at maximum opportunity levels

(% of base salary)

Business measures 120%
Annual sales volume.

30%
Net sales revenue (NSR). 30%
Comparable earnings before interest and tax (comparable EBIT).

30%
Operating expenditures (OpEx) excluding DME as a percentage of NSR. This key performance 

competitiveness. 30%
Individual measures 10%

The Remuneration Committee is unable to provide the 2017 bonus award performance targets on a forward-looking basis as they are 
deemed commercially sensitive. However, the targets will be disclosed in next year’s report once the actual performance against these targets 
has been realised.

Performance share plan (PSP)
The levels of PSP awards for 2017 are anticipated to be in line with those awarded in 2016. The performance measures will be consistent with 
those detailed for the 2016 award outlined in this report. The Remuneration Committee expects to recommend an award of 330% of base 

March 2020.

average pay for Swiss-based employees. We have chosen to make a comparison with employees in Switzerland as this is the market in which 

Annual base salary Annual bonus
 +3.5%  -46.8%  -25%

Average employee % change for the Swiss workforce from 2015 to 2016  +1.7%  +25.9%  -7%
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The graph below shows the total shareholder return (TSR) of the Company compared with the FTSE 100 index over an eight-year period to 
31 December 2016. The Committee believes that the FTSE 100 Index is the most appropriate index to compare historic performance due to 
the size of the Company and our listing location.

Total shareholder return versus FTSE 100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Doros 
Constantinou

Doros 
Constantinou

Doros 
Constantinou

Dimitris 
Lois

Dimitris 
Lois

Dimitris 
Lois

Dimitris 
Lois

Dimitris 
Lois

Dimitris 
Lois

Total remuneration – single 
2,887 3,752 4,708 711 1,524 1,928 1,918 3,012 2,923

MIP (% of maximum) 63% 65% 9% 24% 68% 49% 45% 75% 55%

As the Company listed on the London Stock Exchange in April 2013, the amounts included in respect of the period before that date relate to the remuneration the Chief 

Relative importance of spend on pay
The graphic below presents the year-on-year change in total expenditure for all employees across the Group and distributions made to 
shareholders in the form of dividend share buy-backs and/or capital returns.

Relative importance of spend on pay

50

100

150

200

250

Dec 08 Dec 09 Dec 10 Dec 11 Dec 12 Dec 13 Dec 14 Dec 15 Dec 16

FTSE 100 CCH

2016

2015

Total employee costs Distribution to shareholders

1,069.8

984.0

132.4

146.1
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Shareholder voting outcomes
The table below sets out the result of the vote on the remuneration-related resolution at the Annual General Meeting held in June 2016:

Resolution Votes for Votes against Abstentions Total votes cast
Voting rights 

represented

236,914,616 18,941,964 183,352 256,039,932 70.78%
92.53% 7.40% 0.07%

Advisory vote on the Swiss Remuneration Report 236,911,005 18,945,575 183,352 256,039,932 70.78%
92.53% 7.40% 0.07%

Advisory vote on the remuneration policy 249,613,374 6,316,658 109,900 256,039,932 70.78%
97.49% 2.47% 0.04%

Approval of the maximum aggregate amount 

General Meeting

255,053,386 876,791 109,755 255,930,177 70.78%

99.66% 0.34% 0.0%
Approval of the maximum aggregate amount 254,456,899 1,085,639 497,394 255,542,538 70.78%

99.58% 0.42% 0.0%

The Committee was pleased that shareholders supported our remuneration-related resolutions so strongly. We value our ongoing dialogue 
with shareholders and welcome any views on this report.

Payments to past Directors

June 2016, short-term contractual arrangements were agreed with them under which they agreed to provide advisory services and support 

normal non-Executive Board committee member rather than on their previous positions as Chairmen of such Committees.

Payments to appointed Directors
Mr. Reto Francioni, Mr. Ahmet C. Bozer, Mr. William W. (Bill) Douglas III, and Mr. Robert Ryan Rudolph joined in 2016, however as per the 
recruitment policy for non-Executive Directors, new non-Executive Directors are not compensated for any forfeited share awards or other 
incentives related to previous employment. Non-Executive Directors do not receive any form of variable compensation, nor any other 

Termination payments made during the year
No terminations were made during the year.

Mr. Lois serves as a member of the Board of Directors and Vice President of the Executive Committee of  and is also a member of 
the Board of Directors of the Swiss-American Chamber of Commerce.

2016  
(€ million)

2015  

Total remuneration paid to or accrued for Directors, the Operating Committee and the 
24.4 18.2
18.7 12.3

Amount accrued for stock option and performance share awards 4.9 5.1

0.8 0.8

Credits and loans granted to governing bodies
In 2016, no credits or loans were granted to active or former members of the Company’s Board, members of the Operating Committee or to 
any related persons.
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Share ownership
The table below summarises the total shareholding as of 31 December 2016, including any outstanding shares awarded through our incentive 

Name
Share 

interests

With performance measures Without performance measures

Current 
shareholding 
as % of base 

salary2

Shareholding 
guideline 

met2

PSP ESOP ESPP

Performance 
shares 

granted in 
year 2016

and 

performance 
conditions

Vested but
unexercised

Number 

options 
outstanding

Fully  
vested

Vesting at 
the end 

Number of 
outstanding 
shares held1 

as at 
31-Dec-16

Dimitris Lois Yes 159,876 298,352 0 1,700,000 1,580,000 120,000 49,142 105.6% No
Anastassis G. David3 – – – – – – – – –
Reto Francioni – – – – – – – – –
Ahmet C. Bozer – – – – – – – – –
George A. David4 – – – – – – – – –
Olusola (Sola) David-
Borha

– – – – – – – – –

William W. (Bill) 
Douglas III5

– – – – – – – – –

Irial Finan6 – – – – – – – – –
Antonio D’Amato – – – – – – – – –
Reto Francioni – – – – – – – – –
Sir Michael Llewellyn-
Smith7

– – – – – – – – –

Nigel Macdonald8 – – – – – – – – –
Anastasios I. 
Leventis9

– – – – – – – – –

Christo Leventis10 – – – – – – – – –
José Octavio Reyes – – – – – – – – –
Alexandra 
Papalexopoulou

– – – – – – – – –

Robert Ryan Rudolph – – – – – – – – –
John P. Sechi  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 

1. The number of shares held by Mr. Lois includes the amount of purchased and vested shares held under the ESPP on 31 December 2016 and 1,000 shares held 

2. 
from this date to December 2020 to build up a 200% of base salary shareholding.

3. 

family of the late Anastasios George Leventis, of which Selene Treuhand AG is the Trustee, has a further indirect interest in respect of 823,008 shares held by Selene 

Conduct Authority.
4. Mr. George A. David retired from the Board and the Social Responsibility Committee on 21 June 2016.
5. Mr. William W. (Bill) Douglas owns 10,000 Company shares.
6. Mr. Irial Finan retired from the Board on 21 June 2016.
7. Sir Michael Llewellyn-Smith retired from the Board, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Social Responsibility Committee on 

21 June 2016. Sir Michael Llewellyn-Smith owns 545 Company shares.
8. Mr. Nigel Macdonald retired from the Board and the Audit and Risk Committee on 21 June 2016. Mr. Nigel Macdonald owns 1,700 Company shares.

9. 

of the family of the late Anastasios George Leventis, of which Selene Treuhand AG is the Trustee, has a further indirect interest in respect of 386,879 shares held by 

the late Christodoulos Papaneokleus Leventis, of which Mervail Company (PTC) Limited is the trustee, Mr. Anastasios I. Leventis has an indirect interest with respect to 
623,664 shares held by Carlcan Holding Limited.

10. 

family of the late Anastasios George Leventis, of which Selene Treuhand AG is the Trustee, have further indirect interests in respect of 498,545 shares held by Selene 

Christodoulos Papaneokleus Leventis, of which Mervail Company (PTC) Limited is the Trustee, Mr. Christo Leventis has an indirect interest with respect to the 757,307 
shares held by Carlcan Holding Limited.

No performance shares vested to Dimitris Lois and he did not exercise any share options in 2016.
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The Directors, whose names and functions are set out on pages 60 

 

Disclosure of information required under Listing Rule 9.8.4R

The Directors considered it appropriate to adopt the going concern 

Dimitris Lois
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent auditor’s report to Coca-Cola HBC AG

Our opinion 

What we have audited

 – the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2016;

 – the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

 – the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

 – the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

 –

 –

Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further 

Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with applicable laws and regulations regarding independence relevant to our audit of the 

Our audit approach

Overview
 –
 –

14 countries.

 –

 –
undertakings and functions.

 –

 – Uncertain tax positions.

 – Provisions and contingent liabilities.

estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also 
addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, including among other matters consideration of whether there was 

Group 
scoping

Key audit 
matters

Materiality
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Materiality

Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for materiality, including the overall group materiality 

Overall group materiality
How we determined it
Rationale for the materiality  
benchmark applied

Key audit matters 

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

assessment 
Refer to Note 13 for intangible assets including goodwill.

The above noted amounts have been allocated to individual 
cash-generating units (‘CGUs’). The impairment assessment 
is performed at least annually and relies on the calculation of a 
value-in-use for each CGU.

This area was a key matter for our audit due to the size of goodwill 

assets are impaired involves complex and subjective estimates and 
judgements by management about the future results of the CGUs. 
These estimates and judgements include assumptions surrounding 
revenue growth rates, input costs, foreign exchange rates and 
discount rates.

Furthermore, macroeconomic volatility, competitor activity and 

intangible assets.

No impairment charge was recorded in 2016. We note however, that 

CGU and the Nigeria CGU remain sensitive to changes in the key 

We evaluated the process by which management prepared the CGU 
value-in-use calculations and compared them to the latest budget 
approved by the Board of Directors. We assessed the quality of the 
budgeting process by comparing the prior year budget with actual 
data. No material exceptions were noted from our evaluation.

Deploying our valuation specialists, we challenged management’s 

increases, short-term and long-term volume growth and the level 
of input costs by comparing them with either the Group’s historical 
information or market data, as appropriate. We also evaluated the 
appropriateness of other key assumptions including discount rates 
and foreign exchange rates by comparing them to relevant market 
data. We found the assumptions to be consistent and in line with 
our expectations.

We also performed sensitivity analyses on the key drivers of cash 

As a result of our work, we found that the determination by 
management that no impairment was required for goodwill and 

sensitivity analyses in Note 13.

Independent Auditor’s Report continued
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Uncertain tax positions
Refer to Note 10 for taxation and Note 28 for contingencies.

The Group operates in a complex multinational tax environment 
which gives rise to uncertain tax positions in relation to corporation 
tax, transfer pricing and indirect taxes.

Given the number of judgements involved in estimating the 
provisions relating to uncertain tax positions and the complexities of 
dealing with tax rules and regulations in numerous jurisdictions, this 
was considered as a key audit matter.

In conjunction with our tax specialists, we evaluated management’s 
judgements in respect of estimates of tax exposures and 
contingencies in order to assess the adequacy of the Group’s 
tax provisions.

In order to understand and evaluate management’s judgements, 
we considered the status of current tax authority audits and 
enquiries, the outcome of previous tax authority audits, judgemental 
positions taken in tax returns and current year estimates and recent 
developments in the tax environments in which the Group operates. 
From the evidence obtained and in the context of the consolidated 

in relation to uncertain tax positions as at 31 December 2016 to 
be appropriate.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Refer to Note 20 for provisions and Note 28 for contingencies.

The Group faces a number of threatened and actual legal and 
regulatory proceedings. The level of provisioning and/or the level 
of disclosure required involves a high level of judgement resulting 
in provisions and contingent liabilities being considered as a key 
audit matter.

We evaluated the design and implementation of controls in respect 
of litigation and regulatory procedures, and no material exceptions 
were noted.

 – where relevant, reading external legal advice obtained 
by management;

 – discussing open matters with the Group general counsel;

 – meeting with local management and reading 
subsequent correspondence;

 – assessing and challenging management’s conclusions through 
understanding precedents set in similar cases; and

 – circularising relevant third-party legal representatives and follow up 
discussions, where appropriate, on certain material cases.

Based on the evidence obtained, whilst noting the inherent 
uncertainty with such legal and regulatory matters, we determined 
the level of provisioning as at 31 December 2016 to be appropriate. 

We assessed the appropriateness of the related disclosures in Note 
28 and considered these to be reasonable. 

How we tailored our group audit scope 

statements as a whole, taking into account the geographic structure of the Group, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry 

The Group operates through its trading subsidiary undertakings in 28 countries, as set out on page 122 of the 2016 Integrated Annual 
Report. The processing of the accounting entries for these entities is largely centralised in a shared services centre in Bulgaria, except for the 
subsidiary undertakings in Russia, Ukraine, Belarus and Armenia, which process their accounting entries locally. The Group also operates a 
centralised treasury function in the Netherlands and in Greece and a centralised procurement function in Austria. We considered the nature 
of the work that needed to be performed on these entities and functions by us, as the group engagement team and by component auditors 

have in the audit work at those entities or functions to be able to conclude whether appropriate audit evidence had been obtained as a basis 

subsidiary undertakings in 14 countries (including the trading subsidiary undertakings in Russia, Nigeria and Italy) which in our view, required 

audit procedures on certain balances and transactions were also performed on subsidiary undertakings in 3 countries, 1 joint venture and 
the corporate service centres in Greece and Austria. In addition, audit procedures were performed with respect to the centralised treasury 
function by the group engagement team and by the component audit team in Austria as regards to the centralised procurement function. 
The group engagement team also performed analytical review and other procedures on balances and transactions of subsidiary undertakings 
not covered by the procedures described above. 
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Our group engagement team’s involvement with respect to audit work performed by component auditors included site visits (to Russia, 
Nigeria, Italy, Switzerland, Romania, Bulgaria and Greece), conference calls with component audit teams, meetings with local management, 
review of component auditor work papers, attendance at component audit clearance meetings, and other forms of interactions as considered 

team was also responsible for planning, designing and overseeing the audit procedures performed at the shared services centre in Bulgaria. 

assets, material provisions and contingent liabilities, were audited by the group engagement team. We also performed work centrally on IT 
general controls. We held a two-day audit planning workshop in Greece focusing on planning and risk assessment activities. This audit planning 

Other information 
The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises Coca-Cola HBC AG’s 2016 Integrated Annual 

conclusion thereon. 

obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out in the 2016 Integrated Annual Report on page 107, the Directors 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. 

 –

opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 – Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

 – Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
the Directors. 

 – Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 

a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 

on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease 
to continue as a going concern. 
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 –

 –

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for Coca-Cola HBC AG for the purpose of the Disclosure Guidance and 
Transparency Rules sourcebook and the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority and for no other purpose. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the part of the Corporate Governance section relating to the Company’s compliance with 

Other matters
We have reviewed the statement on going concern, included in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, in Coca-Cola HBC AG’s 2016 
Integrated Annual Report on page 107, as if the Company were a UK incorporated premium listed entity. We have nothing to report having 
performed our review.

As noted in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, the Directors have concluded that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated 

signed. As part of our audit we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, these statements are not a guarantee as to the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern.

We have also reviewed the Directors’ statement in relation to the longer-term viability of the Group, set out on page 59, of the 
Coca-Cola HBC AG’s 2016 Integrated Annual Report as if the Company were a UK incorporated premium listed entity. Our review was 
substantially less in scope than an audit and only consisted of making inquiries and considering the Directors’ process supporting their 
statement; checking that the statement is in alignment with the relevant provisions of the Code; and considering whether the statement is 
consistent with the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing our audit. We have nothing to report having performed our review.

Marios Psaltis
 

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers S.A. 
 

Athens, Greece

(a) The maintenance and integrity of the Coca-Cola HBC AG website is the responsibility of the Directors; the work carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration 

initially presented on the website.
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Consolidated Income Statement
Year ended 31 December

Note
2016  

€ million
2015  

Net sales revenue 6,7 6,219.0 6,346.1 
Cost of goods sold (3,920.2) (4,018.7)

2,298.8 2,327.4 

Operating expenses 8 (1,792.5) (1,909.2)
6 506.3 418.2 

Finance income 7.4 9.5 
Finance costs (69.7) (77.7)
Finance costs, net 9 (62.3) (68.2)
Share of results of equity method investments 15 13.8 7.1 

457.8 357.1 

Tax 10 (113.8) (76.4)
344.0 280.7 

Owners of the parent 343.5 280.3 
Non-controlling interests 0.5 0.4 

344.0 280.7 

11 0.95 0.77
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 December

2016  
€ million

2015 

344.0 280.7 
Other comprehensive income:

Valuation (loss) / gain during the year (0.1) 0.1 

Net losses during the year (48.2) (5.2)
12.8 4.6 

Transfers to inventory for the year 4.1 (31.3) (19.7) (20.3)
Foreign currency translation (112.9) (65.8)
Share of other comprehensive income of equity method investments (7.5) (0.2)

income statement (refer to Note 12) 1.1 5.5 
(150.7) (80.7)

Actuarial (losses) / gains (41.7) 11.1 

income statement (refer to Note 12) 7.0 (2.9)
(34.7) 8.2 

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (refer to Note 12) (185.4) (72.5)
Total comprehensive income for the year 158.6 208.2 

Owners of the parent 158.1 207.8 
Non-controlling interests 0.5 0.4 

158.6 208.2 
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
 As at 31 December

 Note
2016  

€ million
2015  

Assets    
Intangible assets 13 1,885.7 1,911.6 
Property, plant and equipment 14 2,406.6 2,545.5 
Equity method investments 15 117.0 113.8 

23 8.1 6.6 
Deferred tax assets 10 57.5 56.3 
Other non-current assets 17 28.7 31.4 

 4,503.6 4,665.2 
    
Inventories 16 431.5 435.8 
Trade, other receivables and assets 17 1,030.8 909.5 

23 7.9 16.9 
Current tax assets  6.1 12.9 
Cash and cash equivalents 24 573.2 487.4 
 2,049.5 1,862.5 

18 11.8 5.5 
Total current assets  2,061.3 1,868.0 
Total assets  6,564.9 6,533.2 
    
Liabilities    
Borrowings 24 156.5 781.5 

23 14.2 40.9 
Trade and other payables 19 1,587.3 1,503.6 

20 118.6 86.8 
Current tax liabilities  91.5 78.1 
Total current liabilities  1,968.1 2,490.9 
    
Borrowings 24 1,468.1 923.0 

23 1.3 14.5 
Deferred tax liabilities 10 124.1 132.0 

20 125.0 141.5 
Other non-current liabilities  8.2 7.2 

 1,726.7 1,218.2 
Total liabilities  3,694.8 3,709.1 
    
Equity    
Share capital 25 1,990.8 2,000.1 
Share premium 25 4,854.6 5,028.3 
Group reorganisation reserve 25 (6,472.1) (6,472.1)
Treasury shares 25 (70.7) (132.0)
Exchange equalisation reserve 25 (801.8) (681.4)
Other reserves 25 245.1 260.4 
Retained earnings 3,119.7 2,816.5 
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 2,865.6 2,819.8 
Non-controlling interests 4.5 4.3 
Total equity 2,870.1 2,824.1 
Total equity and liabilities 6,564.9 6,533.2 
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
 Attributable to owners of the parent   

 
 

Share 
capital 

Share 
premium 

Group 
reorganisation 

reserve 
Treasury

shares

Exchange
equalisation

reserve
Other

reserves
Retained
earnings Total

€ million

Non-
controlling

interests
Total

equity
€ million

Balance as at 1 January 2015 1,998.1 5,157.6 (6,472.1) (70.7) (615.3) 259.7 2,529.7 2,787.0 4.1 2,791.1 
Shares issued to employees 
exercising stock options 2.0 3.1 – – – – – 5.1 – 5.1 

          
Options and performance 
shares – – – – – 8.8 – 8.8 – 8.8 

equity compensation plan – – – (0.6) – 1.3 – 0.7 – 0.7 
Acquisition of treasury shares – – – (58.5) – – – (58.5) – (58.5)
Appropriation of reserves – – – (2.2) – 5.2 (3.0) – – – 
Dividends – (132.4) – – – – 1.3 (131.1) (0.2) (131.3)

2,000.1 5,028.3 (6,472.1) (132.0) (615.3) 275.0 2,528.0 2,612.0 3.9 2,615.9 
– – – – – – 280.3 280.3 0.4 280.7 

Other comprehensive income for 
the year, net of tax – – – – (66.1) (14.6) 8.2 (72.5) – (72.5)
Total comprehensive income for 
the year, net of tax1 – – – – (66.1) (14.6) 288.5 207.8 0.4 208.2 
Balance as at 31 December 2015 2,000.1 5,028.3 (6,472.1) (132.0) (681.4) 260.4 2,816.5 2,819.8 4.3 2,824.1 

loss relating to the share of other comprehensive income of equity method investments. 
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity continued
Attributable to owners of the parent

Share
capital

Share
premium

Group
reorganisation

reserve
Treasury

shares

Exchange
equalisation

reserve
Other

reserves
Retained
earnings Total

€ million

Non-
controlling

interests
Total

equity
€ million

Balance as at 1 January 2016 2,000.1 5,028.3 (6,472.1) (132.0) (681.4) 260.4 2,816.5 2,819.8 4.3 2,824.1 
Shares issued to employees 
exercising stock options 9.1 12.5 – – – – – 21.6 – 21.6 

Options and performance 
shares – – – – – 8.1 – 8.1 – 8.1 

equity compensation plan – – – (0.4) – – – (0.4) – (0.4)
Sale of own shares – – – 3.1 – – – 3.1 – 3.1 
Cancellation of shares (18.4) (40.1) – 58.5 – – – – – – 
Appropriation of reserves – – – 0.1 – 6.9 (7.0) – – – 
Dividends – (146.1) – – – – 1.4 (144.7) (0.3) (145.0)

1,990.8 4,854.6 (6,472.1) (70.7) (681.4) 275.4 2,810.9 2,707.5 4.0 2,711.5 
– – – – – – 343.5 343.5 0.5 344.0 

Other comprehensive income  
for the year, net of tax – – – – (120.4) (30.3) (34.7) (185.4) – (185.4)
Total comprehensive income  
for the year, net of tax2 – – – – (120.4) (30.3) 308.8 158.1 0.5 158.6 
Balance as at 31 December 2016 1,990.8 4,854.6 (6,472.1) (70.7) (801.8) 245.1 3,119.7 2,865.6 4.5 2,870.1 
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
 Year ended 31 December

Note
2016 

€ million
2015 

Operating activities  
 344.0 280.7 

Finance costs, net 9 62.3 68.2 
Share of results of equity method investments 15 (13.8) (7.1)
Tax charged to the income statement 10 113.8 76.4 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14 305.5 308.1 
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 14 26.9 32.1 
Employee stock options and performance shares 27 8.1 8.8 
Amortisation of intangible assets 13 0.4 0.4 
Other non-cash items  (1.3) (1.3)

845.9 766.3 
(Gain) / loss on disposals of non-current assets 8 (2.9) 1.8 
Decrease / (increase) in inventories 3.8 (37.1)
Increase in trade and other receivables (122.6) (13.8)
Increase in trade and other payables 131.2 94.8 
Tax paid (92.1) (72.7)
Net cash from operating activities 763.3 739.3 

Investing activities
Payments for purchases of property, plant and equipment  (347.8) (331.5)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 35.9 17.8 
Net receipts from investments 22,26 17.8 120.9 
Loans to related parties 2.8 (2.7)
Interest received 7.3 9.5 
Payments for acquisition of subsidiaries 22 (19.5) – 
Net cash used in investing activities  (303.5) (186.0)

 
Financing activities
Share buy-back payments 25 – (58.5)
Proceeds from sale of own shares  3.1 – 
Payments for shares held by non-controlling interests (0.7) (1.2)
Proceeds from shares issued to employees exercising stock options 25 21.6 5.1 
Dividends paid to owners of the parent 25 (144.7) (131.1)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (0.3) (0.2)
Proceeds from borrowings 679.6 104.2 
Repayments of borrowings (738.2) (524.2)

(20.2) (13.8)
Payments for settlement of forward starting swaps (55.4) – 
Interest paid  (72.8) (69.5)

(328.0) (689.2)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  131.8 (135.9)
 
Movement in cash and cash equivalents  
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 487.4 636.3 
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 131.8 (135.9)

(46.0) (13.0)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 24 573.2 487.4 
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1. Description of business
Coca-Cola HBC AG and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group’ or ‘Coca-Cola HBC’ or ‘the Company’) are principally engaged in the production, sales and 
distribution of non-alcoholic ready-to-drink beverages, under franchise from The Coca-Cola Company. The Company distributes its products 
in 27 countries in Europe and Nigeria. Information on the Company’s operations by segment is included in Note 6.

On 11 October 2012, Coca-Cola HBC, a Swiss stock corporation (Aktiengesellschaft/Société Anonyme) incorporated by Kar-Tess Holding 

by American depositary shares, and became the new parent company of the Group. On 17 June 2013, Coca-Cola HBC completed its 
statutory buy-out of the remaining shares of Coca-Cola Hellenic Bottling Company S.A. that it did not acquire upon completion of its 

eventually delisted from the Athens Exchange, from the London Stock Exchange where it had a secondary listing and from the New York Stock 
Exchange where American depositary shares were listed.

CCH) on 29 April 2013. On 24 July 2014 the Group proceeded to the delisting of its American Depository Receipts from the New York Stock 
Exchange and terminated its reporting obligations under the US Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The deregistration of Coca-Cola HBC 

2. Basis of preparation and consolidation

Basis of preparation

(‘IFRS’) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB’).

assumptions, as well as related qualitative and quantitative disclosures, have been presented together in the same note in order to provide a 

Basis of consolidation
Subsidiary undertakings are those companies over which the Group, directly or indirectly, has control. The Group controls an entity when the 

power over the entity. Subsidiary undertakings are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and cease to be 
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred out of the Group. 

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions that is, as transactions 

carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. 

Inter-company transactions and balances between Group companies are eliminated. The subsidiaries’ accounting policies are consistent with 
policies adopted by the Group.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when such control 
is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in the income statement. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the 

previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of 

income statement.

3. Foreign currency and translation

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated into Euro at the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date. The results 
of foreign subsidiaries are translated into Euro using the average monthly exchange rate (being a reasonable approximation of the rates 

foreign currencies are remeasured at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All gains and losses arising on remeasurement are 

deferred in equity until the occurrence of the hedged transaction, at which time they are recognised in the income statement. Share capital 
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency is initially stated at spot rate of the date of issue but is not retranslated.

Average 
2016 

Average 
2015 

Closing 
2016 

Closing 
2015 

US dollar 1.11 1.11 1.04 1.09 
UK sterling 0.82 0.72 0.85 0.74 
Polish zloty 4.36 4.17 4.40 4.23 
Nigerian naira 279.97 215.63 317.95 216.15 
Hungarian forint 311.40 309.12 309.22 312.98 
Swiss franc 1.09 1.06 1.07 1.08 
Russian rouble 74.36 67.67 64.72 78.95 
Romanian leu 4.49 4.44 4.54 4.54 
Ukrainian hryvnia 28.27 24.52 27.97 26.06 
Czech koruna 27.03 27.29 27.02 27.03 
Serbian dinar 123.08 120.70 123.30 121.33

4. Accounting pronouncements

a) Accounting pronouncements adopted in 2016
In the current period, the Group has adopted the following standards and amendments which were issued by the IASB, that are relevant to its 

 –

 –

 –

b) Accounting pronouncements not yet adopted

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers that will replace IAS 18, which covers contracts for goods and services, and IAS 11, which 
covers construction contracts. The new standard is based on the principle that revenue is recognised when control of a good or service 

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, Financial Instruments
Recognition and Measurement

the accounting for hedging instruments more closely with the Group’s risk management practices and therefore more hedge relationships 
are expected to be eligible for hedge accounting. Based on a preliminary assessment, it would appear that the Group’s current hedge 
relationships would qualify as continuing hedges upon the adoption of IFRS 9. Furthermore, the Group will assess possible changes related 
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4. Accounting pronouncements continued
IFRS 16, Leases. The new standard supersedes IAS 17 and its objective is to ensure that lessees and lessors provide relevant information 
in a manner that faithfully represents those transactions. IFRS 16 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to 

for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The Group is currently evaluating the impact IFRS 16 will have on its consolidated 

 –

 –

 –

 – IFRIC 22 Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration

 – Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014 (2014–2016 Cycle)

5. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

from estimates.

Estimates
 – Income taxes (refer to Note 10)

 –

 –

Judgements
 – Joint arrangements (refer to Note 15)

6. Segmental analysis
The Group has one business, being the production, sale and distribution of ready-to-drink, primarily non-alcoholic, beverages. The Group 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Emerging markets: Armenia, Belarus, Bosnia and Herzegovina, 

Nigeria, Romania, the Russian Federation, Serbia 
(including the Republic of Kosovo) and Ukraine.

Developing markets: Croatia, Czech Republic, Estonia, Hungary, Latvia, 
Lithuania, Poland, Slovakia and Slovenia.

Established markets: Austria, Cyprus, Greece, Italy, Northern Ireland,  
the Republic of Ireland and Switzerland.

The Group’s operations in each of the three reportable segments have been aggregated on the basis of their similar economic characteristics, 
assessed by reference to their net sales revenue per unit case as well as disposable income per capita, exposure to political and economic 
volatility, regulatory environments, customers and distribution infrastructures. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the 
same as those adopted by the Group. The Group’s chief operating decision maker is its Operating Committee, which evaluates performance 
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a) Volume and net sales revenue
The Group sales volume in million unit cases1

2016 2015 

Established 606.6 621.1 
Developing 383.5 378.7 
Emerging 1,067.8 1,055.2 
Total volume 2,057.9 2,055.0

1. One unit case corresponds to approximately 5.678 litres or 24 servings, being a typically used measure of volume. Volume data is derived from unaudited operational data. 

Emerging: €2,717.0m
Developing: €1,094.2m
Established: €2,407.8m

2016
€6,219.0m

Emerging: €2,768.5m
Developing: €1,092.0m
Established: €2,485.6m

2015
€6,346.1m

There are no material amounts of sales or transfers between the Group’s segments nor are there any customers who represent more than 

In addition to non-alcoholic, ready-to-drink beverages (“NARTD”), the Group sells and distributes premium spirits. An analysis of volume and 

Volume in million unit cases2
2016

€ million1 
2015 

1

NARTD3 2,055.5 2,052.6 
Premium spirits2 2.4 2.4 
Total volume 2,057.9 2,055.0 

Net sales revenue
NARTD 6,040.6 6,164.3 
Premium spirits 178.4 181.8 
Total net sales revenue 6,219.0 6,346.1

1. Excluding volume, which is reported in unit cases.

2. One unit case corresponds to approximately 5.678 litres or 24 servings, being a typically used measure of volume. Volume data is derived from unaudited operational 
data. For premium spirits volume, one unit case corresponds to 5.678 litres.

Net sales revenue from external customers attributed to Switzerland (the Group’s country of domicile), Russia, Italy and Nigeria was as follows 

2016
€ million

2015

Switzerland 423.6 447.0
Russia 983.0 1,039.3
Italy 897.7 919.3
Nigeria 583.3 621.6
All countries, other than Switzerland, Russia, Italy and Nigeria 3,331.4 3,318.9
Total net sales revenue from external customers 6,219.0 6,346.1
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6. Segmental analysis continued

b) Other income statement items

Year ended 31 December  Note
2016 

€ million
2015 

Established 236.8 171.3 
Developing 92.9 87.4 
Emerging 176.6 159.5 

506.3 418.2 

Established (40.1) (30.5)
Developing (4.9) (2.0)
Emerging (8.9) (16.0)
Corporate4 (133.2) (131.8)
Inter segment interest expense 117.4 110.1 

9 (69.7) (70.2)

Finance income
Established 0.5 (0.1)
Developing 1.7 1.9 
Emerging 21.5 29.9 
Corporate4 101.1 87.9 

(117.4) (110.1)
9 7.4 9.5 

Income tax expense
Established (49.7) (25.3)
Developing (19.0) (19.3)
Emerging (35.7) (24.8)
Corporate4 (9.4) (7.0)
Total income tax expense 10 (113.8) (76.4)

Reconciling items 
Net foreign exchange losses 9 – (7.5)
Share of results of equity method investments 15 13.8 7.1 

344.0 280.7

Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment and amortisation of intangible assets included in the measure of operating 

 Note
2016 

€ million
2015 

Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment
Established (95.8) (106.2)
Developing (56.6) (57.9)
Emerging (180.0) (176.1)
Total depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment 14 (332.4) (340.2)
Amortisation of intangible assets
Emerging (0.4) (0.4)
Total amortisation of intangible assets 13 (0.4) (0.4)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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c) Other items
The balance of non-current assets attributed to Switzerland (the Group’s country of domicile), Russia, Italy and Nigeria was as follows for the 

5
2016 

€ million
2015 

Switzerland 546.0 554.6
Russia 578.0 482.0
Italy 990.7 1,004.1
Nigeria 439.9 584.9
All countries, other than Switzerland, Russia, Italy and Nigeria 1,759.3 1,860.1

5 4,313.9 4,485.7

2016 
€ million

2015 

Established 94.7 76.3 
Developing 44.3 34.5 
Emerging 208.8 220.7 
Total expenditure of property, plant and equipment 347.8 331.5

was recognised within other comprehensive income of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income (refer to Note 12). In spite of 

rate for the currency, which may result in further volatility in the local currency. The Group is continuously monitoring the situation in Nigeria in 
order to ensure that timely actions and initiatives are undertaken to minimise potential adverse impact on its performance.

Tensions and market changes in Ukraine and the Russian Federation that have adversely impacted the economies of these countries 
and, among other things, have resulted in increased volatility in currency markets, causing the Russian rouble and the Ukrainian hryvnia 

economic environment, we continue to monitor and assess the situation in the area so as to minimise potential adverse impact on the 
Company’s performance.

continuation of capital controls restricting the movement of funds out of Greece and the ongoing need for austerity measures may further 

consolidated non-current assets. We are continuously monitoring developments in Greece.
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7. Net sales revenue

Accounting policy

have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of goods.

Net sales revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is stated net of sales discounts, as well as 
listing fees and marketing and promotional incentives provided to customers. Net sales revenue includes excise and other duties where 
the Group pays as principal but excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties, such as value added taxes. Listing fees are incentives 
provided to customers for carrying the Group’s products in their stores. Listing fees that are subject to contract-based term arrangements 
are capitalised and amortised over the term of the contract as a reduction to revenue. All other listing fees as well as marketing and 
promotional incentives are a reduction of revenue as incurred. 

Coca-Cola HBC receives contributions from The Coca-Cola Company in order to promote sales of their brands. Contributions for price 

provided to those customers to which the contributions contractually relate. These contributions are accrued and matched to the 
expenditure to which they relate (refer to Note 26).

Refer to Note 6 for an analysis of net sales revenue per reportable segment.

Listing fees and marketing and promotional incentives provided to customers recognised as a reduction to net sales revenue for the years 

2016 
€ million

2015 

Listing fees 485.9 516.8 
216.6 174.9 

Total listing fees, marketing and promotional incentives 702.5 691.7

8. Operating expenses

Accounting policy

centralisation of processes. Redundancy provisions are recognised only when the Group has a present constructive obligation, which is 

main features.

a) Operating expenses

2016 
€ million

2015 

Selling expenses 869.9 851.8 
Delivery expenses 483.1 531.7 
Administrative expenses 401.8 471.7 
Restructuring expenses 37.7 54.0 
Operating expenses 1,792.5 1,909.2 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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b) Employee costs

2016 
€ million

2015 

Wages and salaries 707.1 760.8 
Social security costs 143.0 151.5 

112.8 131.3 
21.1 26.2 

Total employee costs 984.0 1,069.8

c) Directors’ and senior management remuneration 

2016 2015 

€ million

18.7 12.3 
Stock option and performance share awards 4.9 5.1 

0.8 0.8 
Total remuneration 24.4 18.2 

d) Fees and other services of the auditor 

2016 
€ million

2015 

Audit fees 4.5 5.0 
Audit-related fees 0.4 0.5 
Other fees 0.2 0.1 
Total audit and all other fees 5.1 5.6

Emerging: €21.1m
Developing: €9.0m
Established: €23.9m

2015
€54.0m

Emerging: €22.0m
Developing: €6.3m
Established: €9.4m

2016
€37.7m

Restructuring expenses

initiatives. The restructuring concerns mainly employees’ costs and impairment of property, plant and equipment (refer to Note 14). 
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9. Finance costs, net

Accounting policy

within ‘Finance income’ and ‘Finance costs’ respectively.

2016 
€ million

2015 

Interest income 7.4 9.5 
Interest expense (60.6) (59.4)

(1.4) (1.9)
Net foreign exchange remeasurement losses – (7.5)

(7.7) (8.9)
Finance costs (69.7) (77.7)
Finance costs, net (62.3) (68.2)

10. Taxation

Accounting policy
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or in 
equity. In this case, the tax is recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The current income tax expense is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in 

with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions, where appropriate, 

recognition of goodwill; deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other 

reverse in the foreseeable future. This includes taxation in respect of the retained earnings of overseas subsidiaries only to the extent that, 
at the balance sheet date, dividends have been accrued as receivable or a binding agreement to distribute past earnings in future periods 
has been entered into by the subsidiary.

entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Critical accounting estimates
The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax 
determination cannot be assessed with certainty in the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises a provision for potential cases 
that might arise in the foreseeable future based on assessment of the probabilities as to whether additional taxes will be due. Where the 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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2016 
€ million

2015 

Current tax expense 116.4 93.2 
Deferred tax (2.6) (16.8)
Income tax expense 113.8 76.4

2016 
€ million

2015 

457.8 357.1 

105.0 88.6 
Additional local taxes in foreign jurisdictions 8.9 11.7 
Tax holidays in foreign jurisdictions 0.7 (1.5)
Expenses non-deductible for tax purposes 14.9 14.1 
Income not subject to tax (12.5) (28.3)
Changes in tax laws and rates (2.3) (10.1)

(2.3) 3.7 
Recognition of previously unrecognised post-acquisition tax losses 1.5 (2.6)
Other (0.1) 0.8 
Income tax expense 113.8 76.4

Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes include marketing and advertising expenses, service fees, bad debt provisions, entertainment 

certain of our jurisdictions.

Deferred tax assets:
2016 

€ million
2015 

To be recovered after more than 12 months 48.0 59.2 
To be recovered within 12 months 86.0 79.7 
Gross deferred tax assets 134.0 138.9 

(76.5) (82.6)
Net deferred tax assets 57.5 56.3 

Deferred tax liabilities:
To be recovered after more than 12 months (181.9) (197.6)
To be recovered within 12 months (18.7) (17.0)
Gross deferred tax liabilities (200.6) (214.6)

76.5 82.6 
Net deferred tax liabilities (124.1) (132.0)

2016 
€ million

2015 

As at 1 January (75.7) (97.4)
Taken to the income statement 2.6 16.8 
Taken to other comprehensive income 8.1 2.6 
Foreign currency translation (1.6) 2.3 
As at 31 December (66.6) (75.7)
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10. Taxation continued

Deferred tax assets
Provisions

Pensions and Tax losses
carry-forward

Book in
excess of tax
depreciation Leasing

Other 
deferred

tax assets Total
€ million

As at 1 January 2015 45.8 27.1 34.8 7.5 13.4 22.6 151.2 
Taken to the income statement (0.2) 1.7 (9.0) 0.3 (0.6) 0.6 (7.2)
Taken to other comprehensive income – (2.3) – – – 2.4 0.1 
Transfers between assets/liabilities 3.1 0.5 – – – (3.1) 0.5 
Foreign currency translation (2.4) – (1.4) – (0.7) (1.2) (5.7)
As at 31 December 2015 46.3 27.0 24.4 7.8 12.1 21.3 138.9 
Taken to the income statement 7.7 (6.0) (9.1) 0.3 (3.3) 3.2 (7.2)
Taken to other comprehensive income 0.3 6.0 – – – 0.3 6.6 
Transfers between assets/liabilities 6.0 (1.0) – 0.2 – (6.0) (0.8)
Foreign currency translation 3.2 (3.9) 1.4 – (0.2) (4.0) (3.5)
As at 31 December 2016 63.5 22.1 16.7 8.3 8.6 14.8 134.0

Deferred tax liabilities

Tax in excess
of book

depreciation
Derivative

instruments

Other deferred 
tax

liabilities Total
€ million

As at 1 January 2015 (238.2) (3.1) (7.3) (248.6)
Taken to the income statement 26.1 (2.1) – 24.0 
Taken to other comprehensive income – 3.3 (0.8) 2.5 
Transfers between assets/liabilities – – (0.5) (0.5)
Foreign currency translation 8.3 – (0.3) 8.0 
As at 31 December 2015 (203.8) (1.9) (8.9) (214.6)
Taken to the income statement 13.6 (1.5) (2.3) 9.8 
Taken to other comprehensive income – 1.5 – 1.5 
Transfers between assets/liabilities (0.2) – 1.0 0.8 
Foreign currency translation 2.0 – (0.1) 1.9 
As at 31 December 2016 (188.4) (1.9) (10.3) (200.6)

Deferred tax assets recognised for tax losses carry-forward in accordance with the relevant local rules applying in our jurisdictions can be 

2016
€ million

2015

9.8 15.6
– 5.0

6.9 3.8
Recognised deferred tax assets attributable to tax losses 16.7 24.4

The Group has unrecognised deferred tax assets attributable to tax losses that are available to carry forward against future taxable income of 

2016  
€ million

2015

12.3 12.1
0.7 3.5

Unrecognised deferred tax assets attributable to tax losses 13.0 15.6

in the event of plans to remit overseas earnings of subsidiaries, such distribution would not give rise to a tax liability.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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11. Earnings per share

Accounting policy

ordinary shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year is the number 
of ordinary shares outstanding at the beginning of the year, adjusted by the number of ordinary shares bought back or issued during the 
year multiplied by a time-weighting factor. Diluted earnings per share incorporates stock options for which the average share price for the 

2016 2015

343.5 280.3 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share (million) 362.1 363.7 

1.4 1.5 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share (million) 363.5 365.2 
Basic and diluted earnings per share (€) 0.95 0.77

12. Components of other comprehensive income

2016 2015

€ million

Tax 
income

€ million € million
Before-tax

Tax 
(expense)/

income Net-of-tax

(0.1) – (0.1) 0.1 (0.1) – 
(31.3) 1.1 (30.2) (20.3) 5.6 (14.7)

Foreign currency translation (112.9) – (112.9) (65.8) – (65.8)
Actuarial (losses) / gains (41.7) 7.0 (34.7) 11.1 (2.9) 8.2 
Share of other comprehensive income  
of equity method investments (7.5) – (7.5) (0.2) – (0.2)
Other comprehensive income (193.5) 8.1 (185.4) (75.1) 2.6 (72.5)

The majority of foreign currency translation impact for 2016 is related to the Nigerian naira and the Russian rouble, while the majority of the 
impact for 2015 related to the Russian rouble and the Swiss franc.
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13. Intangible assets

Accounting policy

Intangible assets not subject to amortisation consist of goodwill, franchise agreements and trademarks.

Goodwill is the excess of the consideration transferred over the fair value of the share of net assets acquired. Goodwill and fair value 
adjustments arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries are treated as the assets and liabilities of those subsidiaries. These balances are 
denominated in the functional currency of the subsidiary and are translated to Euro on a basis consistent with the other assets and 
liabilities of the subsidiary.

The useful life of franchise agreements is usually based on the term of the respective franchise agreements. The Coca-Cola Company 
does not grant perpetual franchise rights outside the United States. However, the Group believes its franchise agreements, consistent with 

that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the value-in-use and fair value less costs to sell) of the 

less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Critical accounting estimates

cash-generating units to which they have been allocated in order to determine the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units. 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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Goodwill
Franchise

agreements Trademarks
Other intangible

assets Total
€ million

Cost
As at 1 January 2015 1,847.8 156.8 63.3 26.3 2,094.2 
Foreign currency translation 34.8 (1.1) (6.4) (0.1) 27.2 
As at 31 December 2015 1,882.6 155.7 56.9 26.2 2,121.4 
Amortisation
As at 1 January 2015 182.4 – 8.9 18.1 209.4 
Charge for the year – – – 0.4 0.4 
As at 31 December 2015 182.4 – 8.9 18.5 209.8 
Net book value as at 1 January 2015 1,665.4 156.8 54.4 8.2 1,884.8 
Net book value as at 31 December 2015 1,700.2 155.7 48.0 7.7 1,911.6 
Cost
As at 1 January 2016 1,882.6 155.7 56.9 26.2 2,121.4 
Intangible assets arising on current year acquisitions
(refer to Note 22) 3.2 – 7.8 8.8 19.8 

– – (7.8) (8.8) (16.6)
Foreign currency translation (31.5) (6.3) 9.0 0.1 (28.7)
As at 31 December 2016 1,854.3 149.4 65.9 26.3 2,095.9 
Amortisation
As at 1 January 2016 182.4 – 8.9 18.5 209.8 
Charge for the year – – – 0.4 0.4 
As at 31 December 2016 182.4 – 8.9 18.9 210.2 
Net book value as at 1 January 2016 1,700.2 155.7 48.0 7.7 1,911.6 
Net book value as at 31 December 2016 1,671.9 149.4 57.0 7.4 1,885.7

Goodwill: €1,671.9m
Franchise agreements: €149.4m
Trademarks: €57.0m

2016
€1,878.3m

Goodwill: €1,700.2m
Franchise agreements: €155.7m
Trademarks: €47.9m

2015
€1,903.8m
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Italy: 40%
Switzerland: 23%
The Republic of Ireland and 
Northern Ireland: 13%
Other: 24%

Intangible assets not subject to 
amortisation as at 31 December 2016 (%)

13. Intangible assets continued

past performance, expectations for the development of the market and expectations about raw material costs. The growth rates used 

Goodwill
Franchise

agreements Trademarks Total
€ million

Italy 625.2 126.9 – 752.1
Switzerland 430.2 – – 430.2
The Republic of Ireland and Northern Ireland 250.4 – – 250.4
All other cash-generating units 366.1 22.5 57.0 445.6
Total 1,671.9 149.4 57.0 1,878.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

 
Growth rate in perpetuity 

(%)
Discount rate 

(%)

 2016 2015 2016 2015 

Italy 2.5 2.5 6.5 5.9 
Switzerland 1.5 0.6 6.7 6.1 
The Republic of Ireland and 
Northern Ireland 3.1 2.2 6.8 6.1 

Coca-Cola HBC
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Sensitivity analysis

Average gross Growth rate in
perpetuity

Discount
rate

Nigeria 

14. Property, plant and equipment

Accounting policy
All property, plant and equipment is initially recorded at cost and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

reliably. All other subsequent expenditure is expensed in the period in which it is incurred. 

Assets under construction are recorded as part of property, plant and equipment and depreciation on these assets commences when the 
assets are available for use.

The Coca-Cola Company, at its sole discretion, provides the Group with contributions towards the purchase of cold drink equipment. 
Payments are made on placement of coolers and are based on franchise incentive arrangements. The terms and conditions of these 
arrangements require reimbursement if certain conditions stipulated in the agreements are not met, including minimum volume 
through-put requirements. Support payments received from The Coca-Cola Company for the placement of cold drink equipment 

Freehold buildings and improvements 40 years
Leasehold buildings and improvements Over the lease term, up to 40 years
Production equipment 4 to 20 years 
Vehicles 5 to 8 years
Computer hardware and software 3 to 10 years

3 to 10 years
8 years

Returnable containers 3 to 12 years

Deposits received for returnable containers by customers are accounted for as deposit liabilities (refer to Note 19).

Residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate at each balance sheet date.

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the 
amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of the asset’s fair value less cost 
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14. Property, plant and equipment continued

Land and
buildings

Plant and
equipment

Returnable
containers

Assets under
construction Total

€ million

Cost
As at 1 January 2015 1,406.4 3,668.5 414.7 113.7 5,603.3 
Additions 3.8 110.7 47.1 205.8 367.4 
Disposals (5.7) (130.9) (28.1) – (164.7)

– 0.9 – – 0.9 
(11.2) (12.6) – – (23.8)
76.6 149.3 0.5 (226.4) – 

Foreign currency translation (28.3) (114.9) (6.5) (6.1) (155.8)
As at 31 December 2015 1,441.6 3,671.0 427.7 87.0 5,627.3 
Depreciation and impairment
As at 1 January 2015 394.5 2,398.3 186.1 0.3 2,979.2 
Charge for the year 40.8 232.9 34.4 – 308.1 
Impairment 7.1 21.9 3.1 – 32.1 
Disposals (5.6) (128.3) (15.8) – (149.7)

(6.6) (11.8) – – (18.4)
Foreign currency translation (6.3) (61.6) (1.6) – (69.5)
As at 31 December 2015 423.9 2,451.4 206.2 0.3 3,081.8 
Net book value as at 31 December 2015 1,017.7 1,219.6 221.5 86.7 2,545.5 
Cost
As at 1 January 2016 1,441.6 3,671.0 427.7 87.0 5,627.3 
Additions 4.1 119.5 43.0 173.1 339.7 
Arising on acquisitions (refer to Note 22) 1.5 1.3 – – 2.8 
Disposals (25.0) (210.0) (14.2) (0.1) (249.3)

10.4 3.0 – – 13.4 
(48.5) (3.0) – – (51.5)
43.0 102.0 – (145.0) – 

Foreign currency translation (20.5) (61.7) (62.4) (12.6) (157.2)
As at 31 December 2016 1,406.6 3,622.1 394.1 102.4 5,525.2 
Depreciation and impairment
As at 1 January 2016 423.9 2,451.4 206.2 0.3 3,081.8 
Charge for the year 39.5 229.5 36.5 – 305.5 
Impairment 13.8 10.8 1.7 0.6 26.9 
Disposals (9.5) (202.9) (11.7) – (224.1)

6.3 2.8 – – 9.1 
(34.3) (2.8) – – (37.1)

Foreign currency translation 0.8 (22.6) (21.7) – (43.5)
As at 31 December 2016 440.5 2,466.2 211.0 0.9 3,118.6 
Net book value as at 31 December 2016 966.1 1,155.9 183.1 101.5 2,406.6

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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Impairment of property, plant and equipment

mainly relates to restructuring initiatives (refer also to Note 8). The impaired assets, being mainly land and buildings and production equipment, 

sell, which is considered a Level 3 measurement.

mainly relates to restructuring initiatives (refer also to Note 8). The impaired assets, being mainly buildings and production equipment, were 

Leased assets

Accounting policy
 

Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the present value of the 

rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period (refer to Note 24). Property, plant and equipment acquired under 

with the Group policy for the depreciable life of property, plant and equipment.

2016 
€ million

2015 

Cost 184.9 202.2 
Accumulated depreciation (82.4) (85.6)
Net book value 102.5 116.6 

Plant and equipment 67.4 78.6 
Land and buildings 35.1 38.0 
Net book value 102.5 116.6
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15. Interests in other entities

List of principal subsidiaries

Country of registration 2016 2015 2016 2015

AS Coca-Cola HBC Eesti Estonia
Austria

CCHBC Armenia CJSC Armenia
CCHBC Bulgaria AD Bulgaria
CCHBC Insurance (Guernsey) Limited Guernsey
CCHBC IT Services Limited Bulgaria
Coca-Cola HBC Austria GmbH Austria
Coca-Cola Beverages Belorussiya Belarus
Coca-Cola HBC Ceska republika, s.r.o. Czech Republic
Coca-Cola Beverages Ukraine Ltd Ukraine
Coca-Cola Bottlers Chisinau S.R.L.
Coca-Cola HBC-Srbija d.o.o. Serbia
Coca-Cola HBC B-H d.o.o. Sarajevo Bosnia and Herzegovina
Coca-Cola HBC Finance B.V. The Netherlands
Coca-Cola HBC Greece S.A.I.C. Greece
Coca-Cola HBC Hrvatska d.o.o. Croatia
Coca-Cola HBC Hungary Ltd Hungary
Coca-Cola HBC Ireland Limited Republic of Ireland
Coca-Cola HBC Italia S.r.l. Italy
Coca-Cola HBC Kosovo L.L.C. Kosovo
Coca-Cola HBC Northern Ireland Limited Northern Ireland
Coca-Cola HBC Polska sp. z o.o. Poland
Coca-Cola HBC Romania Ltd Romania
Coca-Cola HBC Slovenija d.o.o. Slovenia
Coca-Cola HBC Slovenska republika, s.r.o. Slovakia
Coca-Cola HBC Switzerland Ltd Switzerland
Coca-Cola Hellenic Bottling Company-Crna Gora d.o.o., Podgorica
Coca-Cola Hellenic Business Service Organisation Bulgaria
Coca-Cola Hellenic Procurement GmbH Austria
Lanitis Bros Ltd Cyprus
LLC Coca-Cola HBC Eurasia Russia
Nigerian Bottling Company Ltd Nigeria
SIA Coca-Cola HBC Latvia Latvia
UAB Coca-Cola HBC Lietuva Lithuania
CC Beverages Holdings II B.V. The Netherlands
Coca-Cola HBC Holdings B.V. The Netherlands
Star Bottling Limited Cyprus

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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Associates and joint arrangements

Accounting policies

Investments in associated undertakings are accounted for by the equity method of accounting. Associated undertakings are all entities 

voting rights.

period in the income statement and its share of the post-acquisition movement in other comprehensive income is recognised in other 
comprehensive income. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to 
the extent of the interest in the associate.

and includes goodwill on acquisition. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the 
Group does not recognise further losses, unless the Group has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Joint arrangements are arrangements in which the Group has contractually agreed sharing of control, which exists only when decisions 

upon the rights and obligations arising from the joint arrangement.

accounts for its interests in joint ventures using the equity method of accounting as described in the section above.

of the arrangement and accounts for each of its assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, including its share of those held or incurred 
jointly, in relation to the joint operation.

If facts and circumstances change, the Group reassesses whether it still has joint control and whether the type of joint arrangement in 
which it is involved has changed.

Critical accounting judgements

where the Group has rights to the net assets of the arrangement, or a joint operation where the Group has rights to the assets and 
obligations for the liabilities of the arrangement. In making this judgement, consideration is given to the legal form of the arrangement, and 
the contractual terms and conditions, as well as other facts and circumstances (including the economic rationale of the arrangement and 
the impact of the legal framework).

a) Equity method investments

Associates
Joint

ventures Total
€ million

As at 1 January 2015 20.6 206.9 227.5 
Acquisitions 0.5 – 0.5 

Share of results of equity method investments 4.6 2.5 7.1 
Share of other comprehensive income of equity method investments (1.0) 0.8 (0.2)

Share of total comprehensive income 3.6 3.3 6.9 
Dividends (1.5) (119.6) (121.1)
As at 31 December 2015 23.2 90.6 113.8 
Capital increase – 7.9 7.9 
Additions (refer to Note 22) – 7.1 7.1 

Share of results of equity method investments 7.8 6.0 13.8 
Share of other comprehensive income of equity method investments (7.4) (0.1) (7.5)

Share of total comprehensive income 0.4 5.9 6.3 
Dividends (1.1) (17.0) (18.1)
As at 31 December 2016 22.5 94.5 117.0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

15. Interests in other entities continued
Included in investment in associates is the Group’s investment in Frigoglass Industries Limited and Frigoglass West Africa Ltd. Nigerian 

Investments in joint ventures
The Group has a material joint venture with Heineken that is conducted through a number of legal entities being the BrewTech B.V. Group of 

Brewinvest S.A., parent company of Brewinvest S.A. Group of companies, which has minimal other activities, is incorporated in Greece and 

2016 
€ million

2015 

Summarised balance sheet:
Cash and cash equivalents 31.1 29.5 
Other current assets 16.8 7.3 
Total current assets 47.9 36.8 
Short-term borrowings – (0.3)
Other current liabilities (including trade payables) (10.9) (10.5)
Total current liabilities (10.9) (10.8)

46.9 80.4 
(0.2) (0.4)

Net assets 83.7 106.0 

Summarised statement of comprehensive income:
Net sales revenue 57.8 55.1 
Depreciation and amortisation (4.7) (5.9)
Interest income 0.6 1.0 
Interest expense (0.1) (0.2)

13.2 11.8 
Tax (1.6) (1.4)

11.6 10.4 
Other comprehensive income – (0.1)
Total comprehensive income 11.6 10.3 
Dividends received (refer to Note 26d) 16.5 119.6 

Reconciliation of net assets to carrying amount:
Closing net assets 83.7 106.0 

41.8 53.0 
Goodwill 16.9 16.9 
Non-controlling interest (1.7) (1.7)
Carrying value 57.0 68.2
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2016 
€ million

2015 

Carrying amount 37.5 22.4 
0.2 (2.7)

Share of other comprehensive income (0.1) 0.8 
Share of total comprehensive income 0.1 (1.9)

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s share of its joint ventures’ capital commitments and long-term commitments to purchase raw materials 

b) Joint operations

depicted below, which are engaged in the production and distribution of water in the respective countries.

Country Joint operation Country Joint operation

Austria Römerquelle Poland
Italy Fonti del Vulture Switzerland Valser
Romania Dorna Serbia Vlasinka

16. Inventories

Accounting policy
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

comprised of the cost of direct materials and labour plus attributable overhead costs. Cost includes all costs incurred to bring the product 
to its present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs necessary to complete and 
sell the inventory.

2016 
€ million

2015 

Finished goods 199.8 194.8 
Raw materials and work in progress 158.3 159.4 
Consumables 73.4 81.6 
Total inventories 431.5 435.8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

17. Trade, other receivables and assets

Accounting policies
Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. A provision for doubtful debts is 
established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due, according to the original terms 

reorganisation and default or delinquency in payments (over 90 days) are considered indicators that the trade receivable could be 

amount of the provision, which is recognised as part of operating expenses. If a trade receivable ultimately becomes uncollectible, it is 

Loans are initially recognised at the fair value net of transaction costs incurred.

After initial recognition, all interest-bearing loans are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated using the 

statement over the borrowing period.

transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the 
transferred asset. When the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred 
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that 
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that 

income statement.

Gains and losses on held-to-maturity investments are recognised in the income statement, when the investments are derecognised 
or impaired.
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Current assets

2016 
€ million

2015 2016 
€ million

2015 

Trade and other receivables:
Trade receivables 727.6 664.0 2.2 5.1 
Receivables from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.5 8.7 – – 
Receivables from related parties (refer to Note 26) 117.0 85.7 – – 
Loans to related parties (refer to Note 26) 5.2 8.0 – – 
Loans receivable 0.1 0.8 0.4 0.7 
Non-current income tax receivable – – 8.4 8.2 
VAT and other taxes receivable 35.5 25.3 – – 
Loans and advances to employees 5.7 6.4 – – 
Other receivables 63.2 44.3 – – 
Total trade and other receivables 954.8 843.2 11.0 14.0 
Other assets:
Prepayments 76.0 66.3 13.2 12.4 
Held-to-maturity investments – – 0.9 1.1 
Pension plan assets (refer to Note 20) – – – 2.2 

– – 3.6 1.7 
Total other assets 76.0 66.3 17.7 17.4 
Total trade, other receivables and assets 1,030.8 909.5 28.7 31.4 

Non-current trade receivables relate to re-negotiated receivables, which are expected to be settled within the new contractual due date.

2016 
€ million

2015 

Trade receivables 819.6 742.9 
(92.0) (78.9)

Total trade receivables 727.6 664.0

The credit period given to customers ranges from 7 days to 90 days depending on the country and customer type. In most territories, interest 

Before accepting any new credit customers, the Group investigates the potential customer’s credit quality (usually through external 

management, as described in Note 23.

2016 
€ million

2015 

Within due date 588.9 579.5 
(2.5) (4.4)

Past due 230.7 163.4 
(89.5) (74.5)

Total trade receivables 727.6 664.0 

As at 31 December 2016, the Group held collateral, in the form of mortgages, bank guarantees, bills of exchange and credit insurance, as 

borrowings (refer to Note 24).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

17. Trade, other receivables and assets continued

2016 
€ million

Up to three 
months

Three to six 
months

Six to nine 
months

More than nine 
months Total

Trade receivables past due but not impaired 114.6 12.6 3.5 10.5 141.2 
Trade receivables past due and impaired 4.1 7.3 3.4 74.7 89.5 
Total trade receivables past due 118.7 19.9 6.9 85.2 230.7

2015 

Up to three 
months

Three to six 
months

Six to nine  
months months Total

Trade receivables past due but not impaired 79.9 2.7 1.0 5.3 88.9 
Trade receivables past due and impaired 1.0 9.5 2.2 61.8 74.5 
Total trade receivables past due 80.9 12.2 3.2 67.1 163.4 

2016 
€ million

2015 

As at 1 January (78.9) (79.2)
7.7 10.3 

Amounts recovered during the year 2.2 1.2 
Increase in allowance recognised in the income statement (22.8) (11.8)
Foreign currency translation (0.2) 0.6 
As at 31 December (92.0) (78.9)

Receivables from related parties

2016 
€ million

2015 

Within due date 114.0 79.2 
Past due 3.3 6.5 

(0.3) – 
Total related party receivables 117.0 85.7

2016 
€ million

2015 

Up to three months 1.3 4.3 
Three to six months 0.3 0.8 
Six to nine months 0.3 0.4 

1.1 1.0 
Total 3.0 6.5
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Accounting policy

principally recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is 
highly probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition. In order for a sale to be considered 
highly probable, management must be committed to the sale, an active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been 

and equipment and the depreciation charge is adjusted for the depreciation that would have been recognised had the assets not been 

amount and their fair value less costs to sell.

2016 
€ million

2015 

As at 1 January 5.5 1.0 
14.4 5.4 
14.0 – 

Disposals (17.1) – 
(4.3) (0.9)

Foreign currency translation (0.7) – 
As at 31 December 11.8 5.5

equipment in our Established and Emerging markets that have been written down to fair value less cost to sell. This is a non-recurring fair value 

of a sales comparison approach. 

plant and equipment in our Established, Developing and Emerging markets, measured at the lower of the carrying amount and fair value less 
costs to sell. The fair value of held for sale assets was determined through the use of a sales comparison approach and is a non-recurring fair 
value measurement within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

19. Trade and other payables

Accounting policy

2016 
€ million

2015 

Trade payables 536.7 485.1 
Accrued liabilities 471.2 468.5 
Payables to related parties (refer to Note 26) 303.4 259.2 
Deposit liabilities 100.6 112.6 
Other tax and social security liabilities 98.1 89.7 
Salaries and employee-related payables 43.6 45.8 
Deferred income 1.0 1.2 
Other payables 32.7 41.5 
Total trade and other payables 1,587.3 1,503.6
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

2016 
€ million

2015 

Current
96.0 62.3 

Restructuring provisions 8.5 15.7 
Other provisions 14.1 8.8 

118.6 86.8 

Non-current
123.0 140.1 

Restructuring provisions – 0.1 
Other provisions 2.0 1.3 

125.0 141.5 
243.6 228.3

a) Provisions

Accounting policy

amount of the obligation. 

Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as 

recognised as an interest expense.

2016 
€ million

2015 

Restructuring 
provision

Other 
provision

Restructuring 
provision

Other 
provision

As at 1 January 15.8 10.1 7.9 5.3 
Arising during the year 22.7 11.8 37.5 7.0 
Unutilised during the year (26.8) (4.3) (26.3) (2.1)
Unused amount reversed (2.5) (1.5) (3.0) – 
Foreign currency translation (0.7) – (0.3) (0.1)
As at 31 December 8.5 16.1 15.8 10.1
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Accounting policies

Group companies.

balance sheet date less the fair value of the plan assets. 

from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in 

of the related obligation. In countries where there is no deep market in such bonds, the market rates on government bonds are used. Past 

of actuarial gains and losses.

contributions relate.

a restructuring that is within the scope of IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and involves the payment of 

Critical accounting estimates

requires several actuarial assumptions and estimates about discount rates, future salary increases and future pension increases. Due to 

2016 
€ million

2015 

Employee leaving indemnities 76.0 86.9 
Pension plans 39.8 22.3 

8.4 8.7 
124.2 117.9 

Annual leave 7.4 8.2 
87.4 76.3 
94.8 84.5 

219.0 202.4

that operates over a three-year period.

Slovenia are entitled to employee leaving indemnities, generally based on each employee’s length of service, employment category and 
remuneration. These are unfunded plans where the Company meets the payment obligation as it falls due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

continued

plans. Of the three plans in the Republic of Ireland, two have plan assets, as do the two plans in Northern Ireland, one plan in Greece and two 

and Switzerland.

2016

2015

Emerging Developing Established

€101.2m

€78.3m

€20.5m

€37.4m

Total €124.2m

Total €117.9m

€2.5m

€2.2m

2016 
€ million

2015 

496.4 484.8 
Current service cost 10.5 12.1 
Interest cost 11.2 13.1 
Plan participants’ contributions 4.5 4.9 
Past service cost (8.8) (5.8)
Curtailment/settlement (1.3) (5.5)

(25.3) (26.4)
(Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions 0.4 (0.7)

56.2 (2.8)
Experience adjustments 3.2 (1.8)
Foreign currency translation (21.4) 24.5 

525.6 496.4 

2016 
€ million

2015 

Fair value of plan assets at 1 January 380.7 341.7 
Interest income on plan assets 7.1 7.3 
Return on plan assets excluding interest income 18.6 6.0 
Actual employer’s contributions 16.2 16.1 
Actual participant’s contributions 4.5 4.9 

(15.4) (12.4)
Settlement (1.1) (7.3)
Admin expenses (0.3) (0.3)
Foreign currency translation (8.9) 24.7 
Fair value of plan assets at 31 December 401.4 380.7
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2016 
€ million

2015 

Present value of funded obligations 439.1 398.5 
Fair value of plan assets (401.4) (380.7)

37.7 17.8 
Present value of unfunded obligations 86.5 97.9 

124.2 115.7 
– 2.2 

124.2 117.9

Funding levels are monitored in conjunction with the agreed contribution rate. The funding level of the funded plans as at 31 December 2016 

2016 
€ million

2015 

115.7 143.1 
Expense recognised in the income statement 5.4 14.0 
Remeasurements recognised in OCI 41.7 (11.1)
Employer contributions (16.2) (16.1)

(9.9) (14.0)
Foreign currency translation (12.5) (0.2)

124.2 115.7 
– 2.2 

124.2 117.9

2016 
€ million

2015 

Service cost 1.5 8.1 
4.1 5.8 

Actuarial gain (0.5) (0.2)
Administrative expenses 0.3 0.3 
Total 5.4 14.0 

2016 
%

2015 

Discount rate 1.9 2.6 
Rate of compensation increase 2.7 2.9 
Rate of pension increase 1.0 0.8 

22 22 
Female 24 24

Group’s long-term strategy to manage the plans. As the plans mature, the level of investment risk will be reduced by investing more in assets 
such as bonds that better match the liabilities.

Strategic R
epo

rt
C

o
rpo

rate G
o

vernance
Financial Statem

ents
Coca-Cola HBC

2016 Integrated Annual Report 149
Sw

iss Statuto
ry R

epo
rting

Supplem
entary Info

rm
atio

n

COC016_.indb   149 3/16/17   2:36 PM



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

continued

which are expected to outperform corporate bonds in the long term while providing volatility and risk in the short term.

the value of the plans’ bond holdings. Whereas an increase in corporate bond yields will decrease the plan liabilities, although this will be partially 

expectancy will result in an increase in the liabilities.

The sensitivity analysis presented below is based on a change in assumption while all other assumptions remain constant.

 
31 December 2016

Change in 
assumptions

Increase in 
assumption

Decrease in 
assumption

Discount rate

Rate of compensation increase

Rate of pension increase

Life expectancy 1 year

are insurance contracts. Plan assets held in trust are governed by local regulations and practice in each country. The category “other” mainly 

Equity securities were not invested in ordinary shares of the Company as at 31 December 2016 or 31 December 2015.

Equity securities – Eurozone: 4%
Equity securities – Non-Eurozone: 22%
Government bonds – Eurozone: 19%
Corporate bonds – Eurozone: 7%
Corporate bonds – Non-Eurozone: 20%
Real estate: 10%
Cash: 3%
Other: 15%

Assets category 2016 (%)

Equity securities – Eurozone: 4%
Equity securities – Non-Eurozone: 20%
Government bonds – Eurozone: 18%
Corporate bonds – Eurozone: 1%
Corporate bonds – Non-Eurozone: 28%
Real estate: 10%
Cash: 2%
Other: 17%

Assets category 2015 (%)

employee costs and recorded in cost of goods sold and operating expenses.
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Accounting policy

simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of 
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

The Group enters into derivative transactions under International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) master netting agreements 
or other similar agreements. In general, under such agreements the counterparties can elect to settle into one single net amount the 
aggregated amounts owed by each counterparty on a single day with respect of all outstanding transactions of the same currency and the 
same type of derivative. In the event of default or early termination all outstanding transactions under the agreement are terminated and 

a) Financial assets
As at 31 December 2016

Related amounts 

balance sheet

Gross amounts of 

assets 
€ million

Gross amounts of 

balance sheet 
€ million

assets presented in the 
balance sheet 

€ million

Financial 
instruments 

€ million
Net amount 

€ million

16.0 – 16.0 (8.3) 7.7 
Cash and cash equivalents 573.2 – 573.2 – 573.2 
Trade receivables 780.7 (53.1) 727.6 – 727.6 
Total 1,369.9 (53.1) 1,316.8 (8.3) 1,308.5

As at 31 December 2015
Related amounts 

balance sheet

Gross amounts of 

assets 

Gross amounts of 

balance sheet 
assets presented in the 

balance sheet 
Financial  

instruments Net amount 
€ million

23.5 – 23.5  (5.0) 18.5 
Cash and cash equivalents 487.4 – 487.4 –  487.4 
Trade receivables 718.9 (54.9) 664.0 –  664.0 
Total 1,229.8 (54.9)  1,174.9  (5.0)  1,169.9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

continued

b) Financial liabilities 
As at 31 December 2016

Related amounts 

balance sheet

Gross amounts of 

liabilities 
€ million

Gross amounts of 

balance sheet 
€ million

liabilities presented in the 
balance sheet 

€ million

Financial 
instruments

€ million
Net amount

€ million

15.5 – 15.5 (8.3) 7.2 
Trade payables 589.8 (53.1) 536.7 – 536.7 
Total 605.3 (53.1) 552.2 (8.3) 543.9 

As at 31 December 2015
Related amounts 

balance sheet

Gross amounts of 

liabilities 

Gross amounts of 

balance sheet 
liabilities presented in the 

balance sheet 
Financial 

instruments Net amount

55.4 – 55.4  (5.0)  50.4 
Trade payables 540.0 (54.9)  485.1 –  485.1 
Total 595.4 (54.9)  540.5  (5.0)  535.5 

22. Business combinations

Accounting policy
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred is the fair value of 
any asset transferred, shares issued and liabilities assumed. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability 

are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of the consideration transferred and the fair value of non-
controlling interest over the net assets acquired and liabilities assumed is recorded as goodwill. All acquisition-related costs are expensed 
as incurred.

For each business combination, the Group elects whether it measures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at 

Acquisition of controlling interest

Acquiree’s 
carrying

amount before 
acquisition

Fair value
adjustments Fair value

€ million

Trademark – 7.8 7.8 
Water rights – 8.8 8.8 
Property, plant and equipment 2.4 0.4 2.8 
Inventories 0.1 – 0.1 
Other current assets 1.1 – 1.1 
Short-term borrowings (1.0) – (1.0)
Other current liabilities (0.7) – (0.7)
Deferred tax liabilities – (2.6) (2.6)

1.9 14.4 16.3 
Goodwill arising on acquisition 3.2 
Cash paid to former shareholders 19.5
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a joint venture between the Group and TCCC. The gain on the transaction was immaterial.

Accounting policy

a) their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts; 

At the inception of a hedge transaction the Group documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, 
as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge transaction. This process includes linking the derivative 

are recorded in the income statement, together with the changes in the fair values of the hedged items that relate to the hedged 

income statement as they arise.

hedge accounting. At that time, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity is retained in equity until the 
forecast transaction occurs. If a hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is 
transferred to the income statement.

Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date, which is the day the Group commits to purchase or sell. 
The investments are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of FVTPL. For investments traded in active 
markets, fair value is determined by reference to stock exchange quoted bid prices. For other investments, fair value is estimated by 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

continued

Financial risk factors

risk exposures. Risk management is carried out by Group Treasury in a controlled manner, consistent with the Board of Directors’ approved 

Directors has approved the Treasury Policy and Chart of Authority, which together provide the control framework for all treasury and treasury-
related transactions.

Market risk

denominated in currencies other than the local entity’s functional currency, as well as net investments in foreign operations. Foreign currency 
forward, option and future contracts are used to hedge a portion of the Group’s foreign currency risk. The majority of the foreign currency 
forward, option and future contracts have maturities of less than one year after the balance sheet date. The foreign currency risk arising from 
the investment in foreign operations is not hedged. 

manage their foreign exchange risk arising from future transactions and recognised monetary assets and liabilities, entities in the Group use 
foreign currency forward, option and future contracts transacted by Group Treasury. Group Treasury’s risk management policy is to hedge, 

The following tables present details of the Group’s sensitivity to reasonably possible increases and decreases in the Euro and US dollar against 
the relevant foreign currencies. In determining reasonable possible changes, the historical volatility over a 12-month period of the respective 
foreign currencies in relation to the Euro and the US dollar has been considered. The sensitivity analysis determines the potential gains and 
losses in the income statement or equity arising from the Group’s foreign exchange positions as a result of the corresponding percentage 
increases and decreases in the Group’s main foreign currencies relative to the Euro and the US dollar. The sensitivity analysis includes 
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items, external loans, and loans between operations within the Group where the 
denomination of the loan is in a currency other than the functional currency of the local entity.

2016 exchange risk sensitivity to reasonably possible changes in the Euro against relevant other currencies

Euro strengthens against
local currency

Euro weakens against
local currency

% of historical
volatility over a

 Loss/(gain) 
in income

statement
€ million

(Gain)/loss 
in equity
€ million

(Gain)/loss 
in income

statement
€ million

Loss/(gain) 
in equity
€ million

Armenian dram 8.94% (0.3) – 0.3 – 
Belarusian rouble 14.59% (1.0) – 1.4 – 
Bulgarian lev 0.70% (0.2) – 0.2 – 
Croatian kuna 1.63% – (0.1) – 0.2 
Czech koruna 0.69% (0.1) – 0.1 – 
Hungarian forint 4.91% 0.2 (0.5) (0.3) 0.5 

9.90% – 0.7 – (0.9)
Nigerian naira 43.27% 11.1 – (28.0) – 
Polish zloty 7.29% 0.1 (1.8) (0.1) 2.1 
Romanian leu 2.58% 0.1 (0.5) (0.1) 0.6 
Russian rouble 20.12% (2.2) (4.0) 3.2 6.5 
Serbian dinar 2.73% 0.2 – (0.3) – 
Swiss franc 4.47% 0.3 (1.5) (0.3) 1.6 
UK sterling 11.91% 1.2 0.4 (1.5) (0.5)
Ukrainian hryvnia 14.84% 1.3 – (1.7) – 
US dollar 8.29% (0.5) 0.2 0.6 (0.2)

10.2 (7.1) (26.5) 9.9
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2016 exchange risk sensitivity to reasonably possible changes in the US dollar against relevant other currencies

US dollar strengthens against
local currency

US dollar weakens against
local currency

% of historical
volatility over a

Loss/(gain) 
in income

statement
€ million

(Gain)/loss 
in equity
€ million

(Gain)/loss 
in income

statement
€ million

Loss/(gain) 
in equity
€ million

Euro 8.29% 1.8 – (2.1) – 
Hungarian forint 9.79% 0.1 – (0.2) – 
Nigerian naira 38.95% (1.9) – 1.0 – 
Russian rouble 19.53% (0.1) (9.3) (0.6) 15.4 
Serbian dinar 8.46% 0.1 – (0.1) – 
Ukrainian hryvnia 11.80% 0.4 – (0.5) – 

0.4 (9.3) (2.5) 15.4 

2015 exchange risk sensitivity to reasonably possible changes in the Euro against relevant other currencies

Euro strengthens against
local currency

Euro weakens against
local currency

volatility over a
12-month period

 Loss/(gain)
in income

statement
(Gain)/loss 

in equity

 (Gain)/loss in 
income

statement
Loss/(gain) 

in equity

Armenian dram (0.1) – 0.1 – 
Belarusian rouble (1.6) – 2.9 – 
Bulgarian lev (0.1) – 0.1 – 
Croatian kuna (0.1) (0.4) 0.1 0.4 
Czech koruna – (0.3) 0.1 0.2 
Hungarian forint 0.1 (0.5) (0.1) 0.4 

1.2 1.8 (2.2) (3.2)
Nigerian naira 2.8 – (3.9) – 
Polish zloty 0.2 (1.8) 0.1 1.2 
Romanian leu 0.2 (1.0) (0.2) 1.1 
Russian rouble 3.5 (11.5) (1.6) 1.2 
Serbian dinar 0.2 – (0.2) – 
Swiss franc (0.8) (3.7) 1.3 5.8 
UK sterling – 0.7 – (0.9)
Ukrainian hryvnia 5.7 – (13.0) – 
US dollar (0.9) 1.8 1.2 (2.3)

10.3 (14.9) (15.3) 3.9 

2015 exchange risk sensitivity to reasonably possible changes in the US dollar against relevant other currencies

US dollar strengthens against
local currency

US dollar weakens against
local currency

volatility over a
12-month period

Loss/(gain) 
in income

statement
(Gain)/loss 

in equity

(Gain)/loss 
in income

statement
Loss/(gain) 

in equity

Euro (0.5) – 0.6 – 
Nigerian naira 1.2 – (1.4) – 
Romanian leu 0.3 – (0.4) – 
Russian rouble 5.4 (18.1) (0.6) 5.5 
Serbian dinar (0.1) – 0.2 – 
Ukrainian hryvnia 0.6 – (1.3) – 

6.9 (18.1) (2.9) 5.5 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

continued

materials necessary for the production of the Group’s products. 

management strategy regarding commodity price risk and its mitigation. Although the Group continues to contract prices with suppliers in 

market price of sugar, aluminium and gas oil using commodity swap contracts based on a rolling 36-month forecast. Group Treasury’s risk 

The following table presents details of the Group’s income statement and equity sensitivity to increases and decreases in sugar, aluminium 
and gas oil prices. The table does not show the sensitivity to the Group’s total underlying commodity exposure or the impact of changes in 
volumes that may arise from an increase or decrease in the respective commodity prices. The sensitivity analysis determines the potential 

or decreases of the respective commodity price.

2016 commodity price risk sensitivity to reasonably possible changes in the commodity price of relevant commodities

Commodity price increases with
 all other variables held constant

Commodity price decreases with
 all other variables held constant

% of historical
volatility over a

per contract 
maturity

 (Gain)/loss
in income

statement
€ million

(Gain)/loss 
in equity
€ million

 Loss/(gain)
in income

statement
€ million

Loss/(gain) 
in equity
€ million

Sugar 19.2% (12.4) – 12.4 – 
Aluminium 16.4% (6.7) (1.1) 6.7 1.1 
Aluminium Premium 19.2% (0.4) – 0.4 – 
Gas oil 41.0% (6.5) – 6.5 – 

(26.0) (1.1) 26.0 1.1

2015 commodity price risk sensitivity to reasonably possible changes in the commodity price of relevant commodities

Commodity price increases with
 all other variables held constant

Commodity price decreases with
 all other variables held constant

volatility over a
12-month period 

per contract 
maturity

(Gain)/loss 
in income

statement
(Gain)/loss 

in equity

Loss/(gain) 
in income

statement
Loss/(gain) 

in equity

Sugar (10.8) – 10.8 – 
Aluminium (10.5) (1.3) 10.5 1.3 
Gas oil (5.5) – 5.5 – 

(26.8) (1.3) 26.8 1.3

The sensitivity analysis in the following table has been determined based on exposure to interest rates of both derivative and non-derivative 

is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point 

Interest rate risk sensitivity to reasonably possible changes in interest rates
2016 

€ million
2015 

Loss/(gain)
in income

statement
(Gain)/loss 

In equity

Loss/(gain)
in income

statement
(Gain)/loss 

in equity

Increase in basis points – – 0.1 (53.7)
Decrease in basis points – – (0.1) 58.4 
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The impact on the Group’s equity in 2015 is attributable to the changes in the fair value of the forward starting swaps entered into in 2014 and 

Credit risk

products and services on credit are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. The Group has policies that limit the amount of 

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that counterparties fail to perform their obligations at 31 December 2016 in 

If credit is granted to customers, their credit quality is normally assessed using either external agencies and/or historic experience. Credit limits 
are set accordingly. Further information regarding credit risk exposure is described in Note 17.

the contract or arrangement. The Group’s maximum credit risk exposure for each derivative instrument is the carrying amount of the 
derivative. In addition, the Group regularly makes use of time deposits to invest excess cash balances and to diversify its counterparty risk. As 

timelier way the creditworthiness of a counterparty and set up its counterparties in tiers in order to assign maximum exposure and tenor per 
tier. If the Credit Default Swaps of a certain counterparty exceed 400 basis points the Group will stop trading derivatives with that counterparty 

Liquidity risk 

overdrafts and bank facilities, both committed and uncommitted, are used to manage this risk.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk management 
framework for the management of the Group’s short-, medium- and long-term funding and liquidity requirements. The Group manages 
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves and committed banking facilities, access to the debt and equity capital markets, and by 

liquidity risk are discussed under the headings ‘commercial paper programme’ and ‘committed credit facilities’.

Up to 
one year
€ million

One to 
two years

€ million

Two to 

€ million

Over

€ million

Borrowings 193.4 43.7 903.6 691.9 
Derivative liabilities 14.2 1.0 0.3 – 
Trade and other payables 1,488.2 1.3 0.2 6.7 
As at 31 December 2016 1,695.8 46.0 904.1 698.6 

Up to 
one year

One to 
two years

Two to Over

Borrowings 833.8 52.1 908.9 86.7 
Derivative liabilities 40.9 11.8 2.7 – 
Trade and other payables 1,502.4 – – 7.2 
As at 31 December 2015 2,377.1 63.9 911.6 93.9

using a combination of interest rate and cross currency swap contracts. The impact of these instruments has been included in the aggregate 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

continued

Capital risk

amortisation and impairment of intangible assets, the employee share option and performance share costs and other non-cash items, if 
any. Comparable adjusted EBITDA refers to adjusted EBITDA excluding restructuring expenses and the unrealised gains or losses resulting 
from the mark-to-market valuation of derivatives and embedded derivatives related to commodity hedging.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain an optimal 
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may increase or decrease debt, issue or buy back shares, adjust the amount of 
dividends paid to shareholders, or return capital to shareholders.

stable outlook after the latest assessment in November 2016.

adjusted EBITDA, which provides a framework within which the Group’s capital base is managed. This ratio is calculated as net debt  
divided by comparable adjusted EBITDA. The Group’s medium- to long-term aim is to maintain the net debt to comparable adjusted EBITDA 
ratio within a 1.5 to 2.0 range.

2016 
€ million

2015 

Net debt (refer to Note 24)  1,051.4 1,217.1 
506.3 418.2

Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment 332.4 340.2
Amortisation of intangible assets 0.4 0.4
Employee share options and performance shares 8.1 8.8
Other non-cash items included in operating income (1.3) (1.3)
Adjusted EBITDA  845.9 766.3 
Restructuring expenses (refer to Note 8)  19.9 36.3 
Unrealised commodity derivatives  (26.5) 1.0 
Total comparable adjusted EBITDA  839.3 803.6 
Net debt / comparable adjusted EBITDA ratio 1.25 1.51

Hedging activity

Contracts with  
positive fair values

Contracts with  
negative fair values

2016 
€ million

2015 2016 
€ million

2015 

Foreign currency forward contracts 1.0 1.8 (4.0) (0.5)
Foreign currency option contracts 0.3 6.5 – – 
Forward starting swap contracts – – – (24.6)
Commodity swap contracts 0.4 – (0.1) (0.8)
Total contracts 1.7 8.3 (4.1) (25.9)
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Contracts with positive  
fair values

Contracts with negative  
fair values

2016 
€ million

2015 2016 
€ million

2015 

Foreign currency forward contracts – 0.8 (1.7) – 
Foreign currency option contracts – 1.8 – – 
Total contracts – 2.6 (1.7) – 

currency risk. 

Contracts with positive 
fair values

Contracts with negative 
fair values

2016  
€ million

2015  2016  
€ million

2015  

Foreign currency forward contracts 1.5 4.7 (4.6) (1.5)
Foreign currency option contracts – 0.3 – – 
Foreign currency future contracts 0.3 – – – 
Embedded derivatives 3.3 6.2 – – 
Commodity swap contracts 9.2 1.4 (5.1) (28.0)
Total contracts 14.3 12.6 (9.7) (29.5)

Assets Liabilities

2016 
€ million

2015 2016 
€ million

2015 

Current
Foreign currency forward contracts 2.5 7.3 (10.3) (2.0)
Foreign currency option contracts 0.3 8.6 – – 
Foreign currency future contracts 0.3 – – – 
Commodity swap contracts 4.8 1.0 (3.9) (14.3)
Forward starting swap contracts – – – (24.6)
Total current 7.9 16.9 (14.2) (40.9)

Commodity swap contracts 4.8 0.4 (1.3) (14.5)
Forward starting swap contracts – – – – 
Embedded derivatives 3.3 6.2 – – 

8.1 6.6 (1.3) (14.5)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

continued

Financial instruments categories

2016

Assets 
Loans and

receivables
Assets at

FVTPL

Derivatives
designated
as hedging

instruments maturity

Total 
current and 

Current

Investments – – – 0.9 3.6 4.5 – 4.5 
– 14.3 1.7 – – 16.0 7.9 8.1 

Trade and other receivables excluding 
prepayments 957.4 – – – – 957.4 954.8 2.6
Cash and cash equivalents 573.2 – – – – 573.2 573.2 – 
Total 1,530.6 14.3 1.7 0.9 3.6 1,551.1 1,535.9 15.2

Liabilities

Liabilities
held at

amortised
cost

 Liabilities
at FVTPL

Derivatives
designated
as hedging

instruments

 Total 
current and 

 Current

Trade and other payables excluding provisions and deferred 
income 1,496.4 – – 1,496.4 1,488.2 8.2
Borrowings 1,624.6 – – 1,624.6 156.5 1,468.1 

– 9.7 5.8 15.5 14.2 1.3 
Total 3,121.0 9.7 5.8 3,136.5 1,658.9 1,477.6

2015

Assets 
 Loans and

receivables
 Assets at

FVTPL

Derivatives
designated
as hedging

instruments
 Held-to-
maturity

 Available-
for-sale

 Total current 
and 

non-current  Current  Non-current

Investments – – – 1.1 1.7 2.8 – 2.8 
– 12.6 10.9 – – 23.5 16.9 6.6 

Trade and other receivables excluding 
prepayments 859.4 – – – – 859.4 843.2 16.2 
Cash and cash equivalents 487.4 – – – – 487.4 487.4 – 
Total 1,346.8 12.6 10.9 1.1 1.7 1,373.1 1,347.5 25.6

Liabilities 

Liabilities
held at

amortised
cost

Liabilities
at FVTPL

Derivatives
designated
as hedging

instruments

Total current 
and 

non-current Current Non-current

Trade and other payables excluding provisions 1,509.6 – – 1,509.6 1,502.4 7.2 
Borrowings 1,704.5 – – 1,704.5 781.5 923.0 

– 29.5 25.9 55.4 40.9 14.5 
Total 3,214.1 29.5 25.9 3,269.5 2,324.8 944.7
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(refer to Note 24). 

During 2015 the Group recognised embedded derivatives whose risks and economic characteristics were not considered to be closely related 
to the commodity contract in which they were embedded. The fair value of the embedded derivatives as at 31 December 2016 amounted to a 

The fair value of available-for-sale listed equity securities is based on quoted market prices at the reported date. The fair value of bonds is 
based on quoted market prices at the reported date.

The fair value of foreign currency forward, option and future contracts, commodity swap contracts, bonds and notes payable, interest rate 
swap contracts, forward starting swap contracts, embedded foreign currency derivatives and cross currency swap contracts is determined 
by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data. The fair value of the foreign currency 
forward, option and future contracts, commodity swap contracts, embedded foreign currency derivatives and cross currency swap contracts 
is calculated by reference to quoted forward exchange, deposit rates and forward rate curve of the underlying commodity at the reported 
date for contracts with similar maturity dates. The fair value of interest rate option contracts is calculated by reference to the Black-Scholes 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

continued
The following table provides the fair value hierarchy in which fair value measurements are categorised for assets and liabilities measured at fair 

Level 1
€ million

Level 2
€ million

Level 3
€ million

Total
 € million

Financial assets at FVTPL
Foreign currency forward contracts – 1.5 – 1.5 
Embedded derivatives – 3.3 – 3.3 
Foreign currency future contracts – 0.3 – 0.3 
Commodity swap contracts – 9.2 – 9.2 

Foreign currency forward contracts – 1.0 – 1.0 
Foreign currency option contracts – 0.3 – 0.3 
Commodity swap contracts – 0.4 – 0.4 

Equity securities 0.9 – 2.7 3.6 
0.9 16.0 2.7 19.6 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Foreign currency forward contracts – (4.6) – (4.6)
Commodity swap contracts – (5.1) – (5.1)

Fair value hedges
Foreign currency forward contracts – (1.7) – (1.7)

Foreign currency forward contracts – (4.0) – (4.0)
Commodity swap contracts – (0.1) – (0.1)

– (15.5) – (15.5)

and Level 2 in the period.
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The following table provides the fair value hierarchy in which fair value measurements are categorised for assets and liabilities measured at fair 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€ million

Financial assets at FVTPL
Foreign currency forward contracts – 4.7 – 4.7 
Foreign currency option contracts – 0.3 – 0.3 
Embedded derivatives – 6.2 – 6.2 
Commodity swap contracts – 1.4 – 1.4 

Fair value hedges
Foreign currency forward contracts – 0.8 – 0.8 
Foreign currency option contracts – 1.8 – 1.8 

Foreign currency forward contracts – 1.8 – 1.8 
Foreign currency option contracts – 6.5 – 6.5 

Equity securities 1.2 – 0.5 1.7 
1.2 23.5 0.5 25.2 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Foreign currency forward contracts – (1.5) – (1.5)
Commodity swap contracts – (28.0) – (28.0)

Foreign currency forward contracts – (0.5) – (0.5)
Forward starting swap contracts – (24.6) – (24.6)
Commodity swap contracts – (0.8) – (0.8)

– (55.4) – (55.4)

There were no material changes in fair value measurements for Level 3 items for the year ended 31 December 2015. There were no transfers 
between Level 1 and Level 2 in the period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

24. Net debt

Accounting policy
Borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value net of transaction costs incurred.

After initial recognition, all interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated using 

income statement over the borrowing period.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known 

2016 
€ million

2015 

Current borrowings 156.5 781.5 
Non-current borrowings 1,468.1 923.0 

(573.2) (487.4)
Net debt 1,051.4 1,217.1

a) Borrowings

2016 
€ million

2015 

Current portion of long-term bonds, bills and unsecured notes – 599.8 
Commercial paper 108.5 173.5 
Loan payable to related parties (refer to Note 26) 4.1 0.2 
Other borrowings 36.4 – 

149.0 773.5 
7.5 8.0 

Total borrowings falling due within one year 156.5 781.5 
Borrowings falling due within one to two years

Loan payable to related parties (refer to Note 26) – 17.4 

Bonds, bills and unsecured notes 796.0 794.9 
Loan payable to related parties (refer to Note 26) – 13.3 

Bonds, bills and unsecured notes 595.8 – 
1,391.8 825.6 

76.3 97.4 
Total borrowings falling due after one year 1,468.1 923.0 
Total borrowings 1,624.6 1,704.5
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2014, to further diversify its short-term funding sources. The Euro-commercial paper notes may be issued either as non-interest-bearing 

repaid within 7 to 364 days. The CP programme has been granted the Short Term Euro Paper label (“STEP”) and commercial paper is issued 

Company exercised its option and the banks agreed to extend the facility for one more year until 24 June 2021.This facility can be used for 

B.V. and it is fully, unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by Coca-Cola HBC AG and Coca-Cola HBC Holdings B.V. and is not subject to 

2016 upon its maturity.

Book value Fair value

Notes Start date Maturity date
Fixed 

coupon
2016 

€ million
2015 2016 

€ million
2015 

16 November 2009 16 November 2016 – 299.8 – 310.3 
16 November 2016 – 300.0 – 310.3 

18 June 2013 18 June 2020 796.0 794.9 855.9 845.2 
11 November 2024 595.8 – 634.8 – 

Total 1,391.8 1,394.7 1,490.7 1,465.8

The fair values are within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

Strategic R
epo

rt
C

o
rpo

rate G
o

vernance
Financial Statem

ents
Coca-Cola HBC

2016 Integrated Annual Report 165
Sw

iss Statuto
ry R

epo
rting

Supplem
entary Info

rm
atio

n

COC016_.indb   165 3/16/17   2:36 PM



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

24. Net debt continued

2016 
€ million

2015 

Minimum
payments

Present value
of payments payments

Present value
of payments

Less than one year 13.7 7.5 15.8 8.0 
Later than one year but less than two years 13.5 7.7 15.7 8.3 
Later than two years but less than three years 11.9 6.7 15.6 8.8 
Later than three years but less than four years 11.9 7.1 14.1 7.7 

11.9 7.5 14.1 8.2 
62.6 47.3 86.7 64.4 

Total minimum lease payments 125.5 83.8 162.0 105.4 
(41.7) – (56.6) – 

Present value of minimum lease payments 83.8 83.8 105.4 105.4

Current

2016 
€ million

2015 2016 
€ million

2015 

Euro 122.8 777.3 1,416.1 852.3 
Croatian kuna 15.3 – – – 
Russian rouble 11.6 – – – 
US dollar 4.5 1.8 28.4 42.3 
UK sterling 1.3 1.4 10.9 14.2 
Polish zloty 0.9 0.9 12.7 14.2 
Other 0.1 0.1 – – 
Total borrowings 156.5 781.5 1,468.1 923.0

Fixed
interest rate

€ million

Floating
interest rate

€ million
Total

€ million

Euro 1,515.9 23.0 1,538.9 
US dollar 30.2 2.7 32.9 
Polish zloty – 13.6 13.6 
UK sterling – 12.2 12.2 
Russian rouble – 11.6 11.6 
Other – 0.1 0.1 
Total interest bearing borrowings 1,546.1 63.2 1,609.3
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Euro

b) Cash and cash equivalents

2016 
€ million

2015 

Cash at bank, in transit and in hand 329.7 124.7 
Short-term deposits 243.5 362.7 
Total cash and cash equivalents 573.2 487.4

2016 
€ million

2015 

Euro 400.7 392.6 
Nigerian naira 110.7 35.7 
Russian rouble 11.7 7.8 
Serbian dinar 9.1 1.3 
UK sterling 6.6 3.9 
Polish zloty 6.2 5.4 
Hungarian forint 6.1 2.7 
Romanian leu 5.6 11.6 
Swiss franc 4.6 6.8 
US dollar 3.3 4.8 
Ukrainian hryvnia 2.5 3.1 
Belarusian rouble 1.4 3.1 
Other 4.7 8.6 
Total cash and cash equivalents 573.2 487.4

account held for the repayment of its former minority shareholders, following the 2011 acquisition of non-controlling interests.

The amount of dividends payable to the Company by its operating subsidiaries is subject to, among other restrictions, general limitations 
imposed by the corporate laws and exchange control restrictions of the respective jurisdictions where those subsidiaries are organised and 
operate. Also, there are fund transfer restrictions in certain countries in which we operate, in particular Belarus, Greece, Serbia and Ukraine, 
where these restrictions do not have a material impact on the Group’s liquidity, as the amounts of cash and cash equivalents held in such 
countries are generally retained for capital expenditure, working capital and dividend distribution purposes. Fund transfer restrictions are also 

payments in foreign currency, leading to a temporarily high Nigerian naira cash balance. Intra group dividends paid by certain of our subsidiaries 
are also subject to withholding taxes. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

25. Equity

Accounting policies

Coca-Cola HBC has only one class of shares, ordinary shares. When new shares are issued, they are recorded in share capital at their 
par value. The excess of the issue price over the par value is recorded to the share premium reserve. Incremental external costs directly 
attributable to the issue of new shares or to the process of returning capital to shareholders are recorded in equity as a deduction, net of 
tax, in the share premium reserve.

Group’s shareholders.

a) Share capital, share premium and Group reorganisation reserve

Number  
of shares

(authorised
and issued)

Share
capital

€ million

Share
premium
€ million

Group
reorganisation

reserve
€ million

Balance as at 1 January 2015 367,819,247 1,998.1 5,157.6 (6,472.1)
Shares issued to employees exercising stock options (refer to Note 27) 322,050 2.0 3.1 – 
Dividends – – (132.4) – 
Balance as at 31 December 2015 368,141,297 2,000.1 5,028.3 (6,472.1)
Shares issued to employees exercising stock options (refer to Note 27) 1,499,341 9.1 12.5 – 
Cancellation of shares (3,000,000) (18.4) (40.1) – 
Dividends – – (146.1) – 
Balance as at 31 December 2016 366,640,638 1,990.8 4,854.6 (6,472.1)

The Group reorganisation reserve relates to the impact from adjusting share capital, share premium and treasury shares to depict the 
respective statutory amounts of Coca-Cola HBC on 25 April 2013, together with the transaction costs incurred by the latter, relating primarily 
to the re-domiciliation of the Group and its admission to listing in the premium segment of the London Stock Exchange, following successful 

entity that has not changed the substance of the reporting entity.

In 2015, the share capital of Coca-Cola HBC increased by the issue of 322,050 new ordinary shares following the exercise of stock options 
pursuant to the Coca-Cola HBC AG’s employees’ stock option plan. Total proceeds from the issuance of the shares under the stock option 

for the purpose of neutralising the dilution resulting from share issues under Coca-Cola HBC’s equity compensation plans. The programme 

reduce the share capital of Coca-Cola HBC AG by cancelling the 3,000,000 treasury shares acquired as part of the share buy-back programme 
described above. The respective reduction of the share capital was completed in September 2016.

In 2016, the share capital of Coca-Cola HBC increased by the issue of 1,499,341 new ordinary shares following the exercise of stock options 
pursuant to the Coca-Cola HBC AG’s employees’ stock option plan. Total proceeds from the issuance of the shares under the stock option 

shares with a nominal value of CHF 6.70 each.
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b) Dividends

the Group. 

the Group. 

Coca-Cola HBC AG, this dividend will be paid in 2017.

c) Reserves

2016 
€ million

2015 

Treasury shares (70.7) (132.0)
Exchange equalisation reserve (801.8) (681.4)
Other reserves

Hedging reserve, net (55.3) (25.1)
Tax-free reserve 163.8 163.8 
Statutory reserves 26.9 20.0 
Stock option reserve 87.2 79.1 

0.7 0.8 
Other 21.8 21.8 

Total other reserves 245.1 260.4 
Total reserves (627.4) (553.0)

Treasury shares held by the Group represent shares acquired following approval of share buy-back programmes, forfeited shares under 
the equity compensation plan operated by the Group as well as shares representing the initial ordinary shares of Coca-Cola HBC acquired 
from Kar-Tess Holding. In September 2016 the 3,000,000 treasury shares, acquired as part of the 2015 share buy-back programme for a 

31 December 2016, 3,445,060 treasury shares were held by the Group.

entities with functional currencies other than the Euro.

Hedging reserve

such balances.

Tax-free and statutory reserves
The tax-free reserve includes investment amount exempt from tax according to incentive legislation, other tax-free income or income taxed 
at source. 

Statutory reserves are particular to the various countries in which the Group operates. The amount of statutory reserves of the parent 

establishment of additional reserves by the Group’s subsidiaries.

Other reserves
Other reserves are particular to the various countries in which the Group operates.

Stock option reserve
The stock option reserve represents the cumulative charge to the income statement for employee stock option and performance share 
awards (refer also to Note 27).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

26. Related party transactions

a) The Coca-Cola Company

Coca-Cola Company considers Coca-Cola HBC to be a ‘key bottler’ and has entered into bottlers’ agreements with Coca-Cola HBC in respect 
of each of the Group’s territories. All the bottlers’ agreements entered into by The Coca-Cola Company and Coca-Cola HBC are Standard 
International Bottlers’ (‘SIB’) agreements. The terms of the bottlers’ agreements grant Coca-Cola HBC the right to produce and the exclusive 
right to sell and distribute the beverages of The Coca-Cola Company in each of the countries in which the Group operates. Consequently, 
Coca-Cola HBC is obliged to purchase all concentrate for The Coca-Cola Company’s beverages from The Coca-Cola Company, or its 
designee, in the ordinary course of business. On 10 October 2012, The Coca-Cola Company agreed to extend the term of the bottlers’ 
agreements for further 10 years until 2023. 

The Coca-Cola Company owns or has applied for the trademarks that identify its beverages in each of the countries in which the Group 
operates. The Coca-Cola Company has authorised Coca-Cola HBC and certain of its subsidiaries to use the trademark ‘Coca-Cola’ in their 
corporate names.

2016 
€ million

2015 

1,316.2 1,355.0 
Net contributions received for marketing and promotional incentives 91.2 89.5 

10.8 9.1 
Other income 4.4 6.6 
Other expenses 3.5 4.1 
Acquisition of coolers 3.2 –

The Coca-Cola Company makes discretionary marketing contributions to Coca-Cola HBC’s operating subsidiaries. The participation in 
shared marketing agreements is at The Coca-Cola Company’s discretion and, where co-operative arrangements are entered into, marketing 
expenses are shared. Such arrangements include the development of marketing programmes to promote The Coca-Cola Company’s 
beverages. Contributions received from The Coca-Cola Company for marketing and promotional incentives during the year amounted 

payments for marketing and advertising directly to suppliers as part of the shared marketing arrangements. The proportion of direct and 
indirect payments, made at The Coca-Cola Company’s discretion, will not necessarily be the same from year to year. 

Other income primarily comprises rent, facility and other items. Other expenses related to facility costs charged by The Coca-Cola Company 
and shared costs included in operating expenses. 

(refer to Note 22).
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b) Frigoglass S.A. (‘Frigoglass’), Kar-Tess Holding and AG Leventis (Nigeria) Plc

2016 
€ million

2015 

Purchases 123.0 120.5 
Other expenses 21.4 19.3

Frigoglass, a company listed on the Athens Exchange, is a manufacturer of coolers, cooler parts, glass bottles, crowns and plastics. Frigoglass 

in Nigerian Bottling Company Ltd. Furthermore, during 2015 the Group acquired through its investment in Nigerian Bottling Company Ltd a 

The Group entered into a supply agreement with Frigoglass for the purchase of cooling equipment in 1999. The supply agreement was 
extended in 2004, 2008 and, most recently, in 2013, on substantially similar terms. Coca-Cola HBC has the status of most favoured customer 

be competitive) of its annual requirements for cooling equipment from Frigoglass. The current agreement expires on 31 December 2018.

c) Other related parties

2016 
€ million

2015 

Purchases 90.2 89.0 
Other expenses 23.5 24.5

BPW is a 50/50 joint venture between The Coca-Cola Company and Nestlé. During 2016, the Group purchased inventory from BPW 

related to maintenance services for cold drink equipment and installations of coolers, fountains, vending and merchandising equipment from 
other related parties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

26. Related party transactions continued

d) Joint ventures

e) Directors

Coca-Cola HBC. There have been no transactions between Coca-Cola HBC and the Directors except for remuneration (refer to Note 8).

27. Share-based payments

Accounting policy

Coca-Cola HBC issues equity-settled share-based payments to its senior managers in the form of an employee stock option plan and a 
performance share plan.

plan, the risk-free interest rate, the expected volatility, the dividend yield and the early exercise experience of the Group’s plans. Expected 
volatility is determined by calculating the historical volatility of Coca-Cola HBC’s share price over previous years. The fair value determined 
at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.

price. The fair value determined at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. At the end of each reporting 
period the Group revises its estimates of the number of shares that are expected to vest based on non-market conditions, and recognises 
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the income statement with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The Group operates an employee stock purchase plan, the Employee Stock Purchase Plan, an equity compensation plan in which eligible 
employees can participate. The Group makes contributions to the plan for participating employees and recognises expenses over the 
vesting period of the contributed shares. No provision is made for any increase or decrease in value of these shares, as they will vest to 

plan are recorded on the balance sheet as prepayments.

2016  
€ million

2015  

Stock option awards 3.7 8.7 
Performance share awards 4.4 0.1 
Employee Stock Purchase Plan 4.6 4.8 

12.7 13.6 
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Terms and conditions

Senior managers are granted awards of stock options, based on performance, potentiality and level of responsibility. Options are granted at 
an exercise price equal to the closing price of the Company’s shares trading on the London Stock Exchange on the day of the grant. Options 
vest in one-third increments each year for three years and can be exercised for up to 10 years from the date of award. When the options are 
exercised, the proceeds received, net of any transaction costs, are credited to share capital (at the nominal value) and share premium.

During 2015 the Group adopted a performance share plan under which senior managers are granted performance share awards, which have 

equal to the closing price of the Company’s shares trading on the London Stock Exchange on the day of the grant.

The Employee Stock Purchase Plan is administered by a Plan Administrator. Under the terms of this Plan, employees have the opportunity 

used to meet Plan expenses or for any other purposes relevant to the Plan. Dividends received in respect of shares under the Plan are used 
to purchase additional shares and are immediately vested to the employees. Shares are held under the Plan Administrator. In order to adapt 
the Plan to the Greek legal framework, Coca-Cola HBC matches the contribution of employees resident in Greece with an annual employer 

Stock option activity
The Group has not issued any new stock options in 2016 or 2015.

Exercise price  
(EUR)

Exercise price 
(GBP)

Vesting  
status as at  

31 Dec 2016

Vesting dates  
for further 

increments End of period

Number of  
stock options 

outstanding

2005 December Grant 13.19 11.24 fully vested – 31.12.20201 250,001 
2006 December Grant 16.37 13.95 fully vested – 12.12.20211 397,500 
2007 December Grant 26.41 22.51 fully vested – 12.12.2017 1,147,200 
2008 December Grant 9.02 7.69 fully vested – 10.12.2018 719,100 
2009 December Grant 15.70 13.38 fully vested – 09.12.2019 1,142,000 
2010 December Grant 19.31 16.46 fully vested – 08.12.2020 1,492,501 

18.53 15.79 fully vested – 15.03.2021 18,334 
2011 December Grant 11.98 10.21 fully vested – 15.12.2021 1,038,339 
2013 June Grant – 15.00 fully vested – 20.06.2023 1,278,000 
2013 December Grant – 16.99 fully vested – 09.12.2023 1,525,000 
2014 December Grant – 13.33 two thirds 10.12.2017 09.12.2024 1,532,834 
Total 10,540,809

1. Relates to stock options granted under the previous stock option plan which expire in December 2020 and 2021 respectively. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

27. Share-based payments continued

Number
of stock
options

2016 

Weighted*
average

exercise price
2016 (EUR)

Weighted
average

exercise price
2016 (GBP)

Outstanding at 1 January 12,337,506 19.76 14.56 
Exercised (1,499,341) 14.56 12.40 
Expired (271,687) 20.29 17.28 
Forfeited (25,669) 16.82 14.32 
Outstanding at 31 December 10,540,809 17.38 14.80 
Exercisable at 31 December 10,019,308 17.46 14.87

Number
of stock
options

2015 

Weighted*

average
exercise price

2015 (EUR)

Weighted
average

exercise price
2015 (GBP)

Outstanding at 1 January 12,925,795 18.51 14.49 
Exercised (322,050) 15.47 11.40 
Expired (35,062) 22.52 16.60 
Forfeited (231,177) 20.14 14.84 
Outstanding at 31 December 12,337,506 19.76 14.56 
Exercisable at 31 December 10,276,017 19.73 14.54 

* For convenience purposes, the prices are translated with the closing exchange rate.

The weighted average remaining contractual life of share options outstanding under the stock option compensation plans at 

Performance shares 

Number of
performance

shares
2016 

Number of
performance

shares
2015 

Outstanding at 1 January 652,159 –
Granted 716,269 652,159 
Forfeited (4,436) –
Outstanding at 31 December 1,363,992 652,159

2016 2015 

Weighted average share price £14.34 £14.70
Dividend yield 2.0%
Weighted average exercise period 3.0 years 3.3 years
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28. Contingencies
In relation to the Greek Competition Authority’s decision of 25 January 2002, one of Coca-Cola Hellenic Bottling Company S.A.’s competitors 

Hellenic Bottling Company S.A. as defendant in this lawsuit. Coca-Cola HBC Greece S.A.I.C. has not provided for any losses related to this 

losses and moral damages for alleged anti-competitive commercial practices of Coca-Cola Hellenic Bottling Company S.A. between 1994 

On 1 February 2012, the Greek Competition Commission conducted an inspection of Coca-Cola Hellenic Bottling Company S.A.’s (following 

on the closure of this audit. On 6 September 2016, the Greek Competition Commission initiated a new audit of Coca-Cola HBC Greece 
S.A.I.C.’s operations as part of a further investigation into certain commercial practices in the sparkling, juice and water categories. 
Coca-Cola HBC Greece S.A.I.C. has a policy of strict compliance with Greek and EU competition law and it is co-operating fully with the Greek 
Competition Commission.

In 1992, our subsidiary Nigerian Bottling Company (‘NBC’) acquired a manufacturing facility in Nigeria from Vacunak, a Nigerian company. In 

enter into a lease agreement with Vacunak. As part of its lawsuit Vacunak sought compensation for rent and loss of business opportunities. 

consequently not provided for any losses in relation to this case.

conducts business. These audits may result in assessments of additional taxes. The Group provides additional tax in relation to the outcome 
of such tax assessments, to the extent that a liability is probable and estimable.

Group taken as a whole. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Plant and equipment: €68.5m
Property: €29.5m

2015
€98.0m

Plant and equipment: €61.7m
Property: €24.3m

2016
€86.0m

b) Capital commitments
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had capital commitments amounting to €84.9m (2015: €70.5m). Of this, €1.6m related to the Group’s 
share of the commitments arising from joint operations (2015: €nil). The Group’s share of the commitments arising from joint ventures are 
disclosed in Note 15. 

c) Long-term commitments
As at 31 December 2016 the Group had commitments to purchase raw materials and receive services amounting to €510.6m (2015: €542.8m). 
Of this, €0.5m related to the Group’s share of the commitments arising from joint operations (2015: €nil). The Group’ share of the commitments 
arising from joint ventures are disclosed in Note 15.

30. Post balance sheet events
During the first months of 2017 the Group incurred €1.2m of restructuring costs before tax in its Established markets. On 16 March 2017 
the Board of Directors granted 824,074 performance share plan awards under the performance share plan, which have a three-year 
vesting period.

29. Commitments

Accounting policy
Leases of property, plant and equipment not classified as finance leases are classified as operating leases. Rentals paid under operating 
leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

a) Operating leases
The total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases at 31 December was as follows:

2016 
€ million

2015 
€ million

Less than one year 33.3 44.2 
Later than one year but less than five years 80.4 98.5 
Later than five years 12.1 17.2 
Future minimum lease payments 125.8 159.9

The total operating lease charges included within operating expenses for the years ended 31 December were as follows: 

Coca-Cola HBC
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Report of the statutory auditor 
to the General Meeting of 
Coca-Cola HBC AG 
Steinhausen/Zug

Opinion

Basis for opinion

Our audit approach
Overview

Group 
scoping

Key audit 
matters

Materiality

Overall Group materiality: 

 

 –
 –
 –
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Audit scope
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Materiality

Overall Group materiality

How we determined it

Rationale for the materiality  
benchmark applied
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

Uncertain tax positions
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

 

 –

 –
 –

 –

 – circularising relevant third-party legal representatives and follow up 

 –

We assessed the appropriateness of the related disclosures in  
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Mike Foley
Audit expert 
Auditor in charge

Philipp Kegele
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Report of the statutory auditor 
to the General Meeting of 
Coca-Cola HBC AG 
Steinhausen/Zug

Opinion
 

 

Basis for opinion
 

Our audit approach
Overview

Audit scope

Key audit 
matters

Materiality

Overall materiality:

 –

Audit scope
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Materiality

Overall materiality
How we determined it
Rationale for the materiality 
benchmark applied

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

 
for the Directors’ disclosures of the related accounting policy  

 

 

 

 
underlying cash-generating-unit and potentially the carrying  
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Mike Foley
Audit expert 
Auditor in charge

Philipp Kegele
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Balance sheet
As at 31 December

2016 2015

CHF thousands

ASSETS
1,648
7,354

763
–

Total current assets 9,765 8,240
8,704,582

1,465
Total non-current assets 8,706,047 8,866,664
Total assets 8,715,812 8,874,904

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
806

3,493
2,142 –

15,605
Total short-term liabilities 22,046 22,918

68,446
–

Total long-term liabilities 68,446 83,611
Share capital 2,456,492
Legal capital reserves

5,948,183
Reserves for treasury shares 85,298

Retained earnings
Results carried forward 144,617
Loss for the year (7,320)

Treasury shares (1,950)
Total shareholders’ equity 8,625,320 8,768,375
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 8,715,812 8,874,904
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Year ended 31 December

2016 2015

CHF thousands

160,395
25,333

Total operating income 185,728 278,570

(14,728)
(17,198)

(160,395)
(213)

Total operating expenses (192,534) (290,414)

Operating loss (6,806) (11,844)

3,568
(3,790)

–
Loss before tax (7,028) (55,362)

(292)

Loss for the year (7,320) (55,674)
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Introduction

Balance sheet as at Income statement for the year ended

Exchange rates 31 December 2016 31 December 2015 31 December 2016 31 December 2015

1.07
USD 1.03

1.26

Property, plant and equipment Useful life Method

Building infrastructure
8 years

Telephony infrastructure 7 years

3 years

Treasury shares
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As at 31 December

2015

CHF thousands

6,631
703

15 –
5 –

Short-term receivables from direct and indirect participations 7,354 6,656

As at 31 December

Direct subsidiary Share of capital Share of votes 2016 2015

CHF thousands
1 8,864,977

(160,395)
Investments in subsidiaries 100% 100% 8,704,582 8,864,977

As at 31 December

Name of participation 2015

CHF thousands

2,820
4
–

647
17 –

5 –
Total short-term non interest-bearing liabilities to direct and indirect participations 3,493 4,718

Name of participation 2015

CHF thousands

2,142 –
Total short-term interest-bearing liabilities to direct and indirect participations 2,142 –

As at 31 December

2015

Accrued expenses CHF thousands

2,848
1,149
2,360
8,935

Total accrued expenses 15,605 16,998
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As at 31 December

2015

CHF thousands

68,446

Number of shares Nominal value Total

CHF CHF thousands

Share capital as at 31 December 2015 368,141,297 2,466,547

Number of 
shares Nominal value Total

CHF CHF thousands

Cancellation of shares1

Share capital as at 31 December 2016 366,640,638 6.70 2,456,492

Treasury shares (held by subsidiaries)
Number of 

shares
Book value per 

share Total

CHF CHF thousands

Total ordinary treasury shares at 31 December 2015

Total ordinary treasury shares at 31 December 2016 3,430,135 85,298

Treasury shares held by the Company 
Number of 

shares
Book value per 

share Total

CHF CHF thousands

1

Treasury shares held by Coca-Cola HBC AG as at 31 December 2015 3,014,925 21.8404 (65,847)

Cancellation of shares1

Treasury shares held by Coca-Cola HBC AG as at 31 December 2016 14,925 130.6600 (1,950)

Strategic R
epo

rt
C

o
rpo

rate G
o

vernance
Financial Statem

ents
Coca-Cola HBC 

2016 Integrated Annual Report

Sw
iss Statuto

ry R
epo

rting
Supplem

entary Info
rm

atio
n

COC016_.indb   191 3/16/17   2:36 PM



Share capital Legal capital reserves
Retained 
earnings Treasury shares Total

Reserves from 
capital 

contributions
Reserves for 

treasury shares1

CHF thousands

Balance as at 1 January 2015 2,464,389 6,276,922 85,298 200,291 (1,950) 9,024,950

– – –
Dividends – – – –

– – – –
Loss for the year – – – –
Balance as at 31 December 2015 2,466,547 6,137,760 85,298 144,617 (65,847) 8,768,375

Balance as at 1 January 2016 2,466,547 6,137,760 85,298 144,617 (65,847) 8,768,375

– – –
Dividends – – – –
Cancellation of shares – – –
Loss for the year – – – –
Balance as at 31 December 2016 2,456,492 5,948,183 85,298 137,297 (1,950) 8,625,320

2016 2015

CHF thousands

22,383
Guarantee fee 2,950
Total other operating income 25,333 24,396
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Residual term (years) 2016 2015

CHF thousands

500
Total lease liabilities 500 799

Credit support provider

1

1

1

1
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continued

1

1

1

1

Date 
Number of 

shares

Percentage of 
issued share 

capital1

Percentage of 
outstanding 

share capital2

Total Kar-Tess Holding
Total Kar-Tess Holding

31.12.2016 31.12.2015

Number of 
shares

Percentage of 
issued share 

capital1

Percentage of 
outstanding 

share capital2
Number of 

shares

Percentage of 
issued share 

capital1

Percentage of 
outstanding 

share capital2

Directors
3 – – – – – –

49,142 0.01% 0.01%
– – – – – –
– – – – – –
– – – – – –

10,000 0.00% 0.00% – – –
– – – – – –
– – – – – –
– – – – – –

545 0.00% 0.00%
7 1,700 0.00% 0.00%

8 – – – – – –
Christo Leventis – – – – – –

– – – – – –
– – – – – –
– – – – – –
– – – – – –
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31.12.2016 31.12.2015

Number of 
shares

Percentage of 
issued share 

capital1

Percentage of 
outstanding 

share capital2
Number of 

shares

Percentage of 
issued share 

capital1

Percentage of 
outstanding 

share capital2

Operating Committee
Alain Brouhard 14,534 0.00% 0.00%

53,027 0.01% 0.01%
2,924 0.00% 0.00%

Keith Sanders 27,125 0.01% 0.01%
Martin Marcel 5,824 0.00% 0.00%

14,649 0.00% 0.00%
11 355 0.00% 0.00% – – –

1,477 0.00% 0.00%
Sotiris Yannopoulos 10,377 0.00% 0.00%
Zoran Bogdanovic 16,817 0.00% 0.00%

Stock options (‘ESOP’) Performance shares (‘PSP’)

Number of 
stock options

Already 
vested

Vesting at the 
end of 2017

Granted in 
2016

Unvested and 
subject to 

performance 
conditions

Vested but 
unexercised

–
Alain Brouhard –

–
–

Keith Sanders –
Martin Marcel –

–
11 –

–
Sotiris Yannopoulos –
Zoran Bogdanovic –
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Available earnings and reserves CHF thousands

Total available retained earnings to be carried forward 137,297

Total available retained earnings and reserves 6,085,480

As of 31 December 2016 CHF thousands

1

Reserves from capital contributions after distribution 5,770,736

As of 31 December 2016 CHF thousands

1

(Minimum) Reserves from capital contributions after distribution 5,748,183

Swiss Statutory Reporting continued

Coca-Cola HBC 
2016 Integrated Annual Report

COC016_.indb   196 3/16/17   2:36 PM



Report of the statutory auditor 
to the General Meeting 
Coca-Cola HBC AG 
Steinhausen/Zug

Opinion

Mike Foley
Audit expert 
Auditor in charge

Philipp Kegele
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2016 CHF

Fees

Cash and 
non-cash 

1

Cash 
performance 

incentives

Pension and 
post-

employment 
Total fair value of 

stock options at 
the date granted

Total 
compensation

73,490 – – – – 73,490
37,555 – – – – 37,555

3 – – – – – –
94,712 – – – – 94,712
52,310 – – – – 52,310
35,935 – – – – 35,935
84,920 – – – – 84,920

7 58,738 – – – – 58,738
8 52,522 – – – – 52,522

49,757 – – – – 49,757
43,457 – – – – 43,457

Christo Leventis11 40,509 – – – – 40,509
85,435 – – – – 85,435

13 90,822 – – – – 90,822
40,509 – – – – 40,509
87,805 – – – – 87,805

– – – – – –
Total Board of Directors 928,476 – – – – 928,476
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Cash and 
non-cash 

1

Cash 

incentives

Total fair value of 

the date granted
Total 

– – – – – –
– – – – – –

Christo Leventis – – – – – –
3 – – – –

– – – –
– – – –
– – – –
– – – –
– – – –
– – – –
– – – –
– – – –

7 – – – –
8 – – – –

– – – – – –
Total Board of Directors 747,556 – – – – 747,556
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2016 CHF

Base salary

Cash and 
non-cash 

1

Cash 
performance 

incentives2

Pension and 
post-

employment 
3

Total fair value of 
stock options at 

the date granted4
Total 

compensation

979,959 605,006 934,732 171,448 2,191,279 4,882,424
4,541,369 8,872,660 3,551,429 706,926 4,064,975 21,737,359

Total Operating Committee 5,521,328 9,477,666 4,486,161 878,374 6,256,254 26,619,783

Base salary

Cash and 
non-cash 

1

Cash 

incentives 3

Total fair value of 

the date granted
Total 

Total Operating Committee 5,122,912 4,921,294 2,317,044 834,929 4,686,135 17,882,314
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Alternative performance measures

1

 

 

 

2016

Cost of Operating 
expenses EBIT

Adjusted 
EBITDA Tax 1

EPS 
(€) 

As reported (3,920) 2,299 (1,793) 506 846 (114) 344 0.949
– – 38 38 20 (8) 30 0.082

(25) (25) (2) (27) (27) 8 (19) (0.052)
– – – – – (2) (2) (0.007)

(3,945) 2,274 (1,757) 518 839 (117) 352 0.972
2015

Cost of Operating 
1

 
(€) 

418 280
– – 54 54 (12) 43
1 1 – 1 1 – 1
– – – – – (10) (10)

804 314
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2016

Emerging

EBIT 237 93 177 506
9 6 22 38

(4) (2) (21) (27)
242 97 178 518

2015

418
24 21 54

4 2 (5) 1

 

 

2016

Emerging

Net sales revenue 2,408 1,094 2,717 6,219
– – – –

2,408 1,094 2,717 6,219
Volume (m unit cases) 607 383 1,068 2,058

3.97 2.85 2.54 3.02
2015

Net sales revenue
(28) (18) (308)

Volume (m unit cases)
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Adjusted EBITDA
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Capital expenditure

2016 2015 

506 418
332 340

– –
8

(1) (1)
Adjusted EBITDA 846 766

(3) 2
12 44

(92)
763 740

(348) (332)
(20) (14)
36 18

(332) (328)

Net cash from operating activities 763
(332) (328)
431 412

Net debt

2016 2015

1,468
157

(573)
Net debt 1,051 1,217
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1 - 10,000: 1% 
10,001 - 100,000: 3%
100,001-1,000,00: 16%
1,000,001 - over: 79%
Treasury shares: 2%

Continental Europe: 36%
UK: 31%
United States: 25% 
Rest of the world: 8%
Retail investors: 1%

2016 2015 2014

Close 17.70
18.40
12.65
6,426

2016 2015 2014

Close 20.69
20.99
16.00

Market capitalisation (€ million) 7,512

Annual General Meeting
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Basis points (bps)
One hundredth of one percentage point 

Brand Coca-Cola products
Includes Coca-Cola, Coca-Cola Zero and 
Coca-Cola Light brands

BSO
Business Services Organisation

BSS

CAGR

Capital expenditure; CapEx

Carbon emissions

2
 and other greenhouse 

Carbon footprint

2
 and other 

CHP

Coca-Cola HBC

Coca-Cola System

Cold drink equipment

Comparable adjusted EBITDA

(EBIT)

Consumer

Customer
Retail outlet, restaurant or other 
operation that sells or serves 

DIFOTAI

DME

EDS

Energy use ratio

FMCG

Fragmented trade

Future consumption

FYROM

GDP

GfK

GRI
Global Reporting Initiative, a global standard 

HoReCa
Hotel Restaurant Cafe

IFRS
International Financial Reporting 
Standards of the International Accounting 

IIRC
The International Integrated Reporting 
Council, a global coalition of regulators, 

Immediate consumption

chilled beverages in single-serve packages 

Inventory days

 

Ireland
The Republic of Ireland and Northern Ireland

Italy
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Joint value creation (JVC)

Litre of produced beverage (lpb)

Market
When used in reference to geographic areas, 

business

Modern trade

NARTD

NGOs

OBPPC
Occasion, Brand, Price, Package, Channel

Organised trade

PET

beverage bottles

Ready-to-drink (RTD)

further preparation

Right Execution Daily (RED)

Receivable days

SAP

SDG

Serving

Shared services

Sparkling beverages
Non-alcoholic carbonated beverages 

SKU
Stock Keeping Unit

Still and water beverages

Territory

Coca-Cola HBC operates

UNESDA

Unit case (u.c.)

UN Global Compact (UNGC)

anti-corruption

Volume

Volume share
Share of total unit cases sold

Value share
Share of total revenue

Waste ratio

generated per litre of produced beverage  

Waste recycling

recovered

Water footprint

Water use ratio

Working capital
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Visit us
www.coca‑colahellenic.com
Guided by our users’ thoughts and feedback, we have completely refreshed our 
website.	The	new	Group	site	features	all	of	our	latest	news	and	financial	data,	
stories from around our business and communities, a vibrant new design and an 
improved experience for audiences.

Write to us

We have dedicated email addresses which you can use to communicate with us.

investor.relations@cchellenic.com 
sustainability@cchellenic.com
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Coca‑Cola HBC AG
Turmstrasse 26, CH‑6300 Zug, Switzerland

www.coca‑colahellenic.com

investor.relations@cchellenic.com
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managed forests independently certified according to the 
rules of the Forest Stewardship Council (FSC®). This report 
was printed by an FSC and carbon neutral printing company. 
Both materials are manufactured at a mill that is certified to 
the ISO14001 and EMAS environmental standards.
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